
 

Agenda compiled by: 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Telephone No: 
 

Mike Earle 
 
224 3209 

Scrutiny Support Manager: 
Peter Marrington 
Tel: 3951151 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (CENTRAL AND CORPORATE) 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on 

Monday 9th June 2008 at 10.00 am 
 

(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
M Dobson (Chair) - Garforth and Swillington 

B Atha - Kirkstall 

P Davey - City and Hunslet 

G Latty - Guiseley and Rawdon 

A Lowe - Armley 

A Ogilvie - Beeston and Holbeck 

B Selby - Killingbeck and Seacroft 

P Wadsworth - Roundhay 

Whip’s nominee - Conservative 

Whip’s nominee - Liberal Democrat 

Whip’s nominee - Liberal Democrat 

Whip’s nominee - Liberal Democrat 

Whip’s nominee - Liberal Democrat 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded). 
 
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Chief 
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours 
before the meeting).  
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

 
 No exempt items identified on this 

agenda. 
 
 
 

 



 

 
C 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To declare any personal / prejudicial interests for 
the purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local 
Government Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of 
the Members Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 



 

 
D 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

6   
 

  INPUT INTO WORK PROGRAMME 2008/09 - 
SOURCES OF WORK AND ESTABLISHING THE 
BOARD'S PRIORITIES 
 
 
 
(a) To hear from the Director and officers on 

current issues and ask questions  
 
(b) To consider a report of the Head of Scrutiny 

and Member Development providing 
information to assist the Board to develop its 
work programme for 2008/09 on:- 

 
 (i)  Board’s Terms of Reference. 
 
 (ii) Core information on relevant aspects of 
the:   
 

• Corporate Assessment Report 
 

• Corporate Assessment Actions 2008 
 

• Draft  Council  Business Plan 2008-
11; 

 

• Corporate performance management  
information (PIs) and any identified 
areas for improvement; 

 

• Details of any forthcoming external  
audit  reviews; 

 

• Outstanding Issues from Scrutiny 
Board (Resources) 

 
(iii) Referred Items from previous Board. 

 
(iv) Current Forward Plan and minutes of 

last Executive Board  meeting. 
 
 

1 - 88 

7   
 

  DETERMINE WORK PROGRAMME 2008/09 
 
To consider the Board’s formal conclusions and 
recommendations arising from consideration of the 
previous item. 
 

89 - 
94 



 

 
E 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

8   
 

  DATES AND TIMES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
Monday 7th July 2008 
Monday 1st September 2008 
Monday 6th October 2008 
Monday 3rd November 2008 
Monday 1st December 2008 
Monday 5th January 2009 
Monday 2nd February 2009 
Monday 2nd March 2009 
Monday 6th April 2009 
 
All at 10.00 am (Pre-Meetings 9.30 am) 
 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board:  Central and Corporate Function 
 
Date:    9th June 2008 
 
Subject:  Input to the Work Programme 2008/09 - Sources of Work and  
                Establishing the Board’s Priorities 
 

        
 
 
1.0      Purpose of Report  

 

1.1 This report provides information and guidance to assist the Board develop its work 
programme for 2008/09 that is focused on strategic issues. 

 
2.0      Introduction 
 
2.1     Members will aware that the most recent Comprehensive Performance Assessment  

(CPA) for the Council identified the following area for improvement. 
 
CPA Area for Improvement 

 

“While scrutiny has improved with the introduction of seven new Scrutiny 
Committees these still remain inconsistent in their approach to challenging policy 
development.  As a consequence effective challenge to the Council through 
overview and Scrutiny remains inconsistent.  Further development is required to 
ensure a robust approach for all Scrutiny Boards.” 

 

3.0      Background Information 
 
3.1 It is important for Scrutiny Boards in developing their work programme in 2008/09 to 

have regard to the CPAs concerns and focus more on the Council’s corporate 
strategic priorities.  

3.2 Relevant core information from the following key sources have been extracted 
appropriate to this Board’s responsibilities  and attached to this paper to assist 
Members in this process (Appendix 1):  

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Peter Marrington 
 
Tel: 39 51151 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



•  Local Area Agreement 

•  Leeds Strategic Plan & Council Business Plan 2008-11 

•  Corporate Performance Management Information 

•  Corporate Assessment Report 

•  Corporate Assessment Actions 2008 

•  Details of any forthcoming external audit reviews 

•   Outstanding issues from Scrutiny Board (Resources) 
 

3.3   Other sources of work will continue to be ‘requests for scrutiny’ and corporate  
           referrals. 
 
3.4 A copy of the Board’s terms of reference is attached for reference purposes. 

(Appendix 2 ) 
 
3.5 The relevant extract from the latest forward plan, the most recent Executive Board 

minutes and outstanding issues referred from 2007/08 are also attached for 
consideration. (Appendix 3) 

 
 

4.0      Guidance 
   
4.1      Over the last few years of Scrutiny Board work, experience has shown that the   

process is more effective if the Board seeks to minimise the number of substantial 
inquiries running at one time.  

 
4.2      The Board is advised to consider the benefits of single item agendas (excluding  

miscellaneous information and minutes) in order to focus on all the relevant 
evidence and complete the inquiry in a shorter period of time. There are various 
mechanisms available to assist the Board in concluding inquiries quickly whilst the 
issues are pertinent, such as working groups and site visits. 

 
4.3      The agreed Memorandum of Understanding between Executive Board and  
          Overview and Scrutiny which now sits within the Council’s Constitution states; 
 

  “The responsibility of those setting scrutiny work programmes is, therefore, to   
  ensure that items of work come from a strategic approach as well as a need to  
  challenge service performance and respond to issues of high public interest.   

 
  It is recognised that Scrutiny Boards have a ‘watching brief’ role.  In addition   
  information is required for members’ own development process, particularly as   
  membership of the Boards is changed annually.  
  

  However, it is also recognised that agendas are often filled up with reports for this    
  purpose, which takes up time for both officers and Members.  Where Scrutiny   
 Boards wish to ask questions at a general or more strategic level and/or be updated   
 on issues already considered in detail, the facility of Members’ Questions – where a  
 verbal exchange replaces written reports - should be used.   

 
 It is expected that where ever possible prior notification is given of the likely   
 questions to be asked”.  

 

4.4      For the past couple of years the Children's Services Board in particular has   
 developed the approach of devoting one meeting per quarter to overview and   
 performance management. This includes receiving reports and scrutinising executive   
 members and officers on relevant issues. 

 
Page 2



5.0    Work programming  

 
5.1    The Director of Resources, Alan Gay, the Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate 

Governance) and James Rogers, Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy and 
Improvement) have been invited to attend this meeting of the Board to contribute to 
discussions about the Board’s work programme.  

 
5.2 Following those discussions, the Board is asked to agree an outline work programme 

that prioritises the issues to be investigated.  
 

6.0   Recommendations 
 
6.1 Members are requested to use the attached information and the discussion with 

officers to inform the development and approval of its work programme under the next 
agenda item.  

 
 
 
 
 

 

   
 

 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



    
 

Part 3 Section 2B 
Page 1 of 1 

Issue  –2008 

          Appendix2 
Scrutiny Board  (Central and Corporate Functions)  
 

1. In relation to matters concerning Central and Corporate Functions1, to exercise 
the functions of a Scrutiny Board including the following: 

 
(a) to review or scrutinise the exercise of any council or executive function 

or any other related matter2; 
 
(b) to make reports or recommendations to Council or the Executive in 

connection with the exercise of any functions of the Council or the 
Executive, including proposals for changes to policies and practices; 

 
(c)  to receive and review external audit and inspection reports; 
 

(d)  to act as the appropriate Scrutiny Board3 in relation to the Executive’s 
initial proposals for a plan or strategy within the Budget and Policy 
Framework4;  

 

(e)  to review corporate performance indicators and to make such reports          
and recommendations as it considers appropriate;  

 

(f) to review outcomes, targets and priorities within the Leeds Strategic 
Plan and to make such reports and recommendations as it considers 
appropriate;  

 

(g)  to review or scrutinise executive decisions made but not implemented;5 
and 

(h)  to monitor the implementation of the capital programme6. 

 

2.  To receive and monitor formal responses to any reports or recommendations 
made by the Board. 

                                            
1
 These are the functions delegated under the officer delegation scheme (council functions) and the 
officer delegation scheme (executive functions) to: 

• the Chief Executive;  

• the Deputy Chief Executive;  

• the Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance);  

• the Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy and Improvement); and 

• the Director of Resources.  
2
 including matters pertaining to outside bodies and partnerships to which appointments have been 
made by the authority 
3
 under the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules   

4
 including in relation to the Budget  

5
 which have been called-in under Rule 22 of the Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules.  

6
  Each Scrutiny Board may consider individual capital schemes that fall within its terms of reference. 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Corporate Assessment Report  

May 2008 

Corporate Assessment

Leeds City Council 

Page 7



© Audit Commission 2008 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 020 7828 1212  Fax: 020 7976 6187 Textphone (minicom): 020 7630 0421 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk 

The Audit Commission is an independent body responsible for ensuring that public 
money is spent economically, efficiently and effectively, to achieve high quality local 
services for the public. Our remit covers around 11,000 bodies in England, which 
between them spend more than £180 billion of public money each year. Our work 
covers local government, health, housing, community safety and fire and rescue 
services.

As an independent watchdog, we provide important information on the quality of 
public services. As a driving force for improvement in those services, we provide 
practical recommendations and spread best practice. As an independent auditor, we 
ensure that public services are good value for money and that public money is 
properly spent. 

Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille, 
on tape, or in a language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070. 

Page 8



Corporate Assessment Contents  3

Leeds City Council 

Contents

Introduction 4

Executive summary 6

Areas for improvement 9

Summary of assessment scores 10

Context 11

The locality 11

The Council 13

What is the Council, together with its partners, trying to achieve? 14

Ambition 14

Prioritisation 17

What is the capacity of the Council, including its work with partners, to 
deliver what it is trying to achieve? 19

Capacity 19

Performance management 22

What has been achieved? 24

Sustainable communities and transport 25

Safer and stronger communities 27

Healthier communities 30

Older people 31

Children and young people 33

Appendix 1 – Framework for Corporate Assessment 35

Page 9



4 Corporate Assessment Introduction 

Leeds City Council 

Introduction
1 Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) is the means by which the Audit 

Commission fulfils its statutory duty under section 99 of the Local Government 
Act 2003 to make an assessment, and report on the performance, of local 
authorities. Corporate assessment is one element in the overall assessment that 
leads to a CPA score and category.

2 The purpose of the corporate assessment is to assess how well the Council 
engages with and leads its communities, delivers community priorities in 
partnership with others, and ensures continuous improvement across the range 
of Council activities. It seeks to answer three headline questions which are 
underpinned by five specific themes. 

What is the Council, together with its partners, trying to achieve? 

 Ambition 

 Prioritisation 

What is the capacity of the Council, including its work with partners, to deliver 
what it is trying to achieve? 

 Capacity 

 Performance management 

What has been achieved? 

 Achievement 

Considered against the shared priorities of: 

 sustainable communities and transport; 

 safer and stronger communities; 

 healthier communities; 

 older people; and 

 children and young people. 

3 Corporate assessments are normally aligned with a joint area review of services 
for children and young people (JAR). In practice this means that the Council’s 
achievements in relation to children and young people are assessed using the 
evidence provided from the JAR. In addition, examples of outcomes and activity, 
which are relevant to the other themes and which are identified through the JAR, 
are considered within the corporate assessment. 

Page 10



Corporate Assessment Introduction  5

Leeds City Council 

4 The JAR covers specific services for children and young people that are directly 
managed or commissioned by the Council, as well as relevant health and youth 
justice services provided by other bodies. It focuses on the contributions made by 
services to improving outcomes especially concerning safeguarding; services for 
looked after children; and services for children with learning difficulties and/or 
disabilities. The separate JAR report also covers the leadership and management 
of services for children and young people and, in particular, the way that such 
services work together to improve outcomes. The description and judgement in 
respect of children and young people in this report is summarised from the JAR 
report and the most recently published Annual Performance Assessment from 
Ofsted which covers all of the Council’s children services.

Page 11



6 Corporate Assessment Executive summary 

Leeds City Council 

Executive summary 
5 Overall, the Council is performing well. Leeds City Council, with its partners, has 

a clear and challenging long term vision to improve the economic prosperity and 
the quality of life for all in Leeds. Key challenges facing the city in achieving this 
vision are meeting the needs of a growing and increasingly diverse population 
and in particular narrowing the gap for those living in the more deprived areas. 
This includes reducing worklessness, developing improved city and regional 
transportation links, providing enough affordable housing, maintaining 
improvements in educational attainment, further reducing criminal activity and 
improving the relatively poor health of the population. The Council has developed 
a clear longer term vision with partners which provides a strategic approach to 
these challenges. The Council and partners are utilising the considerable inward 
investment and regeneration of the city to narrow the gap in inequalities and meet 
demands caused by demographic changes. This vision is based on a good 
understanding of the national and regional context.  

6 There has been investment in organisational development to improve the 
Council's capacity to deliver its ambitions. It has improved its performance 
management arrangements and political governance. It has streamlined and 
focused managerial capacity and works effectively and invests strongly in 
partnerships to support shared delivery of its ambitions for the city. Success is 
demonstrated by good community outcomes and performance against national 
performance indicators compared with other core cities. There are improvements 
in educational attainment which is now rated as good compared with other core 
cities, adult social care is rated as good and there have been significant 
reductions in criminal activity. The Council has improved its Corporate 
Performance Assessment (CPA) score to four-star as ranked by the Audit 
Commission. However, some areas of performance are poor when compared 
nationally. Overall satisfaction with the Council, as measured by the Best Value 
General Survey 2006, fell between 2003 and 2006, although the Council's own 
annual residents' satisfaction survey undertaken in 2007 is showing an 
improvement in overall satisfaction. 

7 The Council provides strong leadership particularly at a regional level where it 
has developed a clear city region business case focused on improving prosperity. 
It has shown strong leadership in both shaping the vision for the City and delivery 
through the Local Area Agreement (LAA).The corporate plan translates this vision 
into clear priorities and ambitious targets for action. Partners are involved in 
setting targets within the LAA, ensuring they are both challenging and realistic. 
For example, significantly reducing crime levels or getting long term unemployed 
people back into employment. At the same time the Council is focusing service 
delivery more closely to community needs through the city regeneration strategy, 
area plans and good use of community intelligence. However, it has yet to embed 
some strategic agendas including those for climate change and the over 50s and 
it has had only limited progress in its strategic approach in partnership to health. 
Overall, this sets an ambitious framework for action to balance the social, 
economic and environmental needs of the city. 

Page 12



Corporate Assessment Executive summary  7

Leeds City Council 

8 The Council effectively engages with local people and partners to ensure that it is 
meeting the diverse needs of the whole community. A key strength is that this 
engagement is ongoing; the Council regularly consults and seeks people's views 
through effective working with local communities which contributes to a good 
shared understanding of what the Council is trying to achieve. There is a strong 
strategic approach to diversity and this is being built upon to further embed the 
Council's strong approach to customer focused services. 

9 The Council is clear and explicit about the challenges it faces in delivering its 
ambitions for the area. Priorities are robust and consistent with the overall vision, 
although links through service planning until recently have been inconsistent. It is 
able and willing to make difficult decisions to achieve a balance between meeting 
community needs and providing value for money for example, in closing 
residential and nursing homes for the elderly which were not providing effective 
care or reducing the number of schools to provide better education facilities. 
Effective leadership - both internally and in the community - means that partners 
understand and generally support what the Council is trying to do.

10 Council services provide value for money. While delivering many high quality 
services, council tax rises are below the national average and council tax levels 
remain at a low level. It has also worked within budget settlements by focusing 
resources on priorities and identifying efficiency savings. A corporate approach to 
achieving value for money is supported by good medium term financial planning 
and notable practice in its approach to procurement. Close monitoring allows 
early intervention and action to be taken on predicted budgetary pressures. 
Financial standing and management are good.  

11 There is good capacity to deliver priorities through effective strategic staff 
management, supported by employee development and training to ensure that 
staff are focused and committed to providing customer focused services. 
However, while there is good departmental workforce planning this has yet to be 
developed corporately. Corporate governance is sound and there is good political 
leadership and good investment in councillor development. Political decision-
making is transparent and effective, but challenge through scrutiny and scrutiny 
boards remains inconsistent. 

12 Strong and highly effective partnership working in most areas is increasing 
capacity and providing services that are focused on user needs. The Local 
Strategic Partnership (called the Leeds Initiative) is a mature partnership which is 
effective and supported by a strategic approach to managing partnerships within 
the Council. As a result significant outcomes have been achieved with effective 
strategic and operational partnership working across most sectors.

13 The Council has created a robust approach to performance management with 
partners which is most developed in the monitoring and performance 
management arrangements for the Leeds Initiative and LAA. Data sharing is 
effective and one notable success is in the joint use of data in the Leeds Safety 
Partnership. However, there is an inconsistent focus on performance at team and 
individual level within the Council. Overall the performance framework supports 
improvement and enables the Council to maintain high standards of service 
delivery in many areas. 

Page 13



8 Corporate Assessment Executive summary 

Leeds City Council 

14 The Council, with its partners, can demonstrate consistent and significant 
achievement against its own priorities. Together they have made good progress 
against social, economic and environmental agendas - though progress against 
some targets has been slower for example, in improving worklessness and in 
some areas the gap around health inequalities is not being narrowed. There is a 
coherent corporate approach to achieving a better quality of life for all that 
responds to the planned regeneration agenda and the diverse nature of the 
population. These achievements demonstrate a proactive approach and a 
willingness to work in partnership to achieve real community outcomes. 

Page 14



Corporate Assessment Areas for improvement  9

Leeds City Council 

Areas for improvement 
15 The Council does not have a strategic approach to supporting the over 50s and 

although it supports older and vulnerable people effectively there is no 
coordinated approach to the delivery of services by the Council and its partners. 
To ensure consistently high levels of service provision for all older people the 
Council needs to develop and embed a coordinated approach to supporting all 
over 50s. 

16 The health of the city remains poor in some areas in comparison to other areas of 
the country. While there has been some progress in improving health in some 
targeted areas this remains inconsistent while health inequalities are also not 
significantly reducing. The Council needs to strengthen its strategic approach in 
partnership to ensure it has a greater impact on reducing health inequalities and 
improving the health and wellbeing of the local population.

17 While scrutiny has improved with the introduction of seven new Scrutiny 
Committees these still remain inconsistent in their approach to challenging policy 
development. As a consequence effective challenge to the Council through 
overview and scrutiny remains inconsistent. Further development is required to 
ensure a robust approach for all scrutiny boards and call-in arrangements need to 
be reviewed to support a fair and effective approach.

18 There is no consistent approach to individual performance management. While 
most staff receive appraisals these are not consistent across the Council and 
mainly focus on development needs. The Council needs to introduce target 
setting and review for all staff. Workforce planning is not developed corporately 
and does not yet involve partners fully and therefore the Council cannot be sure it 
is using its capacity as effectively as it could and ensure the organisation is fit for 
purpose in meeting its long term ambitions. The Council should develop a 
corporate approach to workforce planning. 

Page 15



10 Corporate Assessment Summary of assessment scores 

Leeds City Council 

Summary of assessment scores 

Headline questions Theme Score* 

Ambition 4

What is the Council, together with 
its partners, trying to achieve? 

Prioritisation 3

Capacity  3What is the capacity of the 
Council, including its work with 
partners, to deliver what it is trying 
to achieve? Performance management 3

What has been achieved? Achievement 3

Overall corporate assessment 
score**

 3 

*Key to scores 

1 – below minimum requirements – inadequate performance

2 – at only minimum requirements – adequate performance

3 – consistently above minimum requirements – performing well

4 – well above minimum requirements – performing strongly

**Rules for determining the overall corporate assessment score 

Scores on five themes  Overall corporate 
assessment score 

Two or more themes with a score of 4 

None less than score of 3 

4

Three or more themes with a score of 3 or more  

None less than score of 2 

3

Three or more themes with a score of 2 or more 2 

Any other combination 1 

Page 16



Corporate Assessment Context  11

Leeds City Council 

Context

The locality 

19 The City of Leeds is in West Yorkshire and is the second largest local authority in 
England covering an area of 552 square kilometres. The city is the regional 
capital of Yorkshire and the Humber and comprises of three distinct areas. The 
inner city which has the business and commercial sector, the suburban ring which 
comprises of densely populated housing and some of the more deprived areas 
and a large sparsely populated rural hinterland with small market towns. 
Geographic and transport links between these areas are difficult and delivering 
accessible services in these distinct environments is a major challenge to the 
Council and its partners. 

20 Leeds has a population of around 750,000 people which has rapidly grown over 
the past decade and is becoming more diverse with over a 130 nationalities 
represented. There is an increasing elderly population which is projected to 
significantly increase over the next 20 years, especially in the over 85s. In 
response, the Council has developed a strategic approach to targeting service to 
the elderly and frail but this will still place further challenges for the delivery of 
services to support independent living and provide social and nursing care. Ethnic 
diversity is relatively high for the region at just under 11 per cent but is around
17 per cent for primary school children. Although increases are projected for this 
sector of the community there are also marked increases in migrant workers and 
asylum seekers which are starting to impact on the community and the delivery of 
services.

Page 17



12 Corporate Assessment Context

Leeds City Council 

21 Overall, Leeds ranks 63rd out of 149 in terms of the government indices of 
deprivation (where 1 is the most and 149 the least deprived). As a result, it now 
only receives limited European and transitional funding from Government. 
However these figures disguise the fact there are areas of deep seated 
deprivation in certain parts of the city with 21 per cent of super output areas in the 
10 per cent most deprived and 32 per cent are in the 20 per cent most deprived 
when compared nationally. In contrast there is also a large and relatively 
prosperous rural area which has the affect of mitigating the impact of the deprived 
areas on the city's overall deprivation ranking. Leeds has developed a generally 
thriving economy with large amounts of economic regeneration and investment of 
over £3 billion over the last decade. The area has benefited from its location as a 
regional centre to produce higher average income levels than many cities in 
England. Investment has ensured a diverse economy based on retail and service 
industry together with manufacturing and small businesses. Many businesses 
have located to the area increasing the demand for skilled labour. One significant 
issue is reducing barriers for getting people from long term unemployment and on 
benefits into work. The thriving economy has helped drive population growth, 
counter to the position in other parts of northern England and this has put 
pressure on the provision of new and affordable housing requiring many workers 
to live outside the city and commute. There has been significant growth in 
housing resulting in 319,000 homes currently in the city, 60,000 Council owned, 
and this is projected to rise by a further 12 per cent by 2021. 

22 Some education levels are improving at higher than the national average with
56 per cent of pupils achieving five or more grade A-C at GCSE level in 2007 
which is amongst the best when compared to other core cities. The number of 
schools below the national floor target has fallen from 33 per cent to 5 per cent 
since 2003. The health of the city is comparatively poor, linked to areas of 
deprivation including comparatively high mortality rates and teenage conceptions. 
There have been significant improvements in recent years in reducing criminal 
activity but incidents in many areas and the fear of crime remain above the 
national average. Although economic activity is increasing there are significant 
pockets of worklessness but employment levels are high relative to other core 
cities.

23 The area's proximity to major road networks, rail links and Leeds/Bradford airport 
ensures that the area has good transport links to the rest of the country. 
However, there is demand for good citywide affordable transport to increase 
access. Delivering growth and providing appropriate infrastructure while 
protecting the environment and improving the quality of life for all are key 
challenges facing the Council.  

Page 18



Corporate Assessment Context  13

Leeds City Council 

The Council 

24 Leeds City Council is long established and is one of the Government's defined 
core cities. A Joint Conservative/Liberal Democrat administration took control in 
2004 that resulted from no overall political majority for a single group. Formal 
leadership is rotated every six months. Of the 99 council seats Labour holds 44, 
Conservatives 23, Liberal Democrats 22, Morley Borough Independents 5,
Green Party 3, BNP 1 and Independent 1. Political direction is provided by an 
Executive of 10 councillors who, together with the Leaders share responsibility for 
the Council's work. There are a number of Policy (scrutiny) Boards whose chairs 
constitute the overview and scrutiny committee enabling a broader range of 
councillors to get involved in policy making decisions. There is also a range of 
non-executive and regulatory committees, for example, covering development 
control, standards and appeals and complaints. 

25 The Council employs 35,000 staff (including school based), making it one of the 
largest employers in the area. Staff leadership is provided by the Chief Executive, 
Deputy Chief Executive supported by two Assistant Chief Executives and five 
Strategic Directors while responsibility for service delivery is delegated to Heads 
of Service. The Council has structured its services into four thematic directorates 
and a central functions directorate. 

26 The Council plans to spend (gross) £2.8 billion, including Dedicated Schools 
Grant, on services in 2007/08, with a capital programme of £3.98 billion. The 
council tax band D level is £1,182 which is one of the lowest nationally. 

27 The Council was assessed under the Audit Commission's corporate performance 
assessment process in 2002 and 2003 as 'good' and as 'excellent' in 2004. Under 
the revised CPA methodology the Council was judged as; four-star which has 
been maintained in 2007'.  

Page 19



14 Corporate Assessment What is the Council, together with its partners, trying 
to achieve? 

Leeds City Council 

What is the Council, together with its 
partners, trying to achieve? 

Ambition

28 The Council is performing strongly in this area. It has very clear ambitions for the 
city and region and demonstrates strong leadership in meeting international, 
national, regional and local challenges through a well developed strategic 
planning and delivery framework. It has developed a clear and challenging long 
term vision for the future, based on strong and ongoing engagement with partners 
and local communities. The LSP (called Leeds Initiative) is very well established 
and has extensive participation by senior partners. It shows strong ownership of 
the vision, and has developed a long term community strategy with a clear 
agenda for action. Overall the Council has a clear understanding of the 
underlying needs of the region and its role in meeting them. 

29 The Leeds Initiative has two complementary ambitions in its vision and 
community strategy. 'Going up a league', which focuses on further improvements 
to the city's economy, and 'narrowing the gap', which focuses on ensuring 
everyone in Leeds benefits from economic success and good quality of life. 
These ambitions reflect challenges relating to Leeds which are to maintain a 
thriving economy and regeneration of the city, reduce crime, improve education, 
provide new and affordable housing while reducing inequalities. Its 20-year 
vision, developed to meet these challenges, states that in 2020, 'Leeds will be an 
internationally competitive European city at the heart of a prosperous region 
where everyone can enjoy a high quality of life'. To achieve these ambitions the 
Council and partners have already attracted £3.2 billion of investment and a 
further £7.2 billion is planned. 

30 The community strategy sets out a clear agenda for action. To support the two  
main ambitions there are eight key themes which are that by 2020 Leeds will be 
an internationally competitive city and region, have a reputation for environmental 
excellence, be a centre of excellence for cultural activity, be a fair city where 
people from all backgrounds take part in community life and be a healthy city. 
These themes are supported by clear objectives that set an agenda for action. To 
support these objectives are action plans with medium and long term priorities 
which are supported by measurable targets. These action plans reflect the views 
of partners and local communities. Priorities are annually reviewed and set a 
clear framework for action to meet the social, economic and environmental needs 
of the area.

Page 20



Corporate Assessment What is the Council, together with its partners, trying to 
achieve?  15

Leeds City Council 

31 The achievement of this vision is supported by highly effective partnership 
working and a good framework for delivery within the Leeds Initiative. This is 
based on a mature partnership formed in the early 1990s which has received 
external accreditation 'green light' awards for the past three years. Senior 
councillors provide support and leadership to the partnership while there has 
been significant funding provided by the Council exceeding £600,000 a year. This 
has helped develop a strong recognisable and independent brand for partnership 
working in Leeds. There has been significant improvement in sharing data with 
partners which is helping reduce duplication and focus attention on areas for 
improvement. A particularly strong example is the integrated work of the Safer 
Leeds partnership in reducing crime.

32 The Council is recognised by partners and increasingly by Government as a 
strong regional leader where it effectively champions the development of the 
wider city region. It has, with its partners, developed the 'Leeds' brand for this 
region which it is using to champion the region as an area for investment not only 
nationally but from Europe. Over, 75 per cent of jobs in Yorkshire and Humber in 
the next decade are expected to be generated in Leeds city region. However, the 
Council and its partners have not developed clear measurable outcomes relating 
to their ambition of becoming a successful European city. Following the success 
of its first Local Public Sector Agreement (LPSA 1) the Council is providing strong 
leadership in developing the second Local Area Agreement (LAA). Responsibility 
for delivering the many targets across the Government's shared priority areas are 
clearly allocated and effective monitoring arrangements are in place. This 
provides a good basis for developing a shared understanding, pooling of 
resources and a collective focus on meeting regional and local needs. 

33 Partnership ambitions have significant breadth covering international, national, 
regional and local aspirations. To achieve this, the Council has effectively 
translated the 20-year vision and strategy for Leeds into its own plans and 
strategies. The corporate plan 2005-2008 establishes a three year vision that 
directly outlines how it will deliver its responsibilities within the community 
strategy through seven high level ambitions which are reviewed annually. This 
sets out what the Council intends to do each year with specific priorities and 
targets identifying how success will be measured. Underpinning this are key 
strategies such as the children's and young people's plan, and the plan to 
regenerate the city, which are well aligned with the corporate plan and community 
strategy. For example, the City has established the Strategic Affordable Housing 
Partnership to deliver 1,100 affordable homes each year until 2020, including 335 
each year on Council owned land. The Council is developing a joint community 
strategy, LAA and corporate plan to be implemented in April 2008. This will 
streamline strategic planning and further integrate the Council's ambitions and 
priorities with those of the Leeds Initiative which has supported clear 
understanding of Council and community priorities by stakeholders. 

Page 21



16 Corporate Assessment What is the Council, together with its partners, trying 
to achieve? 

Leeds City Council 

34 The Council's ambitions are based on a good understanding of need through 
extensive engagement with stakeholders and local people. Effective use of 
different methods of consultation is supported by good use of community 
intelligence which is delivered through a corporate engagement policy and toolkit. 
This has helped inform the ambitions of the Council and its partners for example, 
on the need to reduce worklessness, reorganise health data to neighbourhood 
levels and target activity to reduce crime. Activity is targeted to areas of most 
need as a result of good use of local intelligence for example, the regeneration of 
areas in the east of the city which are more deprived. Consultation on the 
community strategy and various Council strategies have also informed and 
shaped these documents. Consultation is ongoing in local communities through 
area forums and there are targeted approaches to what is perceived as hard to 
reach groups. Policy changes as a result of consultation are evident, and good 
feedback is given to those who have been consulted. This level of engagement 
and the clarity of presentation of Council plans contribute to good shared 
understanding among partners and stakeholders of what the Council is trying to 
achieve and their role in delivery. 

35 The Council is ambitious for itself as well as the region and city it serves. It aims 
to be a more efficient and effective Council with two of its seven ambitions 
focused on improving services and staff performance. All its stated high level 
ambitions require effective cross-cutting action both across the Council and with 
its partners which is clearly understood by councillors and staff. Ambitions are 
realistic and have to be delivered within the budgetary constraints imposed by the 
corporate drive to secure annual efficiency savings and maintain low levels of 
council tax. These are key challenges for the Council and its partners but do 
ensure that its ambitions are challenging, but realistic. 

36 The Council has demonstrated good community leadership in balancing the 
needs of the business sector in regenerating the city together with the supporting 
infrastructure. It is also ensuring the needs of its more deprived communities are 
addressed through social regeneration projects. Through the Leeds initiative and 
active involvement in area forum, councillors have helped shape the vision for the 
city and also been involved in making difficult decisions. These have included 
residential and nursing homes for the elderly closures, school closures, rebuilding 
programmes and changing the eligibility criteria for adult services. Overall these 
decisions have been managed well and have resulted in better services. There 
are good outcomes including the provision of many regional facilities in the city 
and the recent sale of the Leeds/Bradford airport to attract suitable investment for 
the expansion of facilities and the financial benefits this brought partners. Other 
regional agencies regard the Council as providing good regional leadership 
including Government Office and the Regional Development Agency. Overall the 
Council is effectively helping to shape the future of the city and region while 
ensuring it has the infrastructure to support planned regeneration that the whole 
city benefits from.

Page 22



Corporate Assessment What is the Council, together with its partners, trying to 
achieve?  17

Leeds City Council 

Prioritisation

37 The Council is performing well in this area. It has established priorities that reflect 
local needs, support the Council's ambitions and respond to regional and national 
agendas. A robust delivery framework is in place to ensure that resources are 
allocated to priority areas. There is a strategic approach to diversity and 
vulnerable people and hard to reach groups are effectively engaged. Overall the 
Council knows what matters most to local people and concentrates its efforts 
accordingly.

38 Priorities clearly reflect the key challenges, needs and context of a large and 
diverse area. These priorities are outlined within the current corporate plan  
(2005-2008) and support the ambitions contained in the community strategy. 
Priorities are grouped under seven themes and include creating a leading city in 
Europe with an international reputation, reducing health inequalities and the 
impact of poverty on health and targets for reducing unemployment to groups 
receiving benefits or living in deprived areas. Priorities are reviewed through the 
annual council plan to reflect changing community needs while councillors are 
involved in reviewing priorities within their own portfolio areas and strategically 
through the executive. The Council’s localised approach through good use of 
neighbourhood intelligence, area forums and ongoing targeted engagement is a 
notable strength. At a strategic level regional partners are effective in ensuring a 
coordinated approach to regional prioritisation. This allows the Council to remain 
focused on issues such as regional housing growth or transport infrastructure and 
more local issues including breaking down barriers to get people into 
employment.

39 Priorities reflect local needs. In addition to the seven corporate priorities there are 
five specific priorities which local communities have identified as areas for 
improvement. These include repairing roads and pavements and creating more 
activity for teenagers. Priorities are effectively publicised with outcomes reflecting 
key community and internal interests including value for money. Each priority 
area is well defined and has a series of measurable short and medium term 
targets and outcomes which are regularly monitored and translated into the 
Council's strategies.  

40 There is effective engagement with most sectors and stakeholders to ensure that 
priorities meet the diverse needs of different communities. For example, effective 
dialogue with specific local communities enabled them to generate suggestions to 
improve their neighbourhoods which were then actioned. Other more strategic 
examples include dialogue with the business, environmental, voluntary sectors 
and local communities on regenerating east and south east Leeds which will 
bring investment of an estimated £1 billion over the next 20 years. Ongoing 
engagement with all sectors and levels within the community using different 
mechanisms is a particular strength. This has resulted in good action planning, 
stronger networks and improved results such as implementing local projects that 
are having a real impact in improving local communities. 

Page 23



18 Corporate Assessment What is the Council, together with its partners, trying 
to achieve? 

Leeds City Council 

41 The Council has a strong strategic approach to equalities. It has a well 
established corporate equalities board supported by an equalities team. 
Engagement takes account of the need to target hard to reach groups for 
example with disabled people on the provision of adaptations to Council services 
to meet their specific needs. Effective engagement with some groups including 
older people and migrant workers has informed the Council and its partners on 
further actions required to support these sectors of the community. There is a 
clear and comprehensive equalities strategy with action plans to improve its 
approach externally but also internally in raising a wider awareness with staff of 
dealing with customers from diverse backgrounds. Overall, there is an integrated 
approach to targeting diverse groups and individuals and involving them in 
shaping services which more closely reflect individual needs.  

42 Partners and stakeholders are effectively engaged in setting priorities and 
realistic but challenging targets. Through the Local Area Agreement (LAA), good 
and sustained focus is placed on tackling both local and national issues and 
partners work together to drive solutions through setting targeted outcomes. For 
instance, criminal activity has been high in Leeds and as a result of targeted 
activity in partnership there has been significant reduction in recent years The 
Council has led engagement with the community and partners to develop 
priorities for negotiations with Government Office on targets for the new LAA. 
Stakeholders have also contributed to other strategies and plans to develop 
realistic, outcome based targets, for example, to reduce health inequalities. Staff 
are also involved in target setting at a service level, ensuring realistic service 
targets are set based on the knowledge and experience of those delivering 
services. Priorities are clearly understood by external stakeholders and staff and 
are reinforced through effective communication. This contributes to a shared 
ownership of what the Council is trying to achieve.

43 Robust financial, planning and performance management frameworks are used to 
maintain a strong focus on delivery of priorities. The medium term financial 
strategy is aligned with the current corporate plan with intention to update this to 
support the new combined community and corporate plan. Through an effective 
approach to value for money and efficiency savings the Council has focused 
resources towards priority areas including reducing criminal activity, creating a 
better environment for people to live in and targeting frail and vulnerable older 
people to receive higher levels of care. Performance management also supports 
the delivery of priorities through effective monitoring of progress and target 
setting. As a result there is a clear framework and understanding to ensure 
effective allocation of resources to priority areas. 

Page 24



Corporate Assessment What is the capacity of the Council, including its work 
with partners, to deliver what it is trying to achieve?  19

Leeds City Council 

What is the capacity of the Council, 
including its work with partners, to 
deliver what it is trying to achieve? 

Capacity

44 The Council is performing well in this area. There is strong corporate governance, 
effective financial management and staff and councillor capacity is good, 
enhanced by a strategic approach to project management and notable practice in 
procurement. Risk management and ICT are supporting the delivery of customer 
focused services. Partnership working is strong in most areas. There are some 
weaknesses including the lack of consistent challenge through scrutiny and the 
lack of a developed corporate approach to workforce planning. However, overall 
the Council uses its resources very effectively and is seeking to further increase 
capacity through an internal modernisation agenda. 

45 Councillors and officers are clear about their roles and responsibilities. This is 
enhanced by good and effective working relationships. The Council's joint 
leadership approach works well with clear internal and external leadership and 
decision making which is based on community outcomes and not along political 
lines. Portfolio holders provide good leadership in their areas of responsibility and 
champion some cross-cutting areas, including diversity. This enables effective 
engagement of councillors in making strategic and policy decisions, allowing 
officers to focus more on operational issues. The Council has transparent and 
broadly effective decision-making processes. Portfolio holders are openly 
accountable for the delivery of service and cross-cutting targets. There are sound 
arrangements for ethical governance with an active standards committee which is 
promoting greater awareness of governance and standards at its meetings. 
Councillor skills are developed through induction, specific targeted training and 
the Council has achieved charter mark status for its training framework including 
personal development plans for portfolio holders. This is building on the already 
strong capacity of councillors to play an active part in the decision the making 
process.

46 Overview and scrutiny is improving but not delivering a consistent and effective 
challenge. Call in arrangements are not as effective as they could be, which has 
resulted in few call ins in recent years. While scrutiny has been enhanced by 
using policy boards which allow a broader range of councillors to get involved in 
policy making decisions these are currently operating inconsistently. Some 
boards effectively challenge at a policy development stage while others are not 
challenging at this stage which has resulted in scrutiny not providing consistent 
challenge in this area. 

Page 25



20 Corporate Assessment What is the capacity of the Council, including its 
work with partners, to deliver what it is trying to achieve? 

Leeds City Council 

47 There is a very strong focus on financial management and financial control is 
good. Councillors, managers and staff give high priority to balancing budgets and 
achieving value for money (VFM). The Council is aware of its relative costs and 
performance. Activity-based budgeting focuses managers' attention on delivering 
VFM in their services and achieving substantial efficiency savings of around £70 
million over the past two years. Costs are low for some services, complemented 
by good and improving performance. Where the Council has increased costs this 
is commensurate with improving services. The Council ensures that its resources 
are used cost effectively. 

48 The Council’s financial plan is robust and underpinned by effective management 
and control. The medium-term financial planning process ensures resources are 
linked to current priorities and that the Council is aware of potential future funding 
shortfalls. The Council is developing longer term financial planning to support the 
longer term community strategy and align with the revised priorities. Effective 
monitoring ensures that resources support priorities and areas of 
underperformance, for example, reducing criminal activity or improving planning 
services. No significant departmental overspends have occurred in recent years 
and the Council has been very successful in levering external funding particularly 
through PFI schemes. For example, in the building of new schools to support 
improved educational attainment and street lighting which is impacting on 
reduced crime and fear of crime. The Council is managing its risks through a 
strategic approach and service risk registers which identify key operational and 
generic risks. A corporate approach to project management and notable practice 
in the Council's regional approach in procurement is further enabling it to make 
best use of capacity. This helps the Council focus its resources on areas of 
greatest need and maximise outcomes for the community. 

49 Staff capacity is good and supported by a strategic approach to human resource 
(HR) management which links to the Council's priorities. The Council has a 
people strategy and action plan to ensure a more strategic and consistent 
approach to personnel policy. It achieved organisation wide investors in people 
(IIP) in 2001 and then also attained the IIP Leadership and Management 
Standard in 2005 demonstrating a strong commitment to developing its staff 
supported by effective internal communications. Management capacity is being 
increased through a more structured approach to management based 
competency and leadership training. A recent staff survey indicates high levels of 
staff satisfaction while good progress is being made on the implementation of the 
new single status job evaluation scheme. Capacity is further supported through 
flexible working policies, reduction in sickness absence and generally effective 
recruitment and retention which enhances the Council's capacity to deliver its 
priorities.

Page 26



Corporate Assessment What is the capacity of the Council, including its work 
with partners, to deliver what it is trying to achieve?  21

Leeds City Council 

50 Some aspects of corporate personnel policy and workforce planning are not 
consistently implemented. In some departments the implementation of personnel 
policies has been inconsistent through local interpretation. This is being 
strengthened through personnel department restructuring which is already 
impacting on a more consistent approach. There are departmental workforce 
plans but the Council has yet to implement a corporate approach to workforce 
planning across the organisation or externally with partners. As a result the 
Council cannot be sure that it is shaping its staffing resources to meet its long 
term ambitions. 

51 The Council makes good use of IT, particularly to improve customer access to 
services. This is guided by a highly effective strategic approach and a 
considerable investment improving the functionality of internal systems. Key 
elements are the customer contact centres and interactive website which has 
been externally accredited. Use and satisfaction with the telephone contact 
centre has steadily increased and face to face service centres enable good 
access across the city to a wide range of services. IT systems are used 
effectively to support performance management information through an 
accessible system and also through systems to share partner information on 
performance. Access to IT is improving for all sectors of the community and is 
resulting in greater take up of services via the website. This helps users to access 
services remotely, which is particularly relevant for people living in outlying areas 
or in deprived communities where local access reduces the need to travel.   

52 Strong and well developed partnership working is a particular strength and is 
central to delivery of the Council's aims across all sectors. The Council seeks to 
work and engage with partners in all areas of its activities and is considered as an 
effective partner by most external stakeholders. Of the many examples, there are 
notable achievements in the integration of services in the Leeds safer partnership 
or the maturity and effectiveness of the Leeds Initiative. Other notable areas are 
the Council's partnership working with neighbourhoods through area forums and 
plans, and the joint working on the redevelopment of the city which is resulting in 
large amounts of inward investment. The Council has developed a strategic 
approach to partnership working through use of service level agreements (SLAs) 
while capacity is being built in the voluntary sector through direct Council support 
enabling the delivery of many services, particularly for older people through this 
sector. This demonstrates commitment to build stronger and effective 
arrangements that are responsive to local needs and increase capacity both for 
the Council and its partners.

Page 27



22 Corporate Assessment What is the capacity of the Council, including its 
work with partners, to deliver what it is trying to achieve? 

Leeds City Council 

Performance management 

53 The Council is performing well in this area. A clear, open culture of performance 
is in place engaging partners, councillors, senior managers and understood by 
key staff. This is supported by an effective performance management framework 
which enables the Council to focus not only on service improvements and 
performance indicators but cross-cutting issues including diversity and customer 
focus. Monitoring is systematic and focussed with appropriate involvement of 
councillors and senior managers with the Council making good use of customer 
feedback to drive improvement. Performance management with partners is 
strong, supported by the alignment of Council and partners' plans and a clear 
approach to monitoring outcomes led by the Council. There is not yet a consistent 
approach to managing the performance of individuals in the Council. Overall 
performance is improving in most priority areas and where it is not, action is being 
taken to address it. 

54 Performance management with partners and data sharing is strong and is part of 
the performance culture. At a strategic level the LAA and performance group on 
the Leeds Initiative manage performance against agreed targets and challenge 
areas of underperformance. The Council uses detailed information on its most 
deprived neighbourhoods to target resources, in partnership, to reduce 
inequalities. A good example is in Community Safety where there is integrated 
working and use of performance systems with West Yorkshire Police which has 
helped to significantly reduce crime levels and improve community safety. This 
model of working is beginning to take effect in other areas of the Council 
including children and younger people’s health.  

55 There is a strong performance culture in the Council which is supported by robust 
performance management and reporting arrangements. The Corporate plan and 
LAA provide a focus, setting priorities for action and monitoring performance 
against these. Quarterly reports provide very clear data on areas of poor 
performance or exceptions and describe action that has been taken. These 
reports include helpful trend information and data quality indicators which help 
drive improvement in poorer performing areas and enable councillors and 
managers to take appropriate actions. There is clarity on responsibilities for 
tackling under-performance through the LAA code of governance and within the 
Council. As a consequence performance is reviewed at the appropriate stage 
within a clear internal framework and at a wider partnership level. Under-
performance has been targeted in key areas such as street cleanliness where 
LAA and corporate plan targets were set for improvement, additional resources 
allocated and performance has improved which has been recognised by 
residents.

Page 28



Corporate Assessment What is the capacity of the Council, including its work 
with partners, to deliver what it is trying to achieve?  23

Leeds City Council 

56 Councillors are effectively engaged in performance management. Performance 
reports are considered by the executive, overview and scrutiny and relevant 
scrutiny boards, which are increasingly able to demonstrate their impact in some 
areas. Scrutiny does appropriately challenge poor performance in key areas. A 
recent example is the children and young people's scrutiny board's investigation 
into adoption. This focused on speeding up the process and increasing the pool 
of people willing to adopt which has resulted in a marked increase in adoption 
rates. Other examples of using performance information to improve outcomes 
include the use of road casualty information in specific neighbourhoods and the 
use of local data to reduce deprivation particularly around crime and grime. There 
is regular performance review between portfolio holders and the appropriate 
corporate or operational directors enabling councillors to challenge performance 
across the Council effectively.  

57 Senior managers have clear targets and these are regularly reviewed to ensure 
progress but this is not consistently in place throughout the organisation. 
Appraisals for front line staff are more focused on development needs and there 
is a lack of consistency for the review and setting of individual targets and 
objectives. Target setting is predominantly SMART but there are a limited number 
of areas where this is not the case. In addition, the presentation of service plans 
was up until this year inconsistent. Inconsistencies in target setting and 
presentation of service plans do not support the embedding of a performance 
culture to all areas of the Council.  

58 The Council uses intelligence and customer feedback to improve performance. 
Good use is made of benchmarking with similar organisations to drive 
improvement while performance is effectively reported to the public through 
Council publications, the website and other media. Customer feedback is used to 
improve performance corporately and departmentally. For example, customer 
feedback has been used in city services to improve performance of bulky waste 
collections resulting in a significant fall in complaints. Complaints are logged 
centrally and recurring themes are identified and addressed. Yearly 
comprehensive satisfaction surveys are carried out with residents which allow a 
detailed analysis of responses down to a neighbourhood level, analysis of trends 
and assessment of the impact of initiatives. There is effective use of external 
challenge to drive improvement through use of consultancy and effectively 
responding to recommendations contained in inspection and audit reports. This 
has included using consultancy to help create a service prioritisation model and 
Leeds University to measure deprivation trends to help target resources and drive 
improvement.

Page 29



24 Corporate Assessment What has been achieved?

Leeds City Council 

What has been achieved? 
59 The Council is performing well in this area, and can show significant achievement 

across the shared priority areas. Key achievements, linked to local ambitions of 
'going up a league' and 'narrowing the gap' include raising economic prosperity, 
reducing inequalities in specific communities , improving housing, improving 
educational attainment and significantly reducing crime levels. Other 
achievements include supporting independent living for the elderly with high 
standards of social care, and a regional approach to promoting cultural activities 
with nationally and regionally important facilities including the relocation of the 
Royal Armouries to the city. However the Council has not achieved all it wants in 
some areas, for example, there has been a widening of the gap in some 
communities around health inequalities and although there has been significant 
investment in the planning service, performance remains below average, 
although improving. Achievements show a regional focus but also reflect local 
need and this is a significant strength of the approach taken by the council. 

60 Partnership working to improve community cohesion is successful with reductions 
in anti social behaviour and the fear of crime. Customer contact centres and an 
accessible web site are improving access to services for all areas of the 
community. There have been notable developments in some areas around 
healthier communities where there are good examples of partnership working and 
successful outcomes including smoking cessation. However, a strategic approach 
for reducing health inequalities has yet to be implemented. The delivery of 
services to older people has improved with innovative approaches in partnership, 
improving the quality of life for the over 65s but the Council has yet to implement 
a strategy of supporting the over 50s. Overall, the Council is performing well to 
meet the needs of children and young people and the capacity of the Council to 
improve based on its track record is good. 

61 A strong approach to working in partnership has meant that many of the 
achievements are jointly owned. There are very strong links with the voluntary 
sector and the Council is using its expertise and experience to further promote 
capacity-building and target consultation to diverse communities. This has 
resulted in greater accessibility and more focused service delivery to meet the 
needs of particular communities. The Leeds Initiative is particularly strong and 
achieving real outcomes for the community supported by improved joint 
performance management and data sharing. Joint working and the introduction of 
some integrated budget arrangements are delivering more efficient joint service 
delivery particularly around community safety. The achievements testify both to 
the Council's effective work in partnership and to its own efforts. 

Page 30



Corporate Assessment What has been achieved?  25

Leeds City Council 

Sustainable communities and transport 

62 The Council has a good strategic approach to sustainable communities, 
focussing with its partners on moving up a league economically and narrowing 
the gap between its best performing and most deprived areas. This is consistent 
with the long-standing ‘Vision for Leeds’. It has set ambitious targets for moving 
its already thriving economy up a league and taking its place amongst the top 
performing European cities; although how this will be measured has yet to be 
defined. At a national and regional level, the Council is helping to develop the 
profile of the region and it has gained support with partners for Leeds as the 
driver and focus of the city region’s economy with successful outcomes including 
the sale of the Leeds/Bradford airport.

63 Employment levels in Leeds are high with 59,000 new jobs created in Leeds in 
the last decade. This reflects a 15 per cent increase which is above the national 
average. Income levels are high relative to other core cities and increasing. This 
reflects the strong record of the city in attracting new employers in both the public 
and private sectors. Gross Value Added to the economy has increased above 
national average levels, and levels of multiple deprivation are also reducing as a 
result.

64 The Council and partners have not yet made a significant impact on their target to 
reduce worklessness. The number of people on key working age benefits has not 
come down in the most deprived areas. The Council has established 
commissioning arrangements with partners to target the key groups and areas, 
based on shared detailed analysis. There are examples of best practice of 
working with the private sector such as the job guarantee scheme agreed with 
retail employers. The Council has shown leadership through initiatives such as 
the Contact Leeds Academy which trains and employs long-term unemployed 
people in its call centre. Actions such as these are starting to have an impact but 
long term worklessness remains a key issue for the city. 

65 The Council has made good progress towards the decent homes standard, and is 
being proactive in addressing the needs of a growing and increasingly diverse 
population. The Arms Length Management Organisations (ALMOs) for housing 
are working well with the Council on ambitious regeneration schemes such as the 
East and South East Leeds project (EASEL). Although the Council is achieving 
targets in line with its housing and planning strategies, affordable housing 
remains a challenge, particularly in the more prosperous areas of the city. The 
Council has revised its Supporting People strategy to ensure the needs of 
vulnerable people can be met. However, progress in moving people from 
temporary accommodation is slow. Residents’ satisfaction with the Council on 
housing remains in the bottom quartile and satisfaction has declined steeply 
amongst the BME community. However, overall the Council is meeting need for 
most.

Page 31



26 Corporate Assessment What has been achieved?

Leeds City Council 

66 The Council recognises the importance of the private sector to the continuing 
prosperity of the city. The stock of businesses registered for VAT increased by 
4.7 per cent and has played a significant role in attracting new businesses to 
invest. It has also recognised the role it can play in reducing burdens on 
business, for example by procurement geared to local businesses. While its own 
planning performance has been significantly below average it has recently 
invested in this area and performance has improved to just below the national 
average. The majority of private sector investment has been in the city centre, 
and this has not always benefited more deprived communities. However, over the 
past two years this has changed, through the City Growth Initiative, and now 
through the Local Enterprise Growth Initiative programme. These programmes 
target investment in enterprise at the most deprived communities across the city 
for example, in Gipton. The Construction Leeds Partnership has helped train over 
250 local people with 56 being placed into jobs, and over 650 local people have 
been helped into work in the health sector by the Council and NHS Trusts 
working in partnership. 

67 Public sector investment in Leeds is helping to reshape communities affected by 
deprivation. Six primary care schemes have been completed under local 
improvement finance trust arrangements (LIFT) across the city with a further six 
to be completed in 2008. The Council is working closely with Yorkshire Forward 
on major housing, transport and business developments in Holbeck Urban Village 
and Aire Valley.

68 The Council is making adequate progress on environmental issues and climate 
change. It is developing a strategic approach to creating a sustainable 
environment in the city but this is at an early stage. It has a waste strategy in 
place, an approach to climate change is being developed and it signed the 
Nottingham Declaration in June 2006. However, it has not yet embedded 
sustainability into its planning processes. There has been good impact on 
reducing waste and steady progress with recycling but this still remains bottom 
quartile when compared to other councils. Green spaces in the city have received 
significant investment, particularly parks, resulting in increased visitor numbers 
and improved satisfaction. Air quality has improved. 

69 There is a good focus on cultural activity and facilities. This builds on established 
venues and events with a national reputation such as the West Yorkshire 
Playhouse and Leeds International Pianoforte Competition, and now reflects the 
diversity of the city's population. Over £150 million in capital investment is now 
underway, including the refurbishment of the City Museum and plans for an 
Arena while the relocation of the Royal Armouries was the first by a major 
national collection. Marketing Leeds is the city’s destination marketing agency, 
created by a partnership between the public and private sectors and it is 
achieving success in marketing the city on the basis of its cultural and leisure 
attractions, as well as its retail strength. As a result, the city is increasingly seen 
as an attractive destination for visits and stays. 

Page 32



Corporate Assessment What has been achieved?  27

Leeds City Council 

70 The Council has worked well with partners to integrate its planning around 
transportation with some good outcomes. It has secured private sector 
investment for the East Leeds link road, and has an effective private sector 
partnership for highway design. Over 100,000 people commute into the city each 
working day, and there has been a good focus on improving their journey by the 
city and neighbouring councils. The inner ring road is now nearing completion. 
There has been significant investment in Leeds Central Station. Use of bus 
priority lanes is extensive on key routes. As a result, there has been improvement 
in the use of public transport, although there remains a recognised need to 
develop the public transport strategy further in the wake of the bid for a 
‘Supertram’ being rejected. The Council has further plans developed to meet 
these future challenges, for example by bus-only routes to link the Aire Valley 
with neighbouring deprived areas, and through giving priority to multi-passenger 
car use on the East Leeds Link. 

Safer and stronger communities 

71 The Council and its partners have made significant progress in the reduction of 
crime and the fear of crime. There is a strategic approach to safer and stronger 
communities which is clear and outlined in community and Council priorities. The 
Council has taken a leading role in helping to reduce crime. This has resulted in 
86 per cent of crime indicators improving and overall crime has reduced by 23.6 
per cent over the last three years, although crime still remains high when 
compared nationally. This is reflected in the fear of crime which although reducing 
remains slightly above the national average.  

72 The Council and its partners understand the impact of its services on the delivery 
of community safety priorities and outcomes. This has been achieved by targeting 
resources to specific areas and effective integrated working with police and other 
agencies. The Leeds Safety Team is an integrated team of Council and police 
staff which focuses resources, effectively sharing data while ensuring all Council 
and police services work together to support community safety. Another example 
is Operation Champion which targeted high priority areas and local communities 
in reducing criminal activity and antisocial behaviour by addressing key 
environmental issues over a three day period in a partnership. This has resulted 
in a reduction in criminal activity in all the 17 community areas targeted. 

Page 33



28 Corporate Assessment What has been achieved?

Leeds City Council 

73 Partnership working and a targeted approach have resulted in reductions in crime 
and increase in reassurance. The latest residents' survey shows that people feel 
safer with a seven per cent increase in people feeling safer walking alone at night 
and less people are concerned with anti social behaviour. The city centre is 
covered by a comprehensive CCTV system which has contributed to a reduction 
in incidents while many of the city's car parks meet the safer car parks standard. 
Responding to residents' consultations, the Council has worked closely with the 
police introducing Police Community Support Officers (PCSOs).There are 
currently 392 PCSOs of which 170 are funded by the Council. They have been 
involved in dealing with 3,175 incidents, spending 85 per cent of their time 
working in local communities. The Council has implemented a scheme which has 
helped support the victims of crime, reduce burglary and identified vulnerable 
people. A dedicated officer has given practical support and advice on replacing 
locks and improving security to almost 3000 properties. These schemes not only 
support the victims of crime but also helped reduce burglary by 50 per cent since 
2003/04.

74 The Council and its partners have good arrangements in place to deliver 
initiatives to reduce antisocial behaviour (ASB) which is a clear priority in the 
Safer Leeds strategy and is resulting in positive outcomes. The most recent 
residents' survey indicates that residents feel the level of ASB is reducing after a 
number of years of increases. Good partnership working and community 
engagement was recognised when Leeds became a Respect Action Area in 2006 
giving the Council more resources to increase enforcement and family support. A 
dedicated antisocial behaviour unit has led and developed extensive partnership 
working and community engagement. Activities are based around prevention, 
enforcement and victim support which demonstrates that a rounded approach to 
ASB is in place illustrated by the effective use of ASBOs. There is also a range of 
prevention schemes for example, an alley-gating scheme and investment in 
improved street lighting. The Council have an ASB dedicated hotline which has 
received 6,500 calls since April 2005 and is helping to target activity and provide 
effective response to individuals, partner agencies and local communities. 
Acceptable behaviour contracts are also used avoiding the need for further action 
in many cases.

Page 34



Corporate Assessment What has been achieved?  29

Leeds City Council 

75 The Council has introduced several initiatives which are having a positive impact 
for those effected by drug and alcohol abuse. There is a good understanding of 
local needs and partners in the Drug and Alcohol teams to co-ordinate activity in 
line with clear targets set out in the Safer Leeds strategy. A Drug Intervention 
Programme was set up in 2003 and over 3,800 people have accessed the 
programme with 79 per cent retained in treatment for over twelve weeks. There is 
specific targeting of vulnerable groups such as fast tracking prostitutes into the 
programme. Access to intensive support from a support worker and offender 
manager is available for those who continue to commit crime and this is reducing 
re-offending. The Council and partners have targeted alcohol related violence in 
the city centre including extending the existing pub watch scheme, taxi marshals 
and better late night transport resulting in a 19 per cent reduction in alcohol 
related violent crime. The Council has recently developed an alcohol misuse 
strategy for 2007-2010 which ensures that the existing multi agency approach 
which articulates the Prevention, Control and Treatment strategy and delivery 
mechanisms and links to 'well being' strategies integrating the activities of the 
Council and its partners.  

76 Good progress is being made on improving road safety. The number of people 
killed or seriously injured on Leeds' roads is the lowest since 1987 and has 
reduced by 22 per cent since 2001. The Council through a variety of schemes 
has succeeded in reducing child casualties and is on track to achieve its 2010 
target. The targeted campaign in primary and secondary schools where accident 
rates were particularly high has been successful and has reduced by around  
50 per cent with the programme now being taken up by other schools in the city. 

77 Up to date and well resourced emergency arrangements are in place working 
across the Council and partners, which were fully tested in recent flooding. There 
are good co-ordinating activities and evacuation arrangements with the business 
community as part of its voice alert system to avoid traffic build up during an 
emergency. The Council published award winning guidance which resulted in a 
good response during the floods. It works with other partners in West Yorkshire in 
developing the Community Risk Register. This is backed up by a Leeds-wide 
register which links directly to the Council's operational and strategic risk register 
and ensures an integrated approach to Council and community risk. 

78 The Council has a strong and progressive approach to building community 
cohesion. There are policies and procedures in place for addressing 
disadvantage and the Council uses community engagement to inform its 
approach to building stronger communities. The Council is developing its 
approach to monitoring and measurement and has published a report on 
progress in strengthening community cohesion illustrating many positive 
outcomes. Other positive outcomes include the Community and Civic Pride 
awards, the streets are cleaner with one disadvantaged local community winning 
Silver Gilt Award in the 2007 Britain in Bloom. There is a positive response to 
safer communities with the Council and its partners' approach to arrests 
connected with the London bombings with public reassurance, communication 
and positive engagement with local communities. This has had an ongoing 
positive impact and there were no major public order/racial incidents after the 
arrests.

Page 35



30 Corporate Assessment What has been achieved?

Leeds City Council 

Healthier communities

79 There is not a consistent approach to reducing health inequalities across the city. 
Whilst there are good plans in place services are not consistently provided across 
the city, partnership working at a strategic level is under developed and there has 
yet to be an impact on reducing health inequalities. For example the gap in life 
expectancy between the wealthiest and poorest communities has slightly 
widened over the last ten years. Overall many health indicators are average when 
compared nationally but this disguises significant inequalities in the most 
deprived areas. Priorities are focussed on tackling these inequalities and are 
reflected in the Leeds Health and Well being plan, Council's corporate plan and 
LAA. Specific vulnerable groups have been identified in areas of deprivation and 
although there are many initiatives these have yet to show a significant impact.

80 The Council and its health partners are currently developing their strategic 
approach to partnership working. The city is now served by one primary care trust 
(PCT), replacing five, which is now facilitating interagency working and starting to 
develop from a low base a strategic and consistent city wide approach to health 
care. The Healthy Leeds partnership provides strategic direction and shared 
priorities are clear. These are articulated in the Leeds Health and Well being plan 
which is linked to the Council's corporate priorities and the vision for Leeds. Plans 
are based on a detailed assessment of needs, shared data and research which is 
targeting action. There are five clear priority areas supported by detailed 
strategies linking both to the Council's and partnerships' detailed plans. The 
Council and PCT have recognised the need to strengthen commissioning and a 
new joint commissioning approach not possible under the previous configuration 
of PCTs is planned. This is intended to re-focus services and better target 
resources to those in need in the future. 

81 There is a range of initiatives to promote healthy lifestyles which is improving the 
health of some targeted groups. The Council has developed capacity in the 
voluntary sector supporting a network of 43 neighbourhood schemes across the 
city many with a specific health improvement focus. There are good examples 
where hard to reach groups including BME are targeted using these schemes 
which is starting to impact on better health. The Council is working with the PCT 
to produce a unified approach to community development, so services are 
consistent and are provided where needed. It is taking a systematic approach to 
promoting healthy lifestyles in its children's services with positive outcomes. It is 
also improving decent homes, participation in physical activity by children and 
access to better heating for vulnerable elderly residents. 

Page 36



Corporate Assessment What has been achieved?  31

Leeds City Council 

82 There is a proactive approach to improving some areas of poor health including 
smoking cessation. There has been significant progress with 31 per cent increase 
in people quitting smoking and there is a high degree of compliance with the 
Health Improvement and Protection Bill. There has also been good progress in 
reducing obesity in children and young people. However, there are some areas of 
health where progress has been slow; for example, there is limited success in 
reducing teenage pregnancies which are higher than the national average. There 
is a strategic approach to mental health with good engagement with users in 
developing a shared vision and planning service delivery but this has yet to be 
embedded.  

83 Partnership working is good in many operational areas. There are a number of 
new co-located teams and joint posts in children's services to support joint 
working and policy development while adult services are moving towards a 
similar model. There are a range of services provided in partnership including 
mental health services for children which has had positive outcomes and good 
links to the Youth Offending Service to facilitate prompt referral. There are  
23 Children's centres with a further 27 planned to be completed in 2008 providing 
multi disciplinary family support with centre based and outreach services. The 
Council has been pro-active in using the voluntary sector to increase capacity 
such as the eight dementia cafes which enable better access to health and social 
care. This demonstrates a commitment by the Council and its partners to a 
shared agenda to tackling health issues in a co-ordinated way.

Older people

84 There is good provision of adult social care with the service rated as two-star 
(good) by the social care inspectorate. With specific reference to older people, 
the primary focus has been targeted at care for the most vulnerable older people, 
and this has been enhanced by the necessary, but difficult decision to re-assess 
the eligibility criteria in order to use available resources for this group more 
effectively.

85 The consequence of this is that the Council and its partners have not developed a 
strategic approach to people over 50 years which goes beyond health and social 
care. Consequently, much of the very good work which is currently benefiting 
older people is having less impact than it could. Although it is encouraging that 
there are three older people's champions representing the three main political 
groups, their impact is also reduced because there is no agreed strategy to guide 
their respective roles. The Council has not evaluated the cover provided by the 
voluntary sector and other partners and is therefore not in a position to know if 
provision is consistent across the city. This is also hindering negotiations over 
financial support for the sector and highlights the lack of a strategic approach for 
older people. 

Page 37



32 Corporate Assessment What has been achieved?

Leeds City Council 

86 The Council and its partners have delivered good outcomes against its ambitions 
to promote and support the independence of older people. In the city,  
99.5 per cent of service users are supported and maintain independent living. 
Stretching targets to improve the take up of direct payments from a low base 
have been built into the new business plan. The Keeping House project, involving 
older people, has resulted in over 2000 older residents receiving practical support 
for basic domestic chores such as shopping and gardening, from a range of 
voluntary and quality assured private providers. The number of supported 
housing units has increased, increasing access to independent living. 

87 Partnership working, especially with the voluntary sector, is a key strength and is 
playing a full role in supporting older people through a range of services. 
Examples include the neighbourhood networks, which are supported by  
£1.7 million investment by the Council. There are lunch clubs and cultural and 
social activities to support older people in the community and improve their 
quality of life.

88 The Council has a good approach to engagement with older people and involving 
them in service development through various means such as the Older People's 
Forum and the Older People's Reference Group. A significant investment, in 
excess of £300,000 over three years, has enabled older people to provide the 
Council with feedback on issues which are important to them. This involved using 
a range of consultation methods which led to the Council being part of the Link 
Age pilot programme providing good access to information. As a result the 
Council knows what is important to older people and is shaping its service around 
effective engagement. For example, the Leeds Dignity Campaign used inputs 
from older residents in its successful bid to access £1 million of dignity in care 
funding for older residents in care homes with the condition that residents decide 
how the money is spent. 

89 Services provided through partnership with the health sector are improving and 
the primary care trust now employs a health specialist for older people which is 
helping integrate service provision. The Heart Watch scheme is embedded in 
some of the Council’s leisure centres which has resulted in four million visits last 
year. Healthy Being Centres have been placed in community centres and there is 
joint commissioning for the Cardiac Phase 3 preventative project, mainly for 
males aged 50+ at risk of myocardial infarction.

90 There has been an increase in the range of intergenerational activities through 
the Neighbourhoods for all Ages project which has largely been driven by older 
people’s groups and particularly in BME groups where actions are supporting 
community cohesion. The Council has developed the ‘Building Bridges’ 
intergenerational programme in twenty of its schools - recognition of which has 
resulted in it winning a 2007 Euro-cities award. 

Page 38



Corporate Assessment What has been achieved?  33

Leeds City Council 

Children and young people 

91 Outcomes for children and young people in Leeds are good because of the 
impact of recent and rapid improvements. Standards at Key Stages 1 and 2 are in 
line both with similar authorities and national averages. There were considerable 
improvements in attainment at Key Stage 3 in 2006, and the average points score 
in all three core subjects increased. GCSE results continue to improve. The 
proportion of students achieving five or more GCSEs at grades A* to C is 
increasing faster than nationally and is now in line with that found in similar 
authorities. However, despite this, many young people are still leaving school 
without any GCSE passes. Attainment at AS and A-level is low in around  half of 
schools with sixth forms and in the tertiary college.

92 Service management in Leeds is good. Recently introduced innovative Children’s 
Trust arrangements have stepped up the pace of change and improvement. The 
team of senior leaders and managers is determined and energetic, with a clear 
shared vision and long-term strategy. Services are characterised by high levels of 
staff commitment. A significant number of new strategies have been introduced. 
These are being implemented effectively and good early progress is being made. 
Key joint appointments, between health and children’s services, have 
strengthened joint working and ‘locality enablers’ are supporting multi-disciplinary 
arrangements on a more local level. Good performance management systems 
are being developed that align with those of partner agencies. Effective joint 
commissioning strategies are ensuring value for money. 

93 The combined work of all local services in securing the health of children and 
young people is good overall. CAMHS offer good support to vulnerable groups, 
including looked after children and those with learning difficulties and/or 
disabilities. Good links between CAMHS and the youth offending service facilitate 
prompt referral and treatment of young offenders with mental health needs. An 
effective Healthy Schools programme has achieved Beacon status. Most schools 
provide a good range of sports activities. National targets to reduce the number of 
mothers smoking at the time of delivery have been met. Rates of teenage 
pregnancy are high. 

94 Children and young people appear safe and arrangements to ensure this are 
adequate and improving. The LSCB is developing well and partnership working is 
increasing. All children on the child protection register are allocated qualified 
social workers. The quality of reviews varies and some core assessments are not 
produced within the required timeframes. The number of looked after children and 
young people has remained steady following a significant earlier increase in 
unaccompanied asylum seeking children. Placement stability for looked after 
children is good. The number of children in residential care is low and compliance 
with national standards in children’s homes has improved recently.

Page 39



34 Corporate Assessment What has been achieved?

Leeds City Council 

95 The impact of all local services in helping children and young people to enjoy 
their education and to achieve well is good overall. School improvement work is 
effective and focused. Early years provision continues to be a strength. There has 
been a considerable reduction in the number of permanent exclusions from 
school. A wide range of innovative strategies have been introduced to improve 
attendance and there is evidence of improvement, although the number of 
unauthorised absences in secondary schools remains too high. There is a very 
good range of recreational activities and voluntary learning provision for young 
people to enjoy. 

96 The impact of all local services in helping children and young people to contribute 
to society is good. Leeds has been at the forefront of a number of initiatives to 
support the personal and social development of young people. A well-established 
and effective mentoring scheme is in place to support children and young people 
from disadvantaged areas and from minority ethnic backgrounds. The Investors 
in Pupils Award and the Stephen Lawrence Educational Standard both originated 
in Leeds and are nationally recognised for developing engagement and 
supporting cultural change. Very good efforts are made to involve young people 
who are traditionally hard to reach. The number of anti-social behaviour orders 
has been more than halved over the last three years. The number of first-time 
offenders is falling, but there is still a high proportion of looked after children and 
young people involved in the youth justice system. 

97 The impact of all local services in helping children and young people achieve 
economic well-being is adequate. There are clear signs of improvement in some 
areas of work. There is very good support for families. Childcare provision is 
expanding at a faster rate than in comparable authorities. Partnership working 
and collaboration is very good at 14 to 16 but less well developed at 16 to 18. 
Good progress has been made with the online prospectus and common 
applications. The integrated youth service is re-engaging many young people in 
education, employment and training, improving attendance and raising 
attainment. The proportion of young people aged 16 to 18 in education, 
employment and training improved by 5 per cent in 2007, a figure greater than 
the national average. The proportion of young people not in education, 
employment and training whilst reducing is high for 19 year olds, young people 
with learning difficulties and/or disabilities, and for some Black and minority ethnic 
groups. Good progress has been made on providing decent housing for children 
and young people, and Leeds has an excellent record for providing suitable 
accommodation for care leavers. 

98 The capacity of council services to improve is good. The council made a bold but 
considered decision in creating innovative management arrangements for 
children’s services. These arrangements are strong and are beginning to have a 
positive impact so that, although many outcomes for children and young people 
are currently at or below national expectations, the overall trajectory is very 
positive. Recent improvement rates have been rapid and are better than those of 
statistical neighbours in many areas of service provision. 

Page 40



Corporate Assessment Appendix 1 – Framework for Corporate Assessment  35

Leeds City Council 

Appendix 1 – Framework for Corporate 
Assessment

1 This corporate assessment was carried out under section 10 of the Local 
Government Act 1999, under which the Audit Commission has power to inspect 
local authorities’ arrangements for securing continuous improvement. The results 
of the corporate assessment contribute to the determination of the overall CPA 
category for an authority, which the Audit Commission is required to assess and 
report on under section 99 of the Local Government Act 2003. 

2 The Council’s self assessment provided a key resource in focusing the 
assessment activity which included consideration of: 

 key documentation, including the Council’s improvement plan; 

 updated performance indicators and performance data; and 

 interviews and meetings attended. 

3 The assessment for Leeds City Council was undertaken by a team from the Audit 
Commission and took place over the period from 3 to 14 December 2007. 

4 This report has been discussed with the Council, which has been given the 
opportunity to examine the Audit Commission’s assessment. This report will be 
used as the basis for improvement planning by the Council. 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 2
0
0
8
  

 

Is
s
u
e
 

P
la
n
 w
it
h
in
 

w
h
ic
h
 a
c
ti
o
n
 s
it
s
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 A
p
ri
l 
0
8
 

C
O
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 
R
A
G
 

s
ta
tu
s
 

A
m
b
it
io
n
 

N
o
 c
le
a
r 
m
e
a
s
u
ra
b
le
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

a
m
b
it
io
n
 o
f 
b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 a
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
E
u
ro
p
e
a
n
 c
it
y
. 

 

V
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
L
e
e
d
s
, 
L
e
e
d
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
8
-1
1
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 L
e
e
d
s
 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 s
e
t 
u
p
 a
 n
e
w
 L
e
e
d
s
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
 

G
o
in
g
 u
p
 a
 L
e
a
g
u
e
 B
o
a
rd
 w
h
o
s
e
 r
e
m
it
 

is
 t
o
 d
ri
v
e
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 

m
e
e
t 
o
u
r 
a
im
 t
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 a
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 

E
u
ro
p
e
a
n
 c
it
y
. 
 T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 m
e
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

fi
rs
t 
ti
m
e
 i
n
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
8
 c
h
a
ir
e
d
 b
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
A
n
d
re
w
 C
a
rt
e
r,
 L
e
a
d
e
r,
 

L
e
e
d
s
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
  
It
 h
a
s
 o
n
 i
t 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 a
ll 
th
re
e
 m
a
in
 

p
o
lit
ic
a
l 
p
a
rt
ie
s
; 
th
e
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

a
n
d
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 C
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
; 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r;
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 V
ic
e
 C
h
a
n
c
e
llo
rs
 o
f 
b
o
th
 

u
n
iv
e
rs
it
ie
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 i
ts
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 w
ill
 

c
h
a
m
p
io
n
 t
h
is
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 a
n
d
 i
n
 d
ri
v
in
g
 

th
e
 c
it
y
's
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 g
o
in
g
 u
p
 a
 

le
a
g
u
e
 a
n
d
 b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 a
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 

E
u
ro
p
e
a
n
 c
it
y
. 
 I
t 
w
ill
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 i
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 

m
e
a
s
u
ra
b
le
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 

 

K
a
th
y
 K
u
d
e
ln
it
z
k
y
 

 

Page 43



Is
s
u
e
 

P
la
n
 w
it
h
in
 

w
h
ic
h
 a
c
ti
o
n
 s
it
s
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 A
p
ri
l 
0
8
 

C
O
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 
R
A
G
 

s
ta
tu
s
 

P
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 

N
o
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

•
 
In
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 o
f 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
 r
o
le
. 

•
 
C
a
ll
-i
n
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

a
re
 n
o
t 
a
s
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a
s
 

th
e
y
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
. 

  

A
ll 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
s
id
e
 w
it
h
in
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

P
la
n
 2
0
0
8
-1
1
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 
tr
a
in
in
g
 f
o
r 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
 t
o
 b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

 R
e
v
is
e
d
 C
a
ll 
In
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
g
re
e
d
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
  

 

N
ic
k
 D
e
 L
a
 T
a
s
te
 

 

L
a
c
k
 o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
. 
N
o
 l
in
k
s
 w
it
h
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
. 

 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 W

o
rk
fo
rc
e
 P
la
n
n
in
g
  

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
  
a
n
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

a
n
d
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 n
e
w
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
. 
 W

o
rk
fo
rc
e
 p
la
n
s
 b
e
in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 l
o
c
a
lly
 a
n
d
 c
o
lla
te
d
 t
o
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
. 
  

 C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
(R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
) 

to
 t
a
k
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
, 
 f
o
llo
w
e
d
 

b
y
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

re
p
o
rt
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
 i
n
 J
u
n
e
. 
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 j
o
in
e
d
 u
p
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 t
o
 

lin
k
 t
o
 I
C
T
 B
lu
e
 p
ri
n
t 
a
n
d
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

P
la
n
n
in
g
. 

 

L
o
rr
a
in
e
 H
a
lla
m
 

 

Page 44



Is
s
u
e
 

P
la
n
 w
it
h
in
 

w
h
ic
h
 a
c
ti
o
n
 s
it
s
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 A
p
ri
l 
0
8
 

C
O
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 
R
A
G
 

s
ta
tu
s
 

P
e
rs
o
n
n
e
l 
p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
re
 

s
o
m
e
ti
m
e
s
 l
o
c
a
lly
 i
n
te
rp
re
te
d
 

 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 n
e
w
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
: 
 

•
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 P
o
lic
y
 

•
 

M
a
n
a
g
in
g
 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 P
o
lic
y
 

•
 

P
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
a
ry
 P
e
ri
o
d
s
 

•
 

P
re
-e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
m
e
d
ic
a
ls
 

•
 

S
m
o
k
in
g
 P
o
lic
y
 

•
 

H
IV
 a
n
d
 A
id
s
 P
o
lic
y
 

•
 

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
  

T
h
e
 G
ri
e
v
a
n
c
e
, 
D
is
c
ip
lin
a
ry
 a
n
d
 

R
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
re
 n
e
a
ri
n
g
 

c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
ig
n
 o
ff
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 T
ra
d
e
 

U
n
io
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 H
R
 I
n
tr
a
n
e
t 
P
a
g
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

u
p
d
a
te
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 s
in
g
le
 v
e
rs
io
n
 a
n
d
 

v
e
rs
io
n
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
p
o
lic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
ll 
H
R
 

te
a
m
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 t
ra
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 

p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
re
 r
o
lli
n
g
 o
u
t 
to
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
. 

 O
n
e
 H
R
 r
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 

fo
r 
J
u
n
e
 0
8
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 i
n
te
rv
ie
w
s
 o
f 
a
ll 

H
R
 s
ta
ff
. 
 T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
H
R
 A
d
m
in
 i
n
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 C
e
n
tr
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
. 
 A
n
 H
R
 i
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 w
ill
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
0
8
. 

L
o
rr
a
in
e
 H
a
lla
m
 

 

Page 45



Is
s
u
e
 

P
la
n
 w
it
h
in
 

w
h
ic
h
 a
c
ti
o
n
 s
it
s
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 A
p
ri
l 
0
8
 

C
O
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 
R
A
G
 

s
ta
tu
s
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

L
a
c
k
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 f
o
r 

re
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 s
e
tt
in
g
 o
f 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
ta
rg
e
ts
 a
n
d
 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
. 

 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 

N
e
w
 S
e
n
io
r 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 c
o
re
 c
o
m
p
e
te
n
c
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 g
re
a
te
r 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 p
ilo
te
d
 w
it
h
 

D
ir
e
c
to
rs
 n
o
w
 b
e
in
g
 r
o
lle
d
 o
u
t 
to
 C
h
ie
f 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
. 
M
id
d
le
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 

b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 f
o
r 
A
u
tu
m
n
 2
0
0
8
. 

L
o
rr
a
in
e
 H
a
lla
m
 

 

P
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
la
n
s
 

w
a
s
 i
n
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
u
p
 u
n
ti
l 
th
is
 

y
e
a
r,
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 e
m
b
e
d
d
in
g
 o
f 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

c
u
lt
u
re
 i
s
 y
e
t 
to
 h
a
p
p
e
n
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 h
e
ld
 F
e
b
/M
a
rc
h
 0
8
. 
 

Q
u
a
lit
y
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 i
n
 M
a
y
 0
8
 

w
it
h
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 C
L
T
 

S
te
v
e
 C
lo
u
g
h
 

 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

N
o
t 
y
e
t 
m
a
d
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 o
u
r 
ta
rg
e
t 
to
 

re
d
u
c
e
 w
o
rk
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
. 

 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

L
e
e
d
s
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
* 

C
it
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 g
ro
u
p
 o
n
 

w
o
rk
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
. 
T
a
rg
e
ts
 t
o
 

re
d
u
c
e
 w
o
rk
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 L
A
A
. 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 b
e
in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 g
ro
u
p
 

to
 d
e
liv
e
r 
L
A
A
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

S
te
p
h
e
n
 B
o
y
le
 

  

 

A
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 a
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

m
o
re
 p
ro
s
p
e
ro
u
s
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 

th
e
 c
it
y
. 

 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

L
e
e
d
s
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

2
0
0
5
/0
6
 –
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

E
m
e
rg
in
g
 R
S
S
 i
s
 s
e
tt
in
g
 m

o
re
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

ta
rg
e
ts
..
 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 l
o
o
k
in
g
 t
o
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
l 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

re
fl
e
c
ti
n
g
 t
h
is
, 
o
n
c
e
 R
S
S
 a
d
o
p
te
d
. 

S
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ry
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 G
u
id
a
n
c
e
 

w
h
ic
h
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 f
o
r 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie
w
. 

 

P
a
u
l 
L
a
n
g
fo
rd
 

 

Page 46



Is
s
u
e
 

P
la
n
 w
it
h
in
 

w
h
ic
h
 a
c
ti
o
n
 s
it
s
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 A
p
ri
l 
0
8
 

C
O
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 
R
A
G
 

s
ta
tu
s
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
n
 m

o
v
in
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

fr
o
m
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 s
lo
w
. 

 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

L
e
e
d
s
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

2
0
0
5
/0
6
 –
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 b
y
 5
0
%
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 i
n
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
0
. 
 

T
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 

a
re
 i
n
v
a
ri
a
b
ly
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

th
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
 

N
I1
4
1
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 L
A
A
 w
it
h
 a
 

s
tr
e
tc
h
 t
a
rg
e
t 
o
f 
7
6
%
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 m

o
v
e
-

o
n
s
 b
y
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

6
0
%
. 
 I
n
te
n
s
iv
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

w
o
rk
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 h
a
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
N
I1
4
1
 f
ro
m
 5
5
%
 

in
 Q
1
 0
7
/0
8
 t
o
 6
4
%
 i
n
 Q
4
 0
7
/0
8
 a
n
d
 i
t 

is
 b
e
lie
v
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 w
ill
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
x
t 
th
re
e
 y
e
a
rs
. 
 T
h
e
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t
o
 

th
e
 p
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r 
le
a
s
e
d
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 
T
E
A
S
, 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 c
o
m
p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 t
e
n
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 a
n
 

e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
b
e
in
g
 a
b
le
 t
o
 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
y
 w
ill
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 

to
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
to
 r
e
d
u
c
e
  
te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

P
a
u
l 
L
a
n
g
fo
rd
 

 

R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
’ 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
o
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 i
s
 

b
o
tt
o
m
 q
u
a
rt
ile
 a
n
d
 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 f
a
lle
n
 s
te
e
p
ly
 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

L
e
e
d
s
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

2
0
0
5
/0
6
 –
 2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
d
e
c
re
a
s
e
d
 B
M
E
 t
e
n
a
n
t 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 a
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 B
V
 

U
s
e
r 
S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 S
u
rv
e
y
 2
0
0
6
, 
a
 m
o
re
 

d
e
ta
ile
d
 s
u
rv
e
y
 o
n
 B
M
E
 t
e
n
a
n
ts
 

P
a
u
l 
L
a
n
g
fo
rd
 

 

Page 47



Is
s
u
e
 

P
la
n
 w
it
h
in
 

w
h
ic
h
 a
c
ti
o
n
 s
it
s
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 A
p
ri
l 
0
8
 

C
O
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 
R
A
G
 

s
ta
tu
s
 

a
m
o
n
g
s
t 
th
e
 B
M
E
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
. 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 i
n
 A
u
g
 0
8
. 
 T
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
w
ill
 

b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
te
n
a
n
ts
 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
 i
n
 2
0
0
8
, 
re
p
o
rt
in
g
 

in
 e
a
rl
y
 2
0
0
9
. 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 

b
e
lo
w
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 b
u
t 
h
a
s
 

re
c
e
n
tl
y
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
. 

 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

L
o
c
a
l 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 

th
e
 b
a
c
k
lo
g
 o
f 
o
ld
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 W

e
 

h
a
v
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 ‘
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
’ 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 f
o
r 
m
a
jo
r 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 C
h
a
rt
e
r 
fo
r 
m
a
jo
r 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
. 
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
ll 
B
V
1
0
9
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
: 
 

2
0
0
7
/0
8
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 

y
e
a
r.
 

P
h
il 
C
ra
b
tr
e
e
 

 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 i
s
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 

e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 i
n
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 

 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

C
lim

a
te
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
* 
a
n
d
 L
o
c
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

A
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 f
o
r 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 A
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
o
f 

n
e
w
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
o
lic
y
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 
T
h
is
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t 

w
h
ic
h
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 j
u
d
g
e
d
 a
re
 

in
h
e
re
n
tl
y
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
. 
A
 S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

D
e
s
ig
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 S
P
D
 i
s
 

n
e
a
ri
n
g
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
. 
A
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
ro
m
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
ir
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
d
d
re
s
s
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 

is
s
u
e
s
 e
.g
. 
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

g
re
e
n
 t
ra
v
e
l 
p
la
n
s
  
 

P
h
il 
C
ra
b
tr
e
e
 

 

Page 48



Is
s
u
e
 

P
la
n
 w
it
h
in
 

w
h
ic
h
 a
c
ti
o
n
 s
it
s
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 A
p
ri
l 
0
8
 

C
O
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 
R
A
G
 

s
ta
tu
s
 

T
h
e
re
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 a
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lic
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r.
 

 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

W
e
s
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 L
o
c
a
l 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
6
-1
1
 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 c
o
re
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
e
s
 a
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 W

e
s
t 

Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 L
T
P
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p
u
b
lic
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
. 

 

•
 
Im

p
ro
v
e
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 

b
y
 m

a
k
in
g
 p
u
b
lic
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 m
o
re
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
. 

•
 
M
a
in
ta
in
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 p
u
b
lic
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 n
e
tw
o
rk
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 o
u
r 

b
u
s
 a
n
d
 r
a
il 
s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
. 
 

•
 
R
a
is
e
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
p
u
b
lic
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 a
n
d
 

ta
rg
e
t 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
. 

•
 
E
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 m
o
d
a
l 
s
w
it
c
h
 t
o
 

p
u
b
lic
 t
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 b
y
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 

m
o
re
 t
ra
v
e
l 
b
y
 b
u
s
 a
n
d
 r
a
il 
a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
in
g
 t
ic
k
e
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 

 M
e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

re
la
te
d
 t
o
 b
u
s
e
s
 a
re
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 i
n
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 M
e
tr
o
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 b
u
s
 

o
p
e
ra
to
rs
 a
n
d
 c
o
o
rd
in
a
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

L
e
e
d
s
 B
u
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 G
ro
u
p
. 
 A
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
L
T
P
2
 i
n
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 i
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 b
y
 

S
te
v
e
 S
p
e
a
k
 

 

Page 49



Is
s
u
e
 

P
la
n
 w
it
h
in
 

w
h
ic
h
 a
c
ti
o
n
 s
it
s
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 A
p
ri
l 
0
8
 

C
O
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 
R
A
G
 

s
ta
tu
s
 

th
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 g
ro
u
p
. 

 R
a
il 
m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 a
re
 l
e
d
 b
y
 M
e
tr
o
 a
n
d
 

in
v
o
lv
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

ra
il 
in
d
u
s
tr
y
. 
B
id
s
 a
re
 m
a
d
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 B
o
a
rd
 f
o
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 

to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
le
c
te
d
 r
a
il 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 S
a
fe
r 
a
n
d
 S
tr
o
n
g
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

C
ri
m
e
, 
a
n
d
 f
e
a
r 
o
f 
c
ri
m
e
, 

re
m
a
in
s
 h
ig
h
 w
h
e
n
 

c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
. 

 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

S
a
fe
r 
L
e
e
d
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

P
la
n
 2
0
0
8
-1
1
 

S
a
fe
r 
L
e
e
d
s
 h
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 i
ts
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 p
la
n
 2
0
0
8
/1
1
 w
it
h
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
8
/9
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
o
 

re
d
u
c
e
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 a
c
q
u
is
it
iv
e
 c
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
  

v
io
le
n
t 
c
ri
m
e
 w
h
ils
t 
im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic
 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
. 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 J
a
c
k
s
o
n
 

 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 H
e
a
lt
h
ie
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

In
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 

re
d
u
c
in
g
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

in
e
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

c
it
y
. 

 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 W

e
ll 
B
e
in
g
 

P
la
n
*,
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
6
-0
9
 a
n
d
 P
C
T
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
8
-1
1
 

T
h
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 s
e
ts
 o
u
t 
c
le
a
r 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
re
d
u
c
in
g
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
. 
T
a
rg
e
ts
 

fo
r 
k
e
y
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
e
t 
to
 

re
fl
e
c
t 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
o
rs
t 
1
0
%
 

S
O
A
’s
. 
N
e
w
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 l
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 a
n
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 b
u
ilt
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

B
o
a
rd
. 
 

 

Ia
n
 C
a
m
e
ro
n
 

S
a
n
d
ie
 K
e
e
n
e
 

R
o
s
e
m
a
ry
 A
rc
h
e
r 

 

Page 50



Is
s
u
e
 

P
la
n
 w
it
h
in
 

w
h
ic
h
 a
c
ti
o
n
 s
it
s
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 A
p
ri
l 
0
8
 

C
O
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 
R
A
G
 

s
ta
tu
s
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
o
rk
in
g
 a
t 
a
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 l
e
v
e
l 
is
 u
n
d
e
r-

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
. 

 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 W

e
ll 
B
e
in
g
 

P
la
n
*,
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
6
-0
9
 a
n
d
 P
C
T
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
8
-1
1
 

T
h
e
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 t
h
e
 J
o
in
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 B
o
a
rd
, 
a
n
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 s
u
b
-g
ro
u
p
s
 c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
p
a
n
 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
, 
re
fl
e
c
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
r’
s
 p
ri
o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
is
 n
e
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
f 
th
e
 b
o
a
rd
 i
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
8
, 
w
h
ils
t 
s
e
v
e
ra
l 
p
re
p
a
ra
to
ry
 

w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 h
e
ld
 a
n
d
 a
 

B
o
a
rd
 c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
. 
  

T
h
e
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 J
S
N
A
 a
ls
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 

s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
e
d
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
 

Ia
n
 C
a
m
e
ro
n
 

S
a
n
d
ie
 K
e
e
n
e
 

R
o
s
e
m
a
ry
 A
rc
h
e
r 

 

 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 n
o
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tl
y
 a
c
ro
s
s
 c
it
y
 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 W

e
ll 
B
e
in
g
 

P
la
n
*,
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
6
-0
9
 a
n
d
 P
C
T
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
8
-1
1
 

T
h
e
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 t
h
e
 J
o
in
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 B
o
a
rd
, 
a
n
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 s
u
b
-g
ro
u
p
s
 c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
p
a
n
 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
c
a
re
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
, 
re
fl
e
c
ts
 p
a
rt
n
e
r’
s
 p
ri
o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
is
 n
e
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
f 
th
e
 b
o
a
rd
 i
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
8
, 
w
h
ils
t 
s
e
v
e
ra
l 
p
re
p
a
ra
to
ry
 

w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 h
e
ld
 a
n
d
 a
 

B
o
a
rd
 c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
. 
  

T
h
e
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 J
S
N
A
 a
ls
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 

s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
e
d
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

Ia
n
 C
a
m
e
ro
n
 

S
a
n
d
ie
 K
e
e
n
e
 

R
o
s
e
m
a
ry
 A
rc
h
e
r 

 

 

Page 51



Is
s
u
e
 

P
la
n
 w
it
h
in
 

w
h
ic
h
 a
c
ti
o
n
 s
it
s
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 A
p
ri
l 
0
8
 

C
O
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 
R
A
G
 

s
ta
tu
s
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

L
im
it
e
d
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 a
t 
re
d
u
c
in
g
 

te
e
n
a
g
e
 c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 W

e
ll 
B
e
in
g
 

P
la
n
*,
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
6
-0
9
 a
n
d
 P
C
T
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
8
-1
1
 

A
ll 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 p
ic
k
e
d
 u
p
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
ly
 

a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 J
A
R
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
a
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 

re
p
o
rt
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

Ia
n
 C
a
m
e
ro
n
 

R
o
s
e
m
a
ry
 A
rc
h
e
r 

 

 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le
 

N
o
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 

p
e
o
p
le
 o
v
e
r 
5
0
. 

 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

C
o
h
e
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 

In
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 p
la
n
 2
0
0
8
 –
 

2
0
1
1
* 

“T
h
e
 
T
im
e
 
o
f 
O
u
r 
L
iv
e
s
” 
- 
th
e
 
d
ra
ft
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le
's
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 -
 

to
 
b
e
 
p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 
J
u
ly
 
0
8
 
- 
re
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 

th
is
 
is
s
u
e
 
a
n
d
 
fo
c
u
s
e
s
 
o
n
 
g
re
a
te
r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
is
 g
ro
u
p
 

 'T
h
e
 W

o
rk
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
 w
it
h
in
 O
ld
e
r 
B
e
tt
e
r;
 

T
a
c
k
lin
g
 

P
o
v
e
rt
y
, 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 

to
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
T
a
c
k
lin
g
 
S
o
c
ia
l 
Is
o
la
ti
o
n
, 

a
re
 b
e
in
g
 e
x
a
m
in
e
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 
5
0
+
 
a
n
d
 
a
c
ti
o
n
 
p
la
n
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
ly
. 

 T
h
e
 
In
te
rm

e
d
ia
te
 
T
ie
r 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 
is
 

a
im
in
g
 
to
 
e
ra
d
ic
a
te
 
th
e
 
6
5
+
 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

a
g
e
 b
a
rr
ie
r 
fo
r 
m
a
n
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 

m
a
k
e
 t
h
e
s
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 a
ll 
a
d
u
lt
s
 I
n
c
. 

5
0
+
 

W
o
rk
 
o
n
 
F
a
lls
 
P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 

e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 u
n
d
e
r 
6
5
 

S
a
n
d
ie
 K
e
e
n
e
 

 

Page 52



Is
s
u
e
 

P
la
n
 w
it
h
in
 

w
h
ic
h
 a
c
ti
o
n
 s
it
s
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 A
p
ri
l 
0
8
 

C
O
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 
R
A
G
 

s
ta
tu
s
 

 T
h
e
 D
ig
n
it
y
 i
n
 C
a
re
 c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 

e
x
te
n
d
e
d
  
to
 t
h
o
s
e
 u
n
d
e
r 
6
5
 

 E
m
e
rg
in
g
 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 
in
 

L
e
e
d
s
: 

 
L
IN
k
s
, 

a
n
d
 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
ils
 

e
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 
A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 
w
ill
 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 

ta
k
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 v
ie
w
s
 o
f 
th
o
s
e
 5
0
 

a
n
d
 o
v
e
r 

 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 

e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
v
e
r 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
a
n
d
 

o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 

w
e
 d
o
 n
o
t 
k
n
o
w
 i
f 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
s
 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
. 

 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
6
-0
9
 

a
n
d
 C
o
h
e
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 

In
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 p
la
n
 2
0
0
8
 –
 

2
0
1
1
* 

A
 j
o
in
t 
A
S
C
 &

 P
C
T
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 

th
e
 4
2
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 

N
e
tw
o
rk
 
S
c
h
e
m
e
s
 
(N
N
S
) 

fo
r 

O
P
 

b
e
g
a
n
 
in
 
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
. 
A
ll 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

a
re
 
in
v
o
lv
e
d
 
in
 
a
 
c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

to
 

a
g
re
e
 

fu
tu
re
 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 
&
 
m
o
d
e
ls
 
fo
r 
m
o
re
 

e
q
u
it
a
b
le
 

a
n
d
 

tr
a
n
s
p
a
re
n
t 

 
jo
in
t 

fu
n
d
in
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
  

 O
u
r 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 
is
 
to
 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 
c
le
a
r 

A
S
C
/P
C
T
 

jo
in
t 

v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 

s
e
c
to
r 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 
a
n
d
 
h
a
v
e
 
n
e
w
 
jo
in
t 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 
in
 
p
la
c
e
 
b
y
 
A
p
ri
l 
0
9
, 
to
 

d
e
liv
e
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 c
it
y
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 l
e
v
e
ls
 a
n
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
 
a
s
 
w
e
ll 

a
s
 
a
n
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

b
a
s
e
 

to
 

D
e
n
n
is
 H
o
lm
e
s
 

 

Page 53



Is
s
u
e
 

P
la
n
 w
it
h
in
 

w
h
ic
h
 a
c
ti
o
n
 s
it
s
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 A
p
ri
l 
0
8
 

C
O
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 
R
A
G
 

s
ta
tu
s
 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 

p
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 

T
o
o
 m
a
n
y
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

le
a
v
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
w
it
h
o
u
t 
a
n
y
 

G
C
S
E
 p
a
s
s
e
s
. 

 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
6
-0
9
 

a
n
d
 P
e
o
p
le
 C
e
n
tr
e
d
 

P
la
c
e
s
* 

A
ll 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 p
ic
k
e
d
 u
p
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
ly
 

a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 J
A
R
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
a
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 

re
p
o
rt
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

M
a
ri
a
n
a
 P
e
x
to
n
 

 

P
a
s
s
 r
a
te
s
 a
t 
A
S
 &
 A
2
 a
re
 

lo
w
 i
n
 s
o
m
e
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 

 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
6
-0
9
 

a
n
d
 P
e
o
p
le
 C
e
n
tr
e
d
 

P
la
c
e
s
* 

A
ll 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 p
ic
k
e
d
 u
p
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
ly
 

a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 J
A
R
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
a
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 

re
p
o
rt
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

M
a
ri
a
n
a
 P
e
x
to
n
 

 

Q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 

v
a
ri
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 c
o
re
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 n
o
t 

p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
s
. 

 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
6
-0
9
 

A
ll 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 p
ic
k
e
d
 u
p
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
ly
 

a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 J
A
R
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
a
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 

re
p
o
rt
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

E
d
w
in
a
 H
a
rr
is
o
n
 

 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
u
n
a
u
th
o
ri
s
e
d
 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 t
o
o
 h
ig
h
. 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
6
-0
9
 

a
n
d
 P
e
o
p
le
 C
e
n
tr
e
d
 

P
la
c
e
s
* 

A
ll 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 p
ic
k
e
d
 u
p
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
ly
 

a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 J
A
R
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
a
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 

re
p
o
rt
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

  

M
a
ri
a
n
a
 P
e
x
to
n
 

 

Page 54



Is
s
u
e
 

P
la
n
 w
it
h
in
 

w
h
ic
h
 a
c
ti
o
n
 s
it
s
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
P
o
s
it
io
n
 A
p
ri
l 
0
8
 

C
O
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
y
 
R
A
G
 

s
ta
tu
s
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 s
ti
ll 
a
 h
ig
h
 

p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
lo
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
th
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 

s
y
s
te
m
. 

 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
6
-0
9
 

A
ll 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 p
ic
k
e
d
 u
p
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
ly
 

a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 J
A
R
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
a
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 

re
p
o
rt
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

E
d
w
in
a
 H
a
rr
is
o
n
 

 

N
E
E
T
 i
s
 h
ig
h
 f
o
r 
1
9
 y
e
a
r 

o
ld
s
, 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

le
a
rn
in
g
 d
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 f
o
r 

s
o
m
e
 B
M
E
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 

 

L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 

2
0
0
8
-1
1
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
6
-0
9
 

a
n
d
 P
e
o
p
le
 C
e
n
tr
e
d
 

P
la
c
e
s
* 

A
ll 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
re
 p
ic
k
e
d
 u
p
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
ly
 

a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 J
A
R
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
a
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 

re
p
o
rt
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

M
a
ri
a
n
a
 P
e
x
to
n
 

 

* 
P
la
n
s
 i
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



D
ra
ft

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 -
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
 D
ra
ft
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 a
n
d
 T
a
rg
e
ts

R
e
f 
- 
s
e
e
 

k
e
y
 b
e
lo
w

I
n
d
ic
a
to
r

P
u
r
p
o
s
e
/
N
o
te
s

2
0
0
6
/
7

Y
e
a
r
 E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/
0
8
 

F
o
r
e
c
a
s
t

2
0
0
8
/
0
9

2
0
0
9
/
1
0

2
0
1
0
/
1
1

N
I 
1
8
5

C
O
2
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 f
ro
m
 L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s

T
h
is
 i
s
 a
n
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
fo
r 
th
e
 L
S
P
 b
u
t 
a
ls
o
 a
li
g
n
s
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
.

B
a
s
e
li
n
e

tb
c

tb
c

E
M
A
S

M
a
in
ta
in
 o
u
r 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 
E
M
A
S
 

a
c
c
re
d
it
a
ti
o
n

L
e
e
d
s
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 o
p
e
ra
te
s
 a
 ‘
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
’ 
to
 E
C
 E
c
o
-M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 A
u
d
it
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 (
E
M
A
S
) 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 N
o
. 
7
6
1
/2
0
0
1
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
is
s
u
e
s
 a
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 a
 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
a
n
d
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
m
a
n
n
e
r.
  
E
M
A
S
 i
s
 a
 m

u
c
h
 w
id
e
r 
m
e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
o
u
r 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
th
a
n
 t
h
e
 C
O
2
 

e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 b
io
d
iv
e
rs
it
y
, 
w
a
s
te
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 w
a
te
r 
u
s
a
g
e
 e
tc
. 
It
 i
s
 e
x
te
rn
a
ll
y
 a
c
c
re
d
it
e
d
 e
v
e
ry
 6
 

m
o
n
th
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

N
e
w

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm

 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

P
la
n

O
v
e
ra
ll
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
w
h
ic
h
 t
ra
c
k
s
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
e
 M
T
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
p
la
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 r
e
-a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 -
 t
h
is
 o
v
e
ra
ll
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 w
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 t
ra
c
k
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
ie
s
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 w
ri
tt
e
n
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 

p
la
n
. 
 T
h
e
 e
x
a
c
t 
m
e
a
s
u
re
 i
s
 s
ti
ll
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
.

C
A
A

U
s
e
 o
f 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 S
c
o
re

T
h
e
 s
c
o
p
e
 a
n
d
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 f
o
r 
th
is
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
re
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 i
n
 2
0
0
9
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 h
o
w
 w
e
ll
 w
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 a
ll
 o
u
r 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
s
 w
e
ll
 a
s
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
l.
  
T
h
e
 n
e
w
 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 d
o
e
s
 c
o
v
e
r 
a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
a
re
a
s
 w
it
h
in
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 p
la
n
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 r
is
k
 t
h
a
t 
u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
w
 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 o
u
r 
s
c
o
re
 w
il
l 
g
o
 d
o
w
n
 a
s
 t
h
e
 b
a
r 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
a
is
e
d
. 
  

3

(2
0
0
6
)

3

(2
0
0
7
)

3

(2
0
0
8
 -
 o
ld
 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
))

3

(2
0
0
9
 n
e
w
 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
)

4

(2
0
1
0
 n
e
w
 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
)

O
u
t-
tu
rn
 o
f 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 b
u
d
g
e
t

M
e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
w
h
e
th
e
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 a
re
 k
e
e
p
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
y
 o
v
e
r 
o
r 
u
n
d
e
r 
s
p
e
n
d
s
. 
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
h
o
ld
e
rs
 s
h
o
u
ld
 g
e
t 
a
c
c
u
ra
te
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
fo
re
c
a
s
t 
w
it
h
in
 5
 w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s
 o
f 
m
o
n
th
 e
n
d
. 
R
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 G
ro
u
p
, 
C
L
T
 o
n
 a
 m

o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
 a
n
d
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 o
n
 a
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
a
s
is
. 
 I
t 
c
a
n
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 

u
s
e
d
 t
o
 c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
.

0
%

0
%

0
%

%
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 c
o
ll
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 i
n
 

y
e
a
r 
th
ro
u
g
h
:

a
) 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 T
a
x
 (
B
V
 9
)

9
6
.3
8
%

9
6
.5
0
%

9
6
.6
5
%

9
6
.7
0
%

9
6
.7
5
%

b
) 
N
o
n
-d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 r
a
te
s
 (
B
V
 1
0
)

9
8
.5
8
%

9
8
.6
0
%

9
6
.6
0
%

9
8
.6
5
%

9
8
.7
0
%

c
) 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 r
e
n
ts
 (
B
V
 6
6
a
)

9
6
.6
9
%

9
6
.7
0
%

d
) 
S
u
n
d
ry
 D
e
b
to
rs
 (
%
 d
e
b
ts
 c
o
ll
e
c
te
d
 

w
it
h
in
 3
0
 d
a
y
s
 o
f 
in
v
o
ic
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
)

N
I 
1
7
9

V
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 t
o
ta
l 
n
e
t 
v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
o
n
-

g
o
in
g
 c
a
s
h
 r
e
le
a
s
in
g
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 

g
a
in
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 i
m
p
a
c
te
d
 s
in
c
e
 t
h
e
 

s
ta
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 2
0
0
8
-9
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r

O
v
e
ra
ll
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
w
h
e
th
e
r 
w
e
 a
re
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o
u
r 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 t
a
rg
e
ts
. 
 W

h
o
le
 p
u
b
li
c
 s
e
c
to
r 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
e
t 
a
 t
a
rg
e
t 

o
f 
a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 a
t 
le
a
s
t 
3
%
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 g
a
in
s
 d
u
ri
n
g
 C
S
R
 0
7
 p
e
ri
o
d
 a
ll
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
a
s
h
 

re
le
a
s
in
g

£
2
8
,7
5
9
 k

(3
%
)

£
5
8
,4
7
6
 k

(6
.1
%
)

£
8
9
,1
5
2
 k

(9
.3
%
)

C
P
-P
5
1

A
s
s
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 %

 o
f 
o
u
r 
to
ta
l 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
s
p
e
n
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 

M
in
im

is
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
o
ff
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
s
p
e
n
d
 t
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 o
u
r 
b
u
y
in
g
 p
o
w
e
r 
a
n
d
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 g
a
in
s
. 
 W

it
h
in
 o
u
r 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 w
e
 c
a
n
 d
e
fi
n
e
 k
e
y
 p
a
ra
m
e
te
rs
 e
g
 q
u
a
li
ty
, 
e
q
u
a
li
ty
, 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 e
tc
 a
n
d
 

c
a
n
 s
e
le
c
t 
s
u
p
p
li
e
rs
 w
h
ic
h
 m

e
e
t 
th
e
s
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 b
u
t 
o
ff
-c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
s
p
e
n
d
 i
s
 u
n
c
o
n
tr
o
ll
e
d
. 
 W

e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 k
n
o
w
 

w
h
y
 i
t 
is
 h
a
p
p
e
n
in
g
 –
 i
s
 i
t 
s
p
e
n
d
 o
n
 t
h
in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 n
o
t 
c
o
v
e
re
d
 b
y
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 o
r 
is
 i
t 
la
c
k
 o
f 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
, 
p
o
o
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 e
tc
 e
tc
. 

3
.7
3
%

3
.8
6
%

4
.0
0
%

4
.1
7
%

N
e
w

%
 d
e
b
t 
re
c
o
v
e
re
d
 (
c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
)

O
v
e
ra
ll
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
to
 t
ra
c
k
 h
o
w
 m

u
c
h
 o
f 
o
u
r 
d
e
b
t 
w
e
 c
o
ll
e
c
t 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 w
e
 a
re
 m

a
x
im

is
in
g
 o
u
r 
in
c
o
m
e
.

T
a
r
g
e
ts

B
a
s
e
li
n
e
 I
n
fo

N
e
w
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
- 
n
o
 h
is
to
ri
c
a
l 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

N
e
w
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
- 
n
o
 h
is
to
ri
c
a
l 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

N
e
w
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
- 
n
o
 h
is
to
ri
c
a
l 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 
G
u
id
a
n
c
e
 s
ta
te
s
 

to
 u
s
e
 2
0
0
8
 (
J
a
n
 -
 D
e
c
) 
a
s
 a
 

V a l u e  f o r  M o n e y / R e s o u r c e s

N
e
w

O
v
e
ra
ll
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
to
 t
ra
c
k
 h
o
w
 m

u
c
h
 o
f 
o
u
r 
m
a
jo
r 
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
in
c
o
m
e
 w
e
 c
o
ll
e
c
t 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 w
e
 a
re
 m

a
x
im

is
in
g
 

o
u
r 
in
c
o
m
e
.

D
ra
ft

Page 57



D
ra
ft

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 -
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 a
n
d
 T
a
rg
e
ts

R
e
f 
- 
s
e
e
 

k
e
y
 b
e
lo
w

I
n
d
ic
a
to
r

P
u
r
p
o
s
e
/
N
o
te
s

2
0
0
6
/
7

Y
e
a
r
 E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/
0
8
 

F
o
r
e
c
a
s
t

2
0
0
8
/
0
9

2
0
0
9
/
1
0

2
0
1
0
/
1
1

N
I 
1
4

A
v
o
id
a
b
le
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
- 
th
e
 

p
ro
p
o
rt
io
n
 o
f 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
th
a
t 
is
 

o
f 
lo
w
 o
r 
n
o
 v
a
lu
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r

N
e
w
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 
w
h
ic
h
 s
e
e
k
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
ta
c
ts
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
it
iz
e
n
s
/b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 

a
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
iv
e
 t
im

e
ly
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t.
  
L
o
o
k
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
c
h
a
n
n
e
ls
 a
n
d
 s
e
e
k
s
 t
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 t
h
o
s
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 

th
a
t 
a
re
 a
v
o
id
a
b
le
 f
o
r 
v
a
ri
o
u
s
 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
in
fo
 o
n
 w
e
b
s
it
e
, 
re
p
e
a
t 
c
o
n
ta
c
ts
 c
h
a
s
in
g
 u
p
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

d
e
li
v
e
ry
 e
tc
. 
 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 t
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
is
s
u
e
s
 w
it
h
 m

e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
a
n
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 d
u
e
 i
n
 

Ju
n
e
 0
8
. 
 

B
a
s
e
li
n
e

tb
c

tb
c

A
n
n
u
a
l 

S
u
rv
e
y

O
v
e
ra
ll
 S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
ls

G
iv
e
s
 a
n
 o
v
e
ra
ll
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 a
n
d
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
w
e
 a
re
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 

o
u
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 -
 m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L
C
C
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
s
u
rv
e
y

5
5
%

(2
0
0
5
)

6
1
%

(2
0
0
7
)

n
/a

n
/a

N
I 
1
4
0

F
a
ir
 t
re
a
tm

e
n
t 
b
y
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s

O
v
e
ra
ll
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
p
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
fa
ir
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
  
–
 v
ia
 p
la
c
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 

B
a
s
e
li
n
e

n
/a

tb
c
 o
n
c
e
 

b
a
s
e
li
n
e
 

e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
e
d

C
P
-A
S
5
4

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
to
ta
l 

tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 d
e
li
v
e
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
lf
 s
e
rv
ic
e

In
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 a
v
a
il
a
b
il
it
y
 a
n
d
 u
p
ta
k
e
 o
f 
s
e
lf
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 c
a
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
s
e
 a
t 
a
n
y
 t
im

e
 a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 

p
ro
v
id
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 m

o
re
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
m
e
a
n
s

3
1
7
,9
5
4

4
7
5
,1
6
6

L
K
I-

C
U
S
1
5
a

In
c
re
a
s
e
 %

 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

w
it
h
in
 1
5
 d
a
y
s

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
o
th
e
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 b
u
t 
w
e
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 n
o
t 
a
b
le
 t
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 

th
is
 d
u
e
 t
o
 d
a
ta
 q
u
a
li
ty
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
 W

o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 i
n
 M
a
rc
h
 t
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
fi
n
e
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r.

L
K
I-

C
U
S
1
7
a

%
 l
e
tt
e
rs
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
li
c
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 

re
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 w
it
h
in
 1
0
 w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s
 

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
o
th
e
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 b
u
t 
w
e
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 n
o
t 
a
b
le
 t
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 

th
is
 d
u
e
 t
o
 d
a
ta
 q
u
a
li
ty
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
W
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 i
n
 M
a
rc
h
 t
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
fi
n
e
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r.

L
K
I-

C
U
S
1
7
b

%
 e
m
a
il
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
li
c
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 

re
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 w
it
h
in
 1
0
 w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s

S
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
o
th
e
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 b
u
t 
w
e
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 n
o
t 
a
b
le
 t
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 

th
is
 d
u
e
 t
o
 d
a
ta
 q
u
a
li
ty
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
 D
a
ta
 g
a
p
s
 i
n
 a
lm

o
s
t 
a
ll
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
W
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 i
n
 M
a
rc
h
 t
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

d
e
fi
n
e
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r.

%
 t
h
o
s
e
 m

a
k
in
g
 a
 c
o
m
p
la
in
t 
w
h
o
 a
re
 

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 h
a
n
d
li
n
g
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 

c
o
m
p
la
in
t

T
h
is
 w
a
s
 s
 b
e
s
t 
v
a
lu
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
b
u
t 
it
 i
s
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 p
la
c
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 -
 w
e
 c
a
n
 

d
e
fi
n
e
 a
n
d
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 o
u
r 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
s
u
rv
e
y
 o
r 
c
o
u
ld
 d
o
 m

o
re
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 f
o
ll
o
w
 u
p
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 t
h
o
s
e
 w
h
o
 

h
a
v
e
 a
c
tu
a
ll
y
 m

a
d
e
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
. 
 T
o
 b
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 w
it
h
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

A
c
c
e
s
s
ib
il
it
y
 o
f 
c
o
u
n
c
il
 b
u
il
d
in
g
s

P
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 B
V
 1
5
6
 b
u
t 
th
e
re
 a
re
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 m

e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
 o
f 
th
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
o
b
u
s
tn
e
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 d
a
ta
. 
 I
t 
is
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 t
h
is
 b
u
t 
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 a
re
 o
n
-g
o
in
g
 

w
it
h
 a
s
s
e
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 l
a
n
d
lo
rd
 a
b
o
u
t 
h
o
w
 b
e
s
t 
to
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
is
. 
 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 u
n
d
e
r 
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 p
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
.

T
a
r
g
e
ts

N
e
w
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
- 
n
o
 h
is
to
ri
c
a
l 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

N
e
w
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
- 
n
o
 h
is
to
ri
c
a
l 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

C u s t o m e r s  F i r s t

B
a
s
e
li
n
e
 I
n
fo

D
ra
ft

Page 58



D
ra
ft

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 -
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
 D
ra
ft
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 a
n
d
 T
a
rg
e
ts

R
e
f 
- 
s
e
e
 

k
e
y
 b
e
lo
w

I
n
d
ic
a
to
r

P
u
r
p
o
s
e
/
N
o
te
s

2
0
0
6
/
7

Y
e
a
r
 E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/
0
8
 

F
o
r
e
c
a
s
t

2
0
0
8
/
0
9

2
0
0
9
/
1
0

2
0
1
0
/
1
1

B
V
 1
2

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s
 l
o
s
t 
to
 t
h
e
 

a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 d
u
e
 t
o
 s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 

(a
v
e
ra
g
e
 p
e
r 
F
T
E
)

S
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 l
e
v
e
ls
 a
re
 a
 g
o
o
d
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
a
fe
ty
 a
n
d
 w
e
ll
 b
e
in
g
, 
s
ta
ff
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
, 
s
tr
e
n
g
th
 o
f 

o
u
r 
s
ta
ff
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 e
tc
. 
W
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 p
e
rf
o
rm

 v
e
ry
 p
o
o
rl
y
 i
n
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
 a
s
 p
ic
k
e
d
 u
p
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
  

1
2
.0
0

d
a
y
s

1
2
.4
4

d
a
y
s

L
K
I 
P
E
2

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 l
e
a
v
e
rs
 a
s
 a
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 

s
ta
ff
 i
n
 p
o
s
t

A
 h
ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
tu
rn
o
v
e
r 
c
a
n
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 w
it
h
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
le
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 c
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

c
a
n
 h
a
v
e
 a
n
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
C
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
e
n
 i
n
 a
n
o
th
e
r 
w
a
y
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 o
u
r 
s
ta
ff
 s
o
 w
e
ll
 

th
a
t 
th
e
y
 l
e
a
v
e
 t
o
 g
e
t 
b
e
tt
e
r 
p
a
id
 j
o
b
s
 e
ls
e
w
h
e
re
 e
g
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
n
ts
 a
n
d
 g
e
tt
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 q
u
a
li
fi
e
d
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
y
 t
h
e
n
 g
o
 o
n
 t
o
 p
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 
m
o
re
 m

o
n
e
y
. 
 H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
h
ig
h
 t
u
rn
o
v
e
r 
is
 c
o
s
tl
y
 f
o
r 
th
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
jo
b
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
q
u
a
l 
p
a
y
 w
il
l 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
c
c
o
u
n
te
d
 f
o
r 
w
h
e
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
s
e
tt
in
g
 -
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 

m
ig
h
t 
b
e
 m

o
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
.

9
.6
1
%

8
.6
9
%

9
%

9
%

9
%

C
P
-E
S
5
1

In
c
re
a
s
e
 %

 s
ta
ff
 w
h
o
 f
e
e
l 
v
a
lu
e
d
 a
s
 a
n
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e

H
e
a
d
li
n
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 f
e
e
li
n
g
 v
a
lu
e
d
 –
 f
e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 w
ra
p
p
e
d
 u
p
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
is
s
u
e
s
 i
n
to
 

o
n
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
. 
 

n
/a

6
3
%

6
5
%

C
P
 –
 P
E
5
9

%
 s
ta
ff
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 h
a
d
 a
n
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l

T
h
is
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
n
ly
 a
n
d
 n
o
t 
th
e
 q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l.
  
C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s
ta
ff
 

s
u
rv
e
y
 b
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 w
e
 m

a
y
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 t
h
is
 a
s
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 o
n
 S
A
P
 b
u
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 t
h
is
 g
iv
e
s
 a
 m

u
c
h
 

lo
w
e
r 
re
s
u
lt
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 p
ro
b
a
b
ly
 d
u
e
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
r-
re
c
o
rd
in
g
 o
n
 S
A
P
.

n
/a

7
2
%

7
4
%

C
P
-P
E
5
4

In
c
re
a
s
e
 %

 s
ta
ff
 w
h
o
 f
e
e
l 
th
e
y
 a
re
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n

A
g
a
in
 t
h
is
 w
ra
p
s
 u
p
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
is
s
u
e
s
 i
n
to
 o
n
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
b
u
t 
g
iv
e
s
 a
n
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 b
e
in
g
 

v
a
lu
e
d
 a
n
d
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
w
e
 a
re
 m

a
k
in
g
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
s
ta
ff
.

n
/a

7
4
%

7
6
%

C
P
-E
S
 5
4

%
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
 w
h
o
 f
e
e
l 
th
a
t 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
s
 w
e
ll
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
m

D
ir
e
c
t 
m
e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
in
te
rn
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n

n
/a

B
V
 1
7
a

%
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 s
ta
ff
 f
ro
m
 B
M
E
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 –
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

S
h
o
w
s
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
w
e
 a
re
 r
e
c
ru
it
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
ta
in
in
g
 a
 s
ta
ff
 g
ro
u
p
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 o
f 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

7
.0
%

7
.5
%

8
.0
%

8
.5
%

9
.0
%

B
V
 1
6
a

%
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 s
ta
ff
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
il
it
y
 –
 

c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

S
h
o
w
s
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
w
e
 a
re
 r
e
c
ru
it
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
ta
in
in
g
 a
 s
ta
ff
 g
ro
u
p
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 o
f 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y

3
.2
%

3
.5
%

3
.6
%

3
.7
%

3
.8
%

%
 o
f 
to
p
 e
a
rn
e
rs
 w
h
o
 a
re
:

a
) 
  
 w
o
m
e
n

3
6
.4
7
%

3
8
.0
0
%

3
9
%

4
0
%

4
1
%

b
) 
  
 F
ro
m
 B
M
E
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s

5
.7
5
%

6
.0
2
%

6
.2
5
%

6
.5
%

6
.7
5
%

c
) 
  
 D
is
a
b
le
d
 (
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 m

a
in
ta
in
e
d
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
)

3
.6
0
%

4
.0
0
%

4
.2
%

4
.4
%

4
.6
%

II
P

M
a
in
ta
in
 o
u
r 
II
P
 a
c
c
re
d
it
a
ti
o
n
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

w
h
o
le
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n

S
h
o
w
s
 g
o
o
d
 (
b
e
s
t)
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 a
ll
 p
e
o
p
le
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
is
s
u
e
s
. 
 M
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
s
 I
IP
 i
n
to
 

o
u
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 –
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
h
o
w
 w
e
ll
 t
h
is
 l
in
e
s
 u
p
 w
it
h
 C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
?

N
/A

N
/A

L
e
v
e
l 
1

N
/A

L
e
v
e
l 
2

B
a
s
e
li
n
e
 I
n
fo

T
a
r
g
e
ts

V a l u i n g  o u r  C o l l e a g u e s

7
0
%

(f
ro
m
 2
0
0
7
 s
ta
ff
 s
u
rv
e
y
)

5
9
%

(f
ro
m
 2
0
0
7
 s
ta
ff
 s
u
rv
e
y
)

6
1
%

(f
ro
m
 2
0
0
7
 s
ta
ff
 s
u
rv
e
y
)

T
o
 s
h
o
w
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 a
re
 e
m
p
o
w
e
ri
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
ll
 o
u
r 
s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 e
q
u
a
l 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 o
u
r 
re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
p
o
li
c
ie
s

B
V
1
1
 a
-c

7
0
%

(f
ro
m
 2
0
0
7
 s
ta
ff
 s
u
rv
e
y
)

D
ra
ft

Page 59



D
ra
ft

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 -
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
 D
ra
ft
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 a
n
d
 T
a
rg
e
ts

R
e
f 
- 
s
e
e
 

k
e
y
 b
e
lo
w

I
n
d
ic
a
to
r

P
u
r
p
o
s
e
/
N
o
te
s

2
0
0
6
/
7

Y
e
a
r
 E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/
0
8
 

F
o
r
e
c
a
s
t

2
0
0
8
/
0
9

2
0
0
9
/
1
0

2
0
1
0
/
1
1

B
V
2
a
 

C
P
-E
O
5
0

E
q
u
a
li
ty
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 l
e
v
e
l

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 e
q
u
a
li
ty
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
. 
 W

e
 d
o
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
m
e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
o
v
e
ra
ll
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
o
u
r 
o
w
n
 e
q
u
a
li
ty
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 -
 t
h
is
 w
il
l 
b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 

o
f 
th
e
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
is
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t.
  

L
e
v
e
l 
3

L
e
v
e
l 
3

L
e
v
e
l 
4

L
e
v
e
l 
5

L
e
v
e
l 
5

C
P
-L
E
5
0

V
o
te
r 
tu
rn
 o
u
t 
in
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
le
c
ti
o
n
s

T
h
is
 i
s
 a
n
 o
v
e
ra
ll
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
o
n
 p
u
b
li
c
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
le
v
e
ls
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
o
li
ti
c
a
l 
p
ro
c
e
s
s

3
7
.5
2
%

A
n
n
u
a
l 

S
u
rv
e
y

%
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 

th
in
k
 L
C
C
 a
ll
o
w
s
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
 s
a
y
 i
n
 

w
h
a
t 
it
 d
o
e
s

O
v
e
ra
ll
 p
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
o
u
r 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk

3
6
%

(2
0
0
5
)

4
3
%

(2
0
0
7
)

A
n
n
u
a
l 

S
u
rv
e
y

%
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 t
h
in
k
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 k
e
e
p
s
 

th
e
m
 w
e
ll
 i
n
fo
rm

e
d
 a
b
o
u
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 i
t 
s
u
p
p
li
e
s

O
v
e
ra
ll
 p
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
o
u
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
o
rk

4
8
%

(2
0
0
5
)

5
1
%

(2
0
0
7
)

N
e
w

%
 o
f 
m
a
jo
r 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 a
s
s
u
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 U
n
it
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 

d
e
li
v
e
re
d
:

a
) 
o
n
 t
im

e

b
) 
o
n
 b
u
d
g
e
t

c
) 
re
a
li
s
e
d
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

Id
e
a
ll
y
 w
e
 w
o
u
ld
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 a
ll
 m

a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 b
u
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 t
h
is
 i
s
 n
o
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 
In
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
ri
m
 w
e
 c
a
n
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
 t
h
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
a
s
 t
h
e
 P
ro
je
c
t 
A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 U
n
it
 a
re
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 o
n
 a
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir
 c
o
v
e
ra
g
e
 i
s
 p
a
tc
h
y
. 
 E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 a
 &
 b
 –
 s
h
o
w
s
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 

o
f 
p
ro
je
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 a
n
d
 c
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 r
e
tu
rn
 o
n
 t
h
e
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 
in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t.
 

C
A
A

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
T
ra
v
e
l 
S
c
o
re

E
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 r
a
te
 o
f 
o
u
r 
im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
. 
 F
o
rm

s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
C
A
A
 

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

A
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
 

(2
0
0
6
)

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

W
e
ll 

(2
0
0
7
)

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 W

e
ll 

(2
0
0
8
)

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 W

e
ll 

(2
0
0
9
)

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 

S
tr
o
n
g
ly

(2
0
1
0
)

N
e
w

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
IO
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 %

 

p
ro
je
c
t 
m
il
e
s
to
n
e
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 v
s
 t
h
o
s
e
 

p
la
n
n
e
d

P
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
n
 o
v
e
ra
ll
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
o
f 
th
e
 d
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 I
n
te
ll
ig
e
n
t 
O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e

N
e
w

%
 s
ta
ff
 w
h
o
 f
e
e
l 
th
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

th
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 t
o
 d
o
 

th
e
ir
 j
o
b
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
tl
y

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
p
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 I
K
M
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 a
n
d
 i
t 
d
e
li
v
e
ri
n
g
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 t
o
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 

m
a
k
in
g
 i
t 
e
a
s
ie
r 
a
n
d
 m

o
re
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
to
 d
o
 t
h
e
ir
 j
o
b
 -
 m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 s
ta
ff
 s
u
rv
e
y
. 
 N
e
x
t 
s
u
rv
e
y
 w
o
u
ld
 s
e
t 

b
a
s
e
li
n
e

n
/a

B
a
s
e
li
n
e

tb
c

D
a
ta
 Q
u
a
li
ty
 m

e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
:

a
) 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
k
e
y
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 u
s
in
g
 a
 

c
o
rp
o
ra
te
ly
 a
g
re
e
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 m

e
tr
ic
s
 t
o
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
 d
a
ta
 q
u
a
li
ty

M
e
a
s
u
re
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
w
e
 a
re
 u
s
in
g
 r
e
li
a
b
le
 a
n
d
 g
o
o
d
 q
u
a
li
ty
 d
a
ta
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s
 a
 k
e
y
 e
le
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

o
u
r 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
g
e
n
d
a
.

b
) 
%
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
s
e
t 
(L
S
P
, 
C
B
P
 

&
 N
I)
 w
h
e
re
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 "
n
o
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
" 
o
n
 

d
a
ta
 q
u
a
li
ty

T
h
is
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
s
 u
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
 h
a
v
e
 e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 d
a
ta
 q
u
a
li
ty
 i
n
to
 o
u
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s
y
s
te
m
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

–
 s
ta
rt
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 w
e
 u
s
e
 t
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 o
u
r 
s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
. 
 E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 t
h
is
 i
s
 a
 s
e
lf
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
–
 m

ig
h
t 
w
e
 h
a
v
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 p
ro
v
in
g
 i
ts
 r
o
b
u
s
tn
e
s
s
?
 T
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 f
u
rt
h
e
r.

n
/a

B
a
s
e
li
n
e

tb
c

N
e
w

%
 o
f 
e
li
g
ib
le
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 f
o
r 

c
a
ll
 i
n
 

A
s
 m

a
n
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 o
p
e
n
 f
o
r 
c
a
ll
 i
n
 t
o
 t
h
a
t 
e
le
c
te
d
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 c
a
n
 f
u
lf
il
 t
h
e
ir
 d
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 

ro
le
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
. 
S
h
o
w
s
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
.

n
/a

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

N
e
w

%
 k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
h
ic
h
 d
id
 n
o
t 
a
p
p
e
a
r 

in
 t
h
e
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 p
la
n

D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 n
o
t 
in
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 p
la
n
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 g
iv
e
 f
u
ll
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
le
c
te
d
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 d
o
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 g
a
th
e
r 
v
ie
w
s
. 
 S
h
o
w
s
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e

n
/a

1
%

1
%

1
%

1
%

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 K
e
y

N
I

P
a
rt
 o
f 
n
e
w
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
s
e
t

C
A
A

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
w
h
ic
h
 f
o
rm

s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 C
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
v
e
 A
re
a
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

C
P

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
o
u
r 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
5
-8
 

N
e
w

N
e
w
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r

L
K
I

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 u
s
e
 l
o
c
a
lly
 

B
V

B
e
s
t 
v
a
lu
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r

B
a
s
e
li
n
e
 I
n
fo

T
a
r
g
e
ts

B u s i n e s s  I m p r o v e m e n t / E x c e l l e n c e
N
e
w
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
- 
n
o
 h
is
to
ri
c
a
l 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

N
e
w

N
e
w
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
- 
n
o
 h
is
to
ri
c
a
l 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

D
ra
ft

Page 60



 1 

 
Report of the Head of Policy, Performance and Improvement 
 
Meeting:  Scrutiny Board (Central and Corporate Functions) 
 
Date:  9th June 2008 
 
Subject:  Performance Report Quarter 4 2007/08 
 

        
 
 
1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report discusses the key performance issues considered to be of corporate significance 
identified for each of the Directorates as at 31st March 2008.   

2 Purpose of the Report 
 
2.1 The purpose of this report is to highlight key performance issues at the end of Quarter 4 (1st 

January to 31st March 2008) and to provide additional contextual information where relevant. 
 
3 Background Information 
 
3.1 This ‘highlight report’ has been prepared following the Accountability process, which includes 

the CLT meeting on 20th May and Leader Management Team on 22nd May 2008. Separate 
reports have been prepared for each of the scrutiny Boards. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny Board arrangements have been slightly amended this year which has meant that 

performance information has had to be split differently between Boards.  For some PI’s this split 
is not straightforward, for example, is teenage conception a health issue or a children’s issue?  
For this reason we have decided for quarter 4 to report such indicators to both relevant Boards.  
As the new arrangements bed-in greater clarity may emerge, although in theory there would 
appear to be no reason why dual reporting could not continue. 

 
3.3 The issues discussed in this report have been identified because performance in these areas 

impacts upon one or more of the following; the delivery of effective services, the delivery of our 
corporate priorities; our CPA score; or our ability to deliver efficiency savings.  This report is 
supported by detailed PI information.  

 
 
 
 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: 
Steve Clough 
Tel:  74582 

Page 61



 2 

4 Directorate Performance Issues 
 
4.1   Customer Services 
 
CUS 17a - % of letters from the public that are responded to within 10 working days 
CUS 17b - % of customer emails sent to publicly advertised email addresses that are 

responded to within 10 working days  
CUS 20 – Percentage of emails received via publicly advertised email addresses 

acknowledged within one working day 
 
These indicators measure our performance and ability to handle written correspondence and e mails 
effectively.  
 
“Our Standards” of performance, which cover written correspondence and e mails together with other 
forms of customer contact, were fully endorsed by the Corporate Leadership Team in October 2007, 
mandating all directorates to report on performance against the targets, either holistically or by 
sample. 
 
These indicators have been included in the new Council Business Plan. CLT have recognised that 
data quality in this area is currently lacking and that arrangements will be put in place for the robust 
measurement of these indicators from now on. 
 
In addition, CUS 20 – acknowledging e mails – can now be carried out electronically and 
automatically, using a toolkit available to all services.  Customer Services will be engaging with 
services to aim to get full sign up to the electronic acknowledgement over the next few months. 
 
 
4.2 Managing Attendance 
 
This year the council has seen a slight increase on its 2006/07 position, from 12 to 12.18 days, 
missing the target of 11.5 days.  This is a disappointing result but it is important to consider this in the 
context of the improvements that have been made from an out-turn of 13.9 days in 2000/01, and that 
some stability in the level of sickness absence has been achieved during a time of change.  In 
addition, it was positive to note that in 2007/08 35% of LCC employees had no absence and that 
health and safety incidents have fallen by 3%. 
 
To secure further improvements in this area a range of interventions have been put in place including 
: 
 
§ Stress Management: there will be a new, cross-council approach to preventing and reducing 

absence related to stress, utilising the Health and Safety Executive’s Stress Management 
Standards. This will address one of the main causes of sickness absence across the council 

§ Occupational Health Service: a new Occupational Health Service is currently being scoped based 
on an independent study of LCC’s exact needs. This will help prevent absence and more effective 
management of cases 

§ Rehabilitation and Return to Work: a specific programme will concentrate on helping employees 
back to work after sickness absence much sooner. Over two thirds of sickness absence is long-
term. 

 
4.3   Equality indicators 
 
Overall the BV equality targets are showing an upward trend on previous years.   Although in 
2007/08 the targets for the percentage of top 5% earners for women and BME and the overall target 
for disabled representation were not met.   
 
Work is progressing to develop a more representative workforce at all levels and ensure continued 
improvements in these areas.  Specific work activities include; 

• Leadership Development through the Good to Great Leadership Challenge 

Page 62



 3 

• Developing new approaches to succession planning and talent management that will provide 
greater support and opportunities for BME staff and women to move into senior management 
roles 

• Refreshing employee personal data to provide an up to date picture of our current work force 
profile  

• Improving access to employment for the disabled through ‘entry level’ opportunities and tailored 
employment days. 

 
4.4   Council Tax and Benefits 
 
Council Tax and Benefits have either met or exceeded 9 of their 12 performance indicators (this 
includes BVPI`s:BV78b and BV9 where tolerance levels have been set so are indicated as amber on 
the performance report).   Targets for the  remaining 3 indicators were not achieved. 
  

• BV-76c (number of housing benefit and council tax benefit fraud investigations carried out by the 
local authority per year, per 1,000 caseload) 

• BV-79bii (housing benefit overpayments recovered during the period as a percentage of the total 
amount of housing benefit overpayment debt at the start of the period plus the amount of HB 
overpayments identified during the period) and 

• BV-79biii (housing benefit overpayments written off during the period as a percentage of the total 
amount of hosing benefit debt outstanding at the start of the period plus the amount of housing 
benefit overpayments identified during the period). 

 
The performance of BV-76c is mainly attributed to the issues around data being lost in transit 
between the DWP and HMRC, this led to a cessation of referrals to investigate from the DWP in 
November 2007 and for the remainder of the year. 
 
In terms of BV-79bii,  A pro-active programme of reviews to identify claims with potential changes to 
their entitlement, coupled with improved publicity on the need for customers to report change of 
circumstances and the speed in which reported change of circumstances were actioned, meant that 
fewer housing benefit overpayments were raised in 2007/08 when compared to the previous year - 
£4.4million against £5.0million. 
 
The result for BV79biii was affected by  the deferral of write-offs during 2006/7 (pending the 
introduction of additional debt recovery methods) which, inevitably,  led to the increase in write-offs 
during 07/08.   
 
New systems that were introduced in 2006/7 (additional checks and more debts going to external 
recovery agencies) meant that a number of debts remained uncollected and now have to be written 
off in 2007/8.  In addition case cleansing work has identified a small amount of irrecoverable debt 
which has also been written off during 2007/8. 

 
 

5 Recommendation 

That Members note the content of this report and comment on any particular performance issues of 
concern. 
 

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 -
 C
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
9
a

1
0

1
1

1
1
a

1
1
b

1
2

1
3

1
4

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
1
s
t 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

0
7

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

T
re

n
d
 

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 Y

e
a
r-

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

 

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 Y

e
a
r-

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 

P
o
s
it
io

n

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d
 

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d
 

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

Is
s
u
e
s

1

B
V

-7
6
b

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fr

a
u
d
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
to

rs
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 c

a
s
e
lo

a
d

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

M
o
n
th

ly

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

R
is

e
0
.2

5
0
.2

3
0
.2

3
0
.2

3
G

re
e
n

↓
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

2

B
V

-7
6
c

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 
(H

B
/C

T
B

) 
fr

a
u
d
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
b
y
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 p
e
r 

y
e
a
r,

 p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 c

a
s
e
lo

a
d

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

M
o
n
th

ly

N
u
m

b
e
r

R
is

e
3
0
.8

9
2
9
.0

0
2
4
.2

6
2
4
.2

6
R

e
d

↓
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

3

B
V

-7
6
d

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 
a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 
(H

B
/C

T
B

) 
p
ro

s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

a
n
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
p
e
r 

y
e
a
r,

 p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 c

a
s
e
lo

a
d
, 
in

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
B

e
n
e
fi
ts

M
o
n
th

ly

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

R
is

e
4
.2

6
4
.3

0
4
.6

7
4
.6

7
G

re
e
n

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

4

B
V

-7
8
a

S
p
e
e
d
 o

f 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
: 
A

v
e
ra

g
e
 t
im

e
 f
o
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 n

e
w

 c
la

im
s

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

M
o
n
th

ly

D
a
y
s

F
a
ll

3
1
.0

2
8
.0

2
6
.8

2
6
.8

G
re

e
n

↑
2
4
.5

3
3
.8

M
id

d
le

3
8
.3

4
N

o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

5

B
V

-7
8
b

T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
in

g
 t
im

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

w
ri
tt
e
n
 n

o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 a

 

c
la

im
a
n
t's

 c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
 a

 n
e
w

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 o

n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

M
o
n
th

ly

D
a
y
s

F
a
ll

2
3
.9

1
6
.0

1
7
.2

1
7
.2

A
m

b
e
r

↑
7
.8

1
5
.6

B
o
tt
o
m

2
3
.8

5
N

o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

6

B
V

-7
9
a

A
c
c
u
ra

c
y
 o

f 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
: 
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
a
s
e
s
 f
o
r 

w
h
ic

h
 t
h
e
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
d
u
e
 

w
a
s
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 
th

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

a
 s

a
m

p
le

 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 c

h
e
c
k
e
d
 

p
o
s
t-

d
e
c
is

io
n
.

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
9
.0

0
9
8
.6

0
9
9
.0

0
9
9
.0

0
G

re
e
n

↔
9
9
.2

0
9
7
.0

0
M

id
d
le

9
7
.2

8
1

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

7

B
V

-7
9
b
i

T
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
c
o
v
e
re

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
 a

s
 a

 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
H

B
 d

e
e
m

e
d
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ra

b
le

 o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
ri
o
d

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

M
o
n
th

ly

%
R

is
e

7
2
.6

8
7
3
.5

0
7
7
.8

1
7
7
.8

1
G

re
e
n

↑
8
0
.6

1
6
3
.0

1
M

id
d
le

6
5
.1

0
2

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

T
a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
 d

e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 c

h
e
c
k
in

g
 1

2
5
 c

a
s
e
s
 e

a
c
h
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

w
it
h
 a

n
y
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
e
rr

o
r,

 n
o
 m

a
tt
e
r 

h
o
w

 s
m

a
ll,

 c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 a

s
 a

n
 e

rr
o
r.

T
a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
.

T
a
rg

e
t 
m

e
t.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
ta

rg
e
t 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 a
s
 a

 c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

a
ta

 r
e
fe

rr
a
ls

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 D

W
P

, 
a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
s
o
u
rc

e
 o

f 
in

v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

, 
b
e
in

g
 s

u
s
p
e
n
d
e
d
 f
ro

m
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 
b
e
in

g
 r

e
s
u
m

e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

e
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
is

 s
u
s
p
e
n
s
io

n
 c

a
u
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
in

v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

e
c
lin

e
. 
T

h
e
 d

e
c
lin

e
 i
n
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 i
n
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
h
a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

t 
3
5
%

.

T
a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 
T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
4
.3

0
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 c

a
s
e
s
 w

a
s
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
S

a
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 &

 P
ro

s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f
ro

m
 3

0
0
 i
n
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
 t
o
 3

2
8
 i
n
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 r

a
te

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 v

ie
w

e
d
 i
n
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
in

v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
, 
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 B

V
P

I7
6
c
, 
a
n
d
 

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
v
e
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 w

h
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
s
e
s
 i
t 
is

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 f
o
r 

S
a
n
c
ti
o
n
 o

r 
P

ro
s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
.

T
a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 
T

h
e
 2

8
 d

a
y
 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

a
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 s
e
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 D

W
P

 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

a
s
 m

e
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 l
o
w

e
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 1

s
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

o
f 
2
0
0
7
/0

8
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
 v

o
lu

m
e
s
 o

f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
ri
o
d
 -

 t
h
e
 f
a
c
to

rs
 f
o
r 

th
is

 w
e
re

 e
x
p
la

in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
 f
o
r 

th
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

1
 r

e
s
u
lt
 a

s
 f
o
llo

w
s
 :

"D
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 A

p
ri
l 
u
p
ra

ti
n
g
 o

f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
n
d
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

n
t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 t
re

n
d
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
m

o
re

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 o

f 
c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 a

re
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r.

  
F

u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

, 
s
in

c
e
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
4
 t
h
e
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

is
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
d
d
re

s
s
e
s
. 
 I
n
 a

n
y
 c

a
s
e
 o

f 
a
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 

c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 m

is
s
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 v

e
ri
fy

 a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t
h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 m

u
s
t 
b
e
 g

a
th

e
re

d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 c

it
iz

e
n
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 c

a
n
 b

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
. 
 T

h
e
 r

u
le

s
 p

re
s
c
ri
b
e
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 c

it
iz

e
n
 h

a
s
 o

n
e
 m

o
n
th

 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
".

T
h
e
re

a
ft
e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

o
n
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

w
it
h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 e

x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 w

h
ic

h
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
o
v
e
ra

ll,
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

h
ils

t 
o
v
e
r 

b
y
 1

 d
a
y
 w

a
s
 m

e
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
2
0
0
7
/0

8
.

1

Page 65



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 -
 C
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
1
s
t 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

0
7

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

T
re

n
d
 

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 Y

e
a
r-

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

 

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 Y

e
a
r-

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 

P
o
s
it
io

n

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d
 

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d
 

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

Is
s
u
e
s

8

B
V

-7
9
b
ii

H
o
u
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
c
o
v
e
re

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 a

s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
a
m

o
u
n
t 
o
f 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
t 
d
e
b
t 
o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
 t
h
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 p

lu
s
 t
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
H

B
 

o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

e
ri
o
d

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

M
o
n
th

ly

%
R

is
e

3
3
.1

7
3
3
.2

0
3
1
.8

2
3
1
.8

2
R

e
d

↓
3
8
.3

8
2
6
.8

0
M

id
d
le

2
8
.9

3
2

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

9

B
V

-7
9
b
iii

H
o
u
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 w
ri
tt
e
n
 o

ff
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 a

s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
a
m

o
u
n
t 
o
f 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
d
e
b
t 
o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 p

lu
s
 t
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

e
ri
o
d

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

M
o
n
th

ly

%
F

a
ll

7
.1

7
7
.0

0
7
.8

0
7
.8

0
R

e
d

↓
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

1
0

B
V

-1
0

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
o
n
-d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 r

a
te

s
 d

u
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

w
h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 a

n
d
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 R

a
te

s

M
o
n
th

ly

%
R

is
e

9
8
.5

8
9
8
.6

0
9
8
.7

2
9
8
.7

2
G

re
e
n

↑
9
9
.3

0
9
8
.4

3
M

id
d
le

9
8
.5

1
3

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

1
1

B
V

-9

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 d

u
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

w
h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

b
y
 t
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 a

n
d
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 R

a
te

s

M
o
n
th

ly

%
R

is
e

9
6
.3

8
9
6
.5

0
9
6
.4

1
9
6
.4

1
A

m
b
e
r

↑
9
8
.4

8
9
6
.4

9
B

o
tt
o
m

9
3
.9

6
1

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

1
2

L
K

I-
F

2

T
h
e
 n

e
t 
c
o
s
t 
o
f 
c
o
lle

c
ti
n
g
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 p

e
r 

c
h
a
rg

e
a
b
le

 d
w

e
lli

n
g

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 a

n
d
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 R

a
te

s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

£
F

a
ll

1
5
.8

4
1
5
.8

4
1
5
.0

0
1
5
.0

0
G

re
e
n

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

1
3

B
V

-8
T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

v
o
ic

e
s
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
g
o
o
d
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
re

 p
a
id

 b
y
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
it
h
in

 3
0
 

d
a
y
s
 o

f 
s
u
c
h
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

.

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

M
o
n
th

ly

%
R

is
e

9
1
.6

5
9
2
.0

0
9
1
.5

0
9
1
.5

0
A

m
b
e
r

↓
9
7
.0

0
9
1
.0

0
M

id
d
le

8
7
.5

9
3

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

1
4

C
P

-F
S

5
0

L
K

I-
F

3
A

c
h
ie

v
e
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n
 2

.5
%

 e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

£
m

R
is

e
2
2
.2

0
1
7
.9

3
8
.6

0
1
1
.7

9
R

e
d

↓
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

1
5

L
K

I-
F

1

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g
 R

a
te

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

M
o
n
th

ly

%
F

a
ll

4
.7

8
4
.9

0
4
.4

5
4
.4

5
G

re
e
n

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

Q
4
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 n

o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 u
n
ti
l 
e
a
rl
y
 J

u
ly

 -
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 t
o
 D

C
L
G

 b
e
fo

re
 8

th
 J

u
ly

 0
8
. 
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 
in

d
ic

a
te

d
 a

n
y
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 f
ro

m
 Q

3
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 Q

3
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

o
lle

d
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 u
n
ti
l 
fi
n
a
l 
o
u
tt
u
rn

 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

. 
 W

h
ile

 t
h
e
 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

re
s
u
lt
 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t
a
rg

e
t,
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 a

 c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 3

 y
e
a
r 

o
n
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 

w
e
 h

a
d
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 f
u
ll 

b
y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
2
0
0
6
/0

7
. 
 T

h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 l
o
w

e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
.

T
a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 
T

re
a
s
u
ry

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
h
a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 s

te
p
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 a

d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 a

n
d
 m

a
rk

e
t 
c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 l
o
w

e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
b
o
rr

o
w

in
g
 r

a
te

.

T
a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
.

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
in

c
o
m

p
le

te
 /
 i
n
c
o
rr

e
c
t 
in

v
o
ic

e
s
 a

re
 r

e
tu

rn
e
d
 t
o
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 p

ri
o
r 

s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 C
e
n
tr

e
 f
o
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
.

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
e
n
a
n
ts

 h
a
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 0

7
/0

8
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 P

ri
v
a
te

 t
e
n
a
n
t 
c
a
s
e
s
  
h
a
s
 d

ro
p
p
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
fa

c
to

r 
in

 t
h
is

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
in

v
o
ic

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 r

a
is

e
d
 t
o
 L

a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 t
e
n
a
n
ts

 h
a
s
 f
a
lle

n
 i
n
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t
o
 0

6
/0

7
. 
T

h
is

 m
a
k
e
s
 t
h
e
 d

e
b
t 

h
a
rd

e
r 

to
 c

o
lle

c
t.
  
C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
ly

 a
ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 E

a
s
te

r 
fa

lli
n
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
w

e
e
k
.

T
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 w

ri
te

-o
ff
s
 i
n
 0

7
/0

8
 i
s
 m

a
in

ly
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

e
fe

rr
a
l 
o
f 
w

ri
te

-o
ff
s
 i
n
 0

6
/0

7
 p

e
n
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
m

e
th

o
d
s
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 r
e
c
o
v
e
r 

d
e
b
t.
  
N

e
w

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 w

e
re

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 0

6
/0

7
 w

h
ic

h
 s

a
w

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
h
e
c
k
s
 t
o
 t
ra

c
e
 d

e
b
to

rs
 a

n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 a

ls
o
 s

a
w

 m
o
re

 d
e
b
ts

 g
o
 t
o
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
d
e
b
t 
re

c
o
v
e
ry

 a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t
h
a
n
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

. 
 I
n
e
v
it
a
b
ly

, 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
e
b
ts

 r
e
m

a
in

e
d
 u

n
c
o
lle

c
ti
b
le

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
y
 n

o
w

 f
a
ll 

to
 b

e
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 o

ff
 i
n
 0

7
/0

8
. 
 S

o
m

e
 c

a
s
e
 c

le
a
n
s
in

g
 w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
in

 0
7
/0

8
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 h
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 s
m

a
ll 

a
m

o
u
n
t 
o
f 
ir
re

c
o
v
e
ra

b
le

 d
e
b
t 
th

a
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 o

ff
 i
n
 0

7
/0

8
. 
T

h
is

 a
m

o
u
n
t 
o
f 
w

ri
te

 o
ff
 t
h
a
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
s
 t
h
e
 7

%
  

ta
rg

e
t 
e
q
u
a
te

s
 t
o
 £

9
0
K

, 
th

is
 i
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 
o
f 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 d
u
ri
n
g
 0

7
/0

8
 o

f 
a
lm

o
s
t 
£
1
7
0
M

.

T
a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
.

T
h
e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
9
6
.4

1
%

 i
s
 a

 s
lig

h
t 
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

n
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.

 A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 w

e
 d

id
 n

o
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
9
6
.5

%
, 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 w

e
re

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 :

 -
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

ly
 d

ir
e
c
t 
d
e
b
it

 -
 m

o
re

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 a
c
ti
o
n
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
re

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 c

o
lle

c
t 
c
a
s
e
s

 -
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 
d
a
te

 f
o
r 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

th
e
 1

s
t 
J
a
n
u
a
ry

 t
o
 a

llo
w

 f
o
r 

q
u
ic

k
e
r 

re
c
o
v
e
ry

 a
c
ti
o
n
.

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 i
n
 g

a
th

e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 d
e
ta

ils
 o

n
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 a
n
 e

x
e
m

p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b

e
 a

w
a
rd

e
d
, 
p
lu

s
 t
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
in

g
le

 p
e
rs

o
n
 d

is
c
o
u
n
t 
, 
b
o
th

 o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
d
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
.

2

Page 66



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 -
 C
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
1
s
t 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

0
7

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

T
re

n
d
 

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 Y

e
a
r-

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

 

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 Y

e
a
r-

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 

P
o
s
it
io

n

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d
 

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d
 

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

Is
s
u
e
s

1
6

B
V

-1
6
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
a
lly

 a
c
ti
v
e
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
.

E
q
u
a
l 

O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

1
4
.5

4
1
4
.0

0
1
4
.5

4
1
4
.5

4
G

re
e
n

↔
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
o
m

e
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

1
7

L
K

I-
E

O
1

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
ta

ff
 d

e
c
la

ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 D

D
A

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 a

s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
b
a
s
e
d
 s

ta
ff
)

E
q
u
a
l 

O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

5
.0

4
5
.1

5
9
.7

5
.2

0
G

re
e
n

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

1
8

L
K

I-
E

O
2

M
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

ta
ff
 a

s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
b
a
s
e
d
 s

ta
ff
)

E
q
u
a
l 

O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
.1

1
9
.4

0
9
.7

0
9
.7

0
G

re
e
n

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

1
9

C
P

-E
S

5
0

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
o
 8

0
%

 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 f
e
e
l 
th

e
y
 k

n
o
w

 a
n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 v

a
lu

e
s

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

S
u
rv

e
y

%
R

is
e

N
.A

.
8
0

8
5

8
5

G
re

e
n

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

B
la

n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
o
m

e
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

2
0

B
V

-1
1
a

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
to

p
 5

%
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 w
o
m

e
n

H
R

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

3
6
.4

7
3
8
.0

0
3
6
.8

3
3
6
.8

3
R

e
d

↑
4
3
.5

6
2
4
.1

1
M

id
d
le

4
4
.9

9
8

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

2
1

B
V

-1
1
b

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
to

p
 5

%
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 b

la
c
k
 a

n
d
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
H

R
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

5
.7

5
6
.0

0
5
.9

6
5
.9

6
A

m
b
e
r

↑
4
.5

3
0
.0

0
T

o
p

6
.8

6
4

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

2
2

B
V

-1
1
c

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
to

p
 5

%
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 d
is

a
b
le

d
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

)
H

R
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

3
.6

0
4
.0

0
4
.0

5
4
.0

5
G

re
e
n

↑
5
.4

9
0

M
id

d
le

3
.4

6
4

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

 -
 T

a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
3
8
%

 n
o
t 
m

e
t

 -
 B

V
1
1
a
 a

t 
a
 7

 y
e
a
r 

h
ig

h
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 -
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
fo

u
r 

y
e
a
rs

 b
u
t 
ra

te
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 s
lo

w
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
.

 -
 L

e
e
d
s
 i
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 b

u
t 
b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
m

o
s
t 
C

o
re

 C
it
ie

s

 -
 A

 f
u
ll 

re
p
o
rt

 o
u
tl
in

in
g
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

e
n
t 
to

 S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
. 
  

 -
 K

e
y
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 j
o
in

e
d
 u

p
 w

o
rk

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 H

R
 a

n
d
 E

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il,

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 n

e
w

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 t
o
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
io

n
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 t
a
le

n
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

 -
 T

a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
6
%

 n
o
t 
m

e
t 
b
u
t 
w

a
s
 o

n
ly

 0
.0

4
%

 o
ff
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t

 -
 T

re
n
d
 f
ig

u
re

s
 h

a
v
e
 s

h
o
w

n
 a

 y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
v
e
r 

la
s
t 
3
 y

e
a
rs

 

 -
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
c
e
n
tr

e
s
 f
o
r 

B
M

E
 s

ta
ff
 p

ilo
te

d
 i
n
 C

it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

T
a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 

 2
0
0
8
/9

 w
ill

 s
tr

iv
e
 t
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

T
a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 
 W

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 t
o
 e

m
b
e
d
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

 v
a
lu

e
s
, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

; 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
k
e
y
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
p
o
lic

ie
s
 (

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t)

, 
S

e
n
io

r 
M

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
p
p
ra

is
a
ls

, 
p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 o

f 
n
e
w

 b
e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 o

u
r 

v
a
lu

e
s
. 
In

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

a
 s

a
m

p
le

 s
u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
a
ro

u
n
d
 4

0
%

.

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 a

 p
ro

x
y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 c

o
n
te

x
t 
fo

r 
1
6
a
 (

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
ta

ff
 d

e
c
la

ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 D

D
A

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 a

s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
) 

a
n
d
 i
s
 e

x
tr

a
c
te

d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 O

ff
ic

e
 o

f 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 C

e
n
s
u
s
 t
a
b
le

. 
 T

h
e
 n

e
x
t 
C

e
n
s
u
s
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
.

T
a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 
 D

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 t
h
e
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
, 
it
 a

im
e
d
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
in

 o
u
r 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
, 
a
n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
8
. 
 I
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 
d
a
ta

 h
e
ld

 o
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 S

A
P

 s
y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
8
/9

 (
T

h
e
 2

0
0
7
 s

ta
ff
 s

u
rv

e
y
 s

h
o
w

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
7
%

 o
f 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 c

la
s
s
e
d
 t
h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 a

s
 d

is
a
b
le

d
, 
th

e
 d

e
ta

ils
 h

e
ld

 o
n
 S

A
P

 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 a
 m

u
c
h
 l
o
w

e
r 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
).

T
a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
.

3

Page 67



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 -
 C
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
1
s
t 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

0
7

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

T
re

n
d
 

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 Y

e
a
r-

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

 

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 Y

e
a
r-

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 

P
o
s
it
io

n

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d
 

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d
 

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

Is
s
u
e
s

2
3

B
V

-1
2

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
/s

h
if
ts

 l
o
s
t 
to

 s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e

H
R

M
o
n
th

ly

D
a
y
s

F
a
ll

1
2
.0

0
1
1
.5

0
1
2
.1

8
1
2
.1

8
R

e
d

↓
8
.0

9
1
0
.7

3
B

o
tt
o
m

1
1
.0

7
8

S
o
m

e
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

2
4

B
V

-1
4

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 r

e
ti
ri
n
g
 e

a
rl
y
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
ll-

h
e
a
lt
h
 r

e
ti
re

m
e
n
ts

) 
a
s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

to
ta

l 
w

o
rk

 f
o
rc

e
.

H
R

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
F

a
ll

2
.2

1
1
.5

0
1
.3

9
1
.3

9
G

re
e
n

↑
0
.1

8
0
.9

7
B

o
tt
o
m

0
.7

7
8

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

2
5

B
V

-1
5

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 r

e
ti
ri
n
g
 o

n
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
 o

f 
ill

-h
e
a
lt
h
 a

s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
.

H
R

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
F

a
ll

0
.3

1
0
.3

0
0
.2

1
0
.2

1
G

re
e
n

↑
0
.0

0
0
.3

2
M

id
d
le

0
.3

1
4

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

2
6

B
V

-1
6
a

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
ta

ff
 d

e
c
la

ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 D

D
A

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 a

s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
H

R
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

3
.1

6
3
.5

0
3
.2

0
3
.2

0
R

e
d

↑
4
.4

3
1
.9

M
id

d
le

3
.6

4
6

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

2
7

B
V

-1
7
a

M
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

ta
ff
 a

s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
H

R
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

7
.0

7
.5

7
.7

7
.7

G
re

e
n

↑
5
.2

1
.0

T
o
p

1
0
.2

4
N

o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

2
8

C
P

-E
S

5
1

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
o
 5

8
%

 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 f
e
e
l 
v
a
lu

e
d
 a

s
 a

n
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e

H
R

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

N
.A

.
5
8

6
1

6
1

G
re

e
n

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

B
la

n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

2
9

C
P

-E
S

5
6

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
o
lle

a
g
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l,
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 p

s
y
c
h
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
fa

c
to

rs
)

H
R

S
u
rv

e
y

%
R

is
e

N
.A

.
6
6

6
6

6
6

G
re

e
n

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

B
la

n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
o
m

e
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

 -
 T

a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
1
.5

0
%

 w
a
s
 m

e
t 
w

it
h
 a

 f
a
ll 

o
f 
0
.8

2
%

 s
in

c
e
 2

0
0
6
/0

7

 -
 F

a
ll 

in
 p

a
rt

 d
u
e
 t
o
 n

e
w

 r
e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
0
7
 f
o
r 

e
a
rl
y
 r

e
ti
re

m
e
n
t 
re

s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 f
e
w

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 t
a
k
in

g
 u

p
 e

a
rl
y
 r

e
ti
re

m
e
n
t 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

 -
 B

u
t 
L
e
e
d
s
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

o
tt
o
m

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
re

 c
it
ie

s

 -
 T

h
is

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 i
n
 p

a
rt

 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
V

E
R

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 m
a
n
a
g
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 e

.g
. 
th

e
 e

a
rl
y
 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e

 -
 I
t 
is

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 t
re

n
d
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 i
n
to

 2
0
0
8
/0

9

 -
 T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
1
1
.5

 d
a
y
s
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 m

e
t;

 -
 T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
0
.1

8
 d

a
y
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r;

 -
 3

5
%

 o
f 
L
C

C
 s

ta
ff
 t
o
o
k
 n

o
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 a

t 
a
ll 

d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
;

 -
 T

w
o
 t
h
ir
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
d
a
y
s
 l
o
s
t 
a
re

 d
u
e
 t
o
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
;

 -
 T

h
e
 m

a
in

 c
a
te

g
o
ri
e
s
/c

a
u
s
e
s
 o

f 
s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 a

re
 S

tr
e
s
s
/D

e
p
re

s
s
io

n
/M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 M

u
s
c
u
lo

 S
k
e
le

ta
l 
D

is
o
rd

e
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 m

a
k
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
o
ta

l 
d
a
y
s
 l
o
s
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
n
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 w

it
h
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r;

 -
 T

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 m
o
s
t 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
o
ta

l 
d
a
y
s
 l
o
s
t 
a
re

 A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
, 
C

h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 
 S

p
e
c
if
ic

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
s
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 a
 h

ig
h
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
d
a
y
s
 l
o
s
t 
a
re

 H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
A

c
ti
o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

A
d
u
lt
 P

ro
v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 C

it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
re

 p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 w
e
ll;

 -
 A

t 
th

is
 t
im

e
 i
t 
is

 n
o
t 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
a
re

 L
C

C
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

s
 t
h
e
ir
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 o

u
t-

tu
rn

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

;

 -
 D

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
ic

s
 o

n
ly

 a
g
e
 i
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
w

it
h
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 o

v
e
r 

4
6
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

ly
 m

o
re

 s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
.

 -
 T

a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
3
.5

%
 n

o
t 
m

e
t 
b
u
t 
2
0
0
7
/0

8
 h

a
s
 s

e
e
n
 a

n
 u

p
tu

rn
 i
n
 t
h
e
 %

 o
f 
d
is

a
b
le

d
 s

ta
ff

 -
 T

h
is

 h
a
s
 r

e
v
e
rs

e
d
 t
h
e
 d

o
w

n
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 t
h
re

e
 y

e
a
rs

 -
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
u
n
d
e
r 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

s
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
7
 s

ta
ff
 s

u
rv

e
y
 s

h
o
w

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
7
%

 o
f 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 c

la
s
s
e
d
 t
h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 a

s
 d

is
a
b
le

d
. 
 O

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
1
2
 ¿

 1
8
 m

o
n
th

s
 t
h
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
d
a
ta

 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 m
o
re

 a
c
c
u
ra

te
 p

ic
tu

re

 -
 A

 n
e
w

 D
is

a
b
ili

ty
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il

 -
 K

e
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 'e

n
tr

y
 l
e
v
e
l' 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t
a
ilo

re
d
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
d
a
y
s
.

T
a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 
In

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 a

s
s
is

te
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 a

s
 p

e
r 

1
1
b
 r

e
tu

rn
. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 
o
n
g
o
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 e

-r
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
w

e
b
s
it
e
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
d
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

v
a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 d

is
a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
 g

ro
u
p
s
 t
h
a
n
 w

a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 t
h
e
 c

a
s
e
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
is

te
d
 i
n
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
s
 a

n
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
o
ic

e
. 

L
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 S

e
le

c
ti
o
n
 P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 w
h
ic

h
 p

la
c
e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 n

o
n
 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
m

e
th

o
d
s
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 i
t'
s
 j
o
b
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 h

a
rd

 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h
 g

ro
u
p
s
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
 d

if
fe

ri
n
g
 m

e
th

o
d
s
 o

f 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
to

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 g

re
a
te

r 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 

o
f 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 B

M
E

 b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
.

T
a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
.

T
h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 S

ta
ff
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
re

e
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
; 
p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
fa

c
to

rs
, 
p
s
y
c
h
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
fa

c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
fa

c
to

rs
. 
 P

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 a
ll 

th
re

e
 f
a
c
to

rs
 w

e
re

 m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 o

n
e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
. 
 T

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 a

s
 f
o
llo

w
s
; 
p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
fa

c
to

rs
 6

5
%

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
, 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
fa

c
to

rs
 5

8
%

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

p
s
y
c
h
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
fa

c
to

rs
 7

5
%

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
.

U
n
d
e
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
re

g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 i
ll-

h
e
a
lt
h
 r

e
ti
re

m
e
n
t,
 a

 h
ig

h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
in

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 h

a
s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
. 
T

h
is

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 f
e
w

 r
e
ti
re

m
e
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 f
a
ll 

u
n
d
e
r 

o
u
r 

ta
rg

e
t.
 F

ro
m

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 n
e
w

 r
e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 o

ff
e
ri
n
g
 t
w

o
-t

ie
r 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 d
e
p
e
n
d
in

g
 u

p
o
n
 t
h
e
 d

e
g
re

e
 o

f 
in

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 w

ill
 m

e
a
n
 i
t 
is

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 f
ig

u
re

 

m
a
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
.

4

Page 68



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 -
 C
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
1
s
t 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

0
7

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

T
re

n
d
 

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 Y

e
a
r-

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

 

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 Y

e
a
r-

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 

P
o
s
it
io

n

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d
 

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d
 

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

Is
s
u
e
s

3
0

C
P

-P
E

5
0

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
s
ta

ff
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 7

0
%

H
R

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

N
.A

.
6
9

7
6

7
6

G
re

e
n

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

B
la

n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

3
1

C
P

-P
E

5
1

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

ta
ff
 s

u
rv

e
y
 t
o
 a

b
o
v
e
 3

0
%

H
R

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

N
.A

.
4
0

4
2

4
2

G
re

e
n

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

B
la

n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

3
2

C
P

-P
E

5
3

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 w
h
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 s

c
o
re

 o
f 
2
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 (

o
u
t 
o
f 
4
) 

in
 t
h
e
ir
 

3
6
0
 d

e
g
re

e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k

H
R

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

3
.5

0
N

.A
.

S
e
e
 

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

S
e
e
 

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

B
la

n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

3
3

C
P

-P
E

5
4

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
o
 7

4
%

 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 f
e
e
l 
th

e
y
 a

re
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n

H
R

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

N
.A

.
7
0

7
0

7
0

G
re

e
n

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

B
la

n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

3
4

C
P

-P
E

5
9

E
n
s
u
re

 7
0
%

 o
f 
s
ta

ff
 h

a
v
e
 h

a
d
 a

n
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
H

R
A

n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

N
.A

.
6
4

7
0

7
0

G
re

e
n

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

B
la

n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

3
5

C
P

-P
E

6
0

A
c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 w

o
rk

 r
e
la

te
d
 i
ll-

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 i
n
ju

ry
H

R
A

n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

F
a
ll

3
5
2
5
.0

0
3
4
1
9
.0

0
3
4
0
8
.0

0
3
,4

0
8
.0

0
G

re
e
n

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

3
6

C
P

-P
E

6
1

E
n
s
u
re

 1
0
0
%

 o
f 
s
ta

ff
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
  
In

v
e
s
to

rs
 i
n
 P

e
o
p
le

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

H
R

A
n
n
u
a
lly

Y
e
s
/N

o
Y

e
s

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

1
0
0

G
re

e
n

↔
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

3
7

C
P

-P
E

6
2
a

T
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 b

y
 c

lo
s
in

g
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 s

m
o
k
e
 r

o
o
m

s
 i
n
 c

iv
ic

 b
u
ild

in
g
s
, 

o
ff
ic

e
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
p
o
ts

H
R

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

1
0
0

N
.A

.
1
0
0

1
0
0

↔
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

3
8

L
K

I-
P

E
2

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 a
s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
 p

o
s
t

H
R

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
F

a
ll

9
.6

1
9

0
.0

0
8
.9

0
G

re
e
n

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

T
a
rg

e
t 
m

e
t.

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 s

in
c
e
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 A

c
t 
2
0
0
6
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 r

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
.

T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

e
t.
  
T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 c

o
n
s
ta

n
t 
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
3
 y

e
a
rs

 a
s
 t
h
is

 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
o
 b

e
 a

n
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
tu

rn
o
v
e
r 

to
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 
a
tt
ra

c
ti
n
g
 n

e
w

 s
ta

ff
.

T
a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 -

 s
e
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
C

P
-E

S
5
6
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
.

T
a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 
 T

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
0
6
 s

u
rv

e
y
 h

e
lp

e
d
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 m

e
th

o
d
s
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ta
ff
 s

u
rv

e
y
.

T
h
e
 3

6
0
 d

e
g
re

e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 L

e
e
d
s
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 2
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
 T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

 h
a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 n

e
w

 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 p

ilo
te

d
. 
A

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 
o
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 p

ilo
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

d
.

T
a
rg

e
t 
m

e
t.

T
a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
.

R
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 b

u
t 
e
x
c
lu

d
e
s
 L

e
e
d
s
 H

o
m

e
s
.

T
h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
3
%

 o
n
 t
h
e
 0

6
/0

7
 t
o
ta

l 
a
n
d
 f
o
llo

w
s
 a

 9
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 0

5
/0

6
 t
o
ta

l.
 T

h
e
 f
ig

u
re

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
a
 3

%
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r.

T
h
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 'H

e
a
th

 a
n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

y
s
te

m
' p

ro
je

c
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
T

h
e
 k

e
y
 a

im
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 t
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 e

m
b
e
d
 a

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
y
s
te

m
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
.

5

Page 69



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 -
 C
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
1
s
t 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

0
7

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

T
re

n
d
 

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 Y

e
a
r-

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

 

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 Y

e
a
r-

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 

P
o
s
it
io

n

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d
 

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d
 

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

Is
s
u
e
s

3
9

B
V

-3

C
P

-A
S

5
6

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
it
iz

e
n
s
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

S
u
rv

e
y

%
R

is
e

5
4

N
.A

.
S

e
e
 

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

6
1

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

4
0

C
P

-A
S

5
0

%
 o

f 
p
ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 o

u
ts

id
e
 n

o
rm

a
l 
9
-5

 w
o
rk

in
g
 h

o
u
rs

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

7
5

1
0
0

9
6

9
6

R
e
d

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

4
1

C
P

-A
S

5
1
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 c

a
lls

 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

th
a
t 
a
re

 a
n
s
w

e
re

d
 (

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
c
e
n
tr

e
)

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
1
.0

0
9
2
.0

0
9
4
.0

0
9
4
.0

0
G

re
e
n

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

4
2

C
P

-A
S

5
1
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 c

a
lls

 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

th
a
t 
a
re

 a
n
s
w

e
re

d
 (

o
th

e
r 

h
ig

h
 v

o
lu

m
e
 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 

c
o
n
ta

c
ts

)
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

4
4
.0

0
4
4
.0

0
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
o
m

e
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

4
3

C
P

-A
S

5
1
c

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 c

a
lls

 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

th
a
t 
a
re

 a
n
s
w

e
re

d
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

8
5
.0

0
9
0
.0

0
7
8
.0

0
7
8
.0

0
R

e
d

↓
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
o
m

e
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

4
4

C
P

-A
S

5
2

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

(i
n
 p

e
rs

o
n
 a

n
d
 b

y
 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
) 

th
a
t 
a
re

 r
e
s
o
lv

e
d
 a

t 
fi
rs

t 
p
o
in

t 
o
f 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 
(F

P
O

C
)

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

8
5
.0

0
8
0
.0

0
8
7
.0

0
8
7
.0

0
G

re
e
n

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

D
u
e
 t
o
 t
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
is

s
u
e
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 E

ri
c
s
s
o
n
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
, 
G

ro
u
p
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
 c

a
ll 

d
e
ta

il 
o
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

J
u
ly

, 
A

u
g
u
s
t,
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

a
n
d
 O

c
to

b
e
r.

 T
h
e
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

is
 d

a
ta

 h
a
s
 s

e
v
e
re

ly
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 m

o
n
th

s
, 
a
n
d
 a

s
 a

 

re
s
u
lt
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 f
o
r 

q
u
a
rt

e
rs

 2
 &

 3
. 
In

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
t 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
a
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 m

o
n
th

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
is

 e
ff
e
c
t.
 S

in
c
e
 t
h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n
tr

e
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 o
p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
6
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 o

u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
re

 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

. 
T

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 e

n
q
u
ir
e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 b

e
e
n
 m

ig
ra

te
d
: 
G

ra
s
s
 C

u
tt
in

g
, 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
s
k
, 
C

h
o
ic

e
 B

a
s
e
d
 L

e
tt
in

g
s
, 
H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 A

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
E

n
e
rg

y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
, 
E

le
c
to

ra
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 S

w
it
c
h
b
o
a
rd

. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 
o
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 e

it
h
e
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

la
n
n
e
d
, 
o
r 

b
e
in

g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 f
o
r 

m
ig

ra
ti
o
n
.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n
tr

e
 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 l
in

e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 h

ig
h
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r,

 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 m

ig
ra

te
d
 m

id
 y

e
a
r 

h
a
v
e
 s

e
e
n
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

ix
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

n
o
n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n
tr

e
 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 l
in

e
s
 r

ig
h
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 

y
e
a
r.

T
h
e
 g

re
a
te

s
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 B

ir
th

s
, 
D

e
a
th

s
 a

n
d
 M

a
rr

ia
g
e
s
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 w

h
e
re

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 d

ip
p
e
d
 t
o
 1

7
%

. 
 T

h
is

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

h
o
rt

ly
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
lly

.

F
ro

m
 1

s
t 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
, 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
w

ill
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 u

s
 t
o
 b

e
g
in

 t
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
a
 n

e
w

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r,
 N

I 
1
4
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
`a

v
o
id

a
b
le

 c
o
n
ta

c
t'.

T
h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
7
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
s
u
rv

e
y
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
s
u
rv

e
y
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 2

0
0
5
, 
th

is
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 c

o
lu

m
n

T
h
is

 P
I 
is

 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
5
3
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 P

ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 I
) 

p
ro

m
o
te

 o
p
e
n
in

g
 t
im

e
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
ir
 w

e
b
 p

a
g
e
, 
ii)

 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 o

p
e
n
 o

u
ts

id
e
 9

a
m

-5
p
m

, 
a
n
d
 i
ii)

 m
a
k
e
 s

o
m

e
 a

s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
o
n
lin

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

r 
tr

a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 
 A

t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
, 
2
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
d
, 
1
 a

m
b
e
r 

a
n
d
 5

0
 

g
re

e
n
. 
 A

d
d
in

g
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 a

m
b
e
r 

a
n
d
 g

re
e
n
 m

a
k
e
s
 5

0
/5

3
 =

 9
6
.2

%
. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 c

h
a
n
n
e
l 
g
ro

u
p
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

h
a
ir
e
d
 b

y
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
h
a
s
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
e
a
m

.

T
h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 y

e
a
r-

e
n
d
 f
ig

u
re

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
w

h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
 (

9
1
%

).
  
T

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fi
g
u
re

 h
a
s
 e

it
h
e
r 

b
e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 o

r 
s
u
rp

a
s
s
e
d
 p

e
a
k
in

g
 a

t 
9
7
%

 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
. 
 T

h
is

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
w

a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 a

 p
e
ri
o
d
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 v

o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
c
a
lls

 m
a
d
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

c
e
n
tr

e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 1

1
.5

%
.

D
u
e
 t
o
 t
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
is

s
u
e
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 E

ri
c
s
s
o
n
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
, 
G

ro
u
p
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
 c

a
ll 

d
e
ta

il 
o
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

J
u
ly

, 
A

u
g
u
s
t,
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

a
n
d
 O

c
to

b
e
r.

 T
h
e
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

is
 d

a
ta

 h
a
s
 s

e
v
e
re

ly
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 m

o
n
th

s
, 
a
n
d
 a

s
 a

 

re
s
u
lt
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 f
o
r 

q
u
a
rt

e
rs

 2
 &

 3
. 
In

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
t 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
a
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 m

o
n
th

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
is

 e
ff
e
c
t.
 S

in
c
e
 t
h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n
tr

e
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 o
p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
6
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 o

u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
re

 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

. 
T

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 e

n
q
u
ir
e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 b

e
e
n
 m

ig
ra

te
d
: 
G

ra
s
s
 C

u
tt
in

g
, 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
s
k
, 
C

h
o
ic

e
 B

a
s
e
d
 L

e
tt
in

g
s
, 
H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 A

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
E

n
e
rg

y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
, 
E

le
c
to

ra
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 S

w
it
c
h
b
o
a
rd

. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 
o
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 e

it
h
e
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

la
n
n
e
d
, 
o
r 

b
e
in

g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 f
o
r 

m
ig

ra
ti
o
n
.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n
tr

e
 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 l
in

e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 h

ig
h
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r,

 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 m

ig
ra

te
d
 m

id
 y

e
a
r 

h
a
v
e
 s

e
e
n
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

ix
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

n
o
n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n
tr

e
 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 l
in

e
s
 r

ig
h
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 

y
e
a
r.

6

Page 70



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 -
 C
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
1
s
t 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

0
7

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

T
re

n
d
 

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 Y

e
a
r-

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

 

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 Y

e
a
r-

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 

P
o
s
it
io

n

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d
 

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d
 

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

Is
s
u
e
s

4
5

C
P

-A
S

5
3

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 c

a
lls

 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

th
a
t 
a
re

 h
a
n
d
le

d
 b

y
 a

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
c
e
n
tr

e
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

6
7
.0

0
8
0
.0

0
8
2
.0

0
8
2
.0

0
G

re
e
n

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
o
m

e
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

4
6

C
P

-A
S

5
4

V
o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
tr

a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
e
lf
-s

e
rv

ic
e

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

R
is

e
3
1
7
9
5
4
.0

0
3
4
9
7
4
9
.0

0
4
6
7
2
4
5
.0

0
4
7
5
,1

6
6
.0

0
G

re
e
n

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

4
7

L
K

I-
C

U
S

1
0

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
C

IT
U

 T
ra

n
s
la

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o
n
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

R
is

e
1
4
9
2
7

1
5
6
7
3

1
5
1
5
3

1
5
4
4
8

A
m

b
e
r

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

4
8

L
K

I-
C

U
S

1
5
a

%
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 w

it
h
in

 1
5
 d

a
y
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

4
6

8
0

6
9

6
9

A
m

b
e
r

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

4
9

L
K

I-
C

U
S

1
5
b

%
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 n
o
t 
re

s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 w

it
h
in

 1
5
 d

a
y
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
re

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 w

it
h
 h

o
ld

in
g
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 1
5
 

d
a
y
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

N
.A

.
8
0
.0

0
1
0
.0

0
1
2
.0

0
R

e
d

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

B
la

n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

5
0

L
K

I-
C

U
S

1
6

%
 o

f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 s
e
e
n
 i
n
 p

e
rs

o
n
 w

it
h
in

 1
5
 m

in
u
te

s
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

8
7

8
3

8
9

9
0

G
re

e
n

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

5
1

L
K

I-
C

U
S

1
7
a

%
 o

f 
le

tt
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 w

it
h
in

 1
0
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

N
.A

.
8
5

9
4

9
3

G
re

e
n

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

B
la

n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

5
2

L
K

I-
C

U
S

1
7
b

%
 o

f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

e
m

a
ils

 s
e
n
t 
to

 p
u
b
lic

ly
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
d
 e

m
a
il 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 w

it
h
in

 1
0
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

N
.A

.
8
5

9
9

9
8

G
re

e
n

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

B
la

n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
d
a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 t
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
. 
D

a
ta

 h
a
s
 o

n
ly

 b
e
e
n
 s

u
p
p
lie

d
 f
ro

m
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 
1
1
 o

u
t 
o
f 
th

e
 5

3
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 f
u
ll 

y
e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
, 
a
n
d
 i
s
 a

 m
ix

tu
re

 o
f 
s
a
m

p
le

d
 a

n
d
 w

h
o
le

 m
o
n
th

/q
u
a
rt

e
r 

d
a
ta

.

C
L
T

 h
a
v
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 a
g
re

e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 c

o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 e

m
a
ils

 i
s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
a
n
d
 f
o
rm

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
a
n
d
 v

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
is

 s
u
p
p
lie

d
. 
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
 a

re
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n
y
in

g
 

re
p
o
rt

.

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
d
a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 t
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
. 
D

a
ta

 h
a
s
 o

n
ly

 b
e
e
n
 s

u
p
p
lie

d
 f
ro

m
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 
1
1
 o

u
t 
o
f 
th

e
 5

3
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 f
u
ll 

y
e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
, 
a
n
d
 i
s
 a

 m
ix

tu
re

 o
f 
s
a
m

p
le

d
 a

n
d
 w

h
o
le

 m
o
n
th

/q
u
a
rt

e
r 

d
a
ta

.

C
L
T

 h
a
v
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 a
g
re

e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 c

o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 e

m
a
ils

 i
s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
a
n
d
 f
o
rm

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
a
n
d
 v

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
is

 s
u
p
p
lie

d
. 
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
 a

re
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n
y
in

g
 

re
p
o
rt

.

F
ig

u
re

s
 f
o
r 

in
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 o

n
ly

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 o

n
c
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 i
n
te

rp
re

te
rs

. 
T

h
is

 m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
o
m

e
 i
n
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o
n
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
to

w
a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

a
re

 n
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
a
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r'
s
 d

a
ta

. 
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
, 
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 j
u
s
t 
s
h
o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fi
g
u
re

 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r,

 t
h
e
 f
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 i
n
te

rp
re

ti
n
g
 f
ig

u
re

 f
o
r 

M
a
rc

h
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 

y
e
a
r,

 w
ill

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 w

h
e
n
 a

ll 
th

e
 i
n
te

rp
re

te
r 

in
v
o
ic

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
.

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
5
0
%

 i
n
 r

e
a
l 
te

rm
s
 f
ro

m
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
rs

 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 
4
6
%

, 
th

e
 f
in

a
l 
fi
g
u
re

 o
f 
6
9
%

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

0
7
/0

8
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
8
0
%

 s
h
o
w

s
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
. 
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

 w
a
s
 r

a
is

e
d
 w

it
h
 l
o
w

 p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 t
h
ir
d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r.

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 s

e
e
n
 i
n
 s

o
m

e
 a

re
a
s
 b

u
t 
m

o
re

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 n

e
e
d
e
d
.

T
h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

th
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
ly

. 
T

h
e
 f
in

a
l 
fi
g
u
re

 o
f 
1
0
%

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
8
0
%

 s
h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 s

o
m

e
 w

a
y
 t
o
 g

o
 o

n
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
o
rd

in
g
 o

f 
th

is
 a

c
ti
o
n
. 
T

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

th
is

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 a

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 p

o
in

t 
a
t 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 B

o
a
rd

.

D
u
e
 t
o
 t
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
is

s
u
e
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 E

ri
c
s
s
o
n
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
, 
G

ro
u
p
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
 c

a
ll 

d
e
ta

il 
o
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

J
u
ly

, 
A

u
g
u
s
t,
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

a
n
d
 O

c
to

b
e
r.

 T
h
e
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

is
 d

a
ta

 h
a
s
 s

e
v
e
re

ly
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 m

o
n
th

s
, 
a
n
d
 a

s
 a

 

re
s
u
lt
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 f
o
r 

q
u
a
rt

e
rs

 2
 &

 3
. 
T

h
e
 s

e
a
s
o
n
a
lit

y
 o

f 
c
a
lls

 t
o
 s

o
m

e
 l
in

e
s
 c

a
n
 h

a
v
e
 a

 d
is

to
rt

in
g
 e

ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
 F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
in

 M
a
rc

h
 0

8
 a

 4
0
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 f
ro

m
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 0
8
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
a
lls

 a
n
s
w

e
re

d
 b

y
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 l
in

e
, 
c
o
u
p
le

d
 w

it
h
 a

 s
e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

a
lls

 a
t 

th
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
c
e
n
tr

e
, 
h
a
s
 h

a
d
 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

ra
ti
o
. 
In

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
t 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
a
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 m

o
n
th

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
is

 e
ff
e
c
t.
 S

in
c
e
 t
h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n
tr

e
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 o
p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
6
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 o

u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

. 
T

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 e

n
q
u
ir
e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 b

e
e
n
 m

ig
ra

te
d
: 
G

ra
s
s
 C

u
tt
in

g
, 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
s
k
, 
C

h
o
ic

e
 B

a
s
e
d
 L

e
tt
in

g
s
, 
H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 A

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
E

n
e
rg

y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
, 
E

le
c
to

ra
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 S

w
it
c
h
b
o
a
rd

. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 
o
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 e

it
h
e
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

p
la

n
n
e
d
, 
o
r 

b
e
in

g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 f
o
r 

m
ig

ra
ti
o
n
.

T
h
e
 2

0
0
7
-0

8
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 P

I 
w

a
s
 3

4
9
,7

4
9
. 
T

h
e
 2

0
0
7
-0

8
 a

c
tu

a
l 
w

a
s
 4

6
7
,2

4
5
, 
s
o
m

e
 1

1
7
,4

9
6
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t,
 a

 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
3
4
%

 a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 I
n
 f
u
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

 a
 m

o
re

 m
o
d
e
s
t 
g
ro

w
th

 o
f 
a
ro

u
n
d
 1

0
%

 p
/a

 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
, 
re

fl
e
c
ti
n
g
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 t
o
 c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 o
f 
d
o
in

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

n
lin

e
. 
F

u
tu

re
 l
e
v
e
ls

 

c
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 b

o
o
s
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il,

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 u

p
 t
o
 1

7
5
,0

0
0
 o

n
lin

e
/t
e
x
t 
b
id

s
 f
o
r 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

n
d
 u

p
 t
o
 5

0
,0

0
0
 b

u
lk

y
 i
te

m
 b

o
o
k
in

g
s
, 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 o

th
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 o

n
lin

e
 b

o
o
k
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

7

Page 71



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 -
 C
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
1
s
t 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

0
7

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

T
re

n
d
 

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 Y

e
a
r-

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

 

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 Y

e
a
r-

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 

P
o
s
it
io

n

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d
 

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d
 

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

Is
s
u
e
s

5
3

L
K

I-
C

U
S

1
8

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o
n
 r

e
q
u
e
s
ts

 m
e
t

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
5

9
5

9
3

9
2

A
m

b
e
r

↓
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

5
4

L
K

I-
C

U
S

1
9

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
tr

a
n
s
la

ti
o
n
 r

e
q
u
e
s
ts

 m
e
t 
w

it
h
in

 a
g
re

e
d
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
8

9
8

8
9

8
9

R
e
d

↓
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

5
5

L
K

I-
C

U
S

2
0

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
e
m

a
ils

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 v

ia
 p

u
b
lic

ly
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
d
 e

m
a
il 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
s
 a

c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 o
n
e
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%
R

is
e

9
6

8
5

9
9

9
9

G
re

e
n

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

5
6

L
K

I-
C

U
S

9

W
e
lf
a
re

 r
ig

h
ts

 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
g
a
in

s
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

£
R

is
e

8
5
4
2
5
8
1
.0

0
8
0
0
0
0
0
0
.0

0
9
9
7
6
9
4
9
.0

0
#
#
#
#
#
#
#
#
#
#

G
re

e
n

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

5
7

B
V

-2
a

C
P

-E
O

5
0

T
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
(i
f 
a
n
y
) 

o
f 
th

e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 f
o
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
to

 w
h
ic

h
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 c
o
n
fo

rm
s

E
q
u
a
l 

O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

L
e
v
e
l

R
is

e
3

3
3

3
G

re
e
n

↔
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

5
8

B
V

-2
b

T
h
e
 d

u
ty

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 r
a
c
e
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
E

q
u
a
l 

O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

7
4

7
9

7
9

7
9

G
re

e
n

↑
8
4

5
8

M
id

d
le

8
2

4
S

o
m

e
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

5
9

C
P

-E
O

5
2

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 f
e
e
l 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 g

e
n
u
in

e
ly

 c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 f
a
ir
n
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

a
ll.

E
q
u
a
l 

O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

6
1

6
8

7
6

7
2

G
re

e
n

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

6
0

B
V

-2
2
6
a

T
o
ta

l 
a
m

o
u
n
t 
s
p
e
n
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
n
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

A
n
n
u
a
lly

£
R

is
e

1
7
0
2
4
6
7
.0

0
N

.A
.

S
e
e
 

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

S
e
e
 

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

B
la

n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
o
m

e
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
s
in

c
e
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
s
u
rv

e
y
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

it
h
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
1
1
%

 p
o
in

ts
. 
 T

h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
re

fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 e

ff
o
rt

s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
d
e
 w

it
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n
g
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 i
s
s
u
e
. 
 T

h
is

 h
a
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 N

o
w

 n
e
w

s
p
a
p
e
r 

a
n
d
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 a

n
d
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 f
o
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.

T
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 u
n
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
p
re

s
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
.

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
d
a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 t
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
. 
D

a
ta

 h
a
s
 o

n
ly

 b
e
e
n
 s

u
p
p
lie

d
 f
ro

m
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
1
3
 o

u
t 
o
f 
4
3
 e

m
a
il 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 f
u
ll 

y
e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
, 
a
n
d
 a

s
 a

 m
ix

tu
re

 o
f 
s
a
m

p
le

d
 a

n
d
 w

h
o
le

 m
o
n
th

/q
u
a
rt

e
r 

d
a
ta

. 
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
lly

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 m

a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
th

e
 e

m
a
il 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 d

a
ta

, 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 t
h
e
 v

o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
m

is
s
in

g
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 u

n
k
n
o
w

n
.

T
h
e
 u

n
it
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
tw

o
 M

c
M

ill
a
n
 W

e
lf
a
re

 R
ig

h
ts

 W
o
rk

e
rs

. 
G

a
in

s
 a

re
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 e

q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 w

e
e
k
ly

 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
g
a
in

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r.

 F
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
 u

s
in

g
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 
e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

c
tu

a
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
g
a
in

s
. 
T

h
e
 Y

e
a
r 

E
n
d
 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
 

b
y
 t
a
k
in

g
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
a
ll 

w
e
e
k
ly

 g
a
in

s
, 
a
c
tu

a
l 
a
n
d
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

m
u
lt
ip

lie
d
 b

y
 5

2
 p

lu
s
 a

n
y
 o

n
e
 o

ff
 g

a
in

s
. 
T

h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 o

n
ly

 c
o
rr

e
c
t 
a
t 
th

e
 t
im

e
 i
t 
is

 c
a
lc

u
la

te
d
 a

s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
a
lly

 b
e
in

g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 t
o
 a

c
tu

a
l 
fi
g
u
re

s
.

A
ll 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
, 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 A

rm
s
 L

e
n
g
th

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

s
 o

f 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
  
th

a
t 
m

e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

le
v
e
l 
th

re
e
 o

f 
th

e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

. 
T

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 p
o
rt

fo
lio

s
 w

e
re

 v
a
lid

a
te

d
  
b
y
 T

h
e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 T

e
a
m

 a
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 w

e
re

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
  
th

e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

o
h
e
s
io

n
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
R

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
, 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 v

a
lid

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
6
. 
T

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

 w
a
s
 e

x
te

rn
a
lly

 v
a
lid

a
te

d
  
b
y
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
E

q
u
a
lit

y
, 
S

h
e
ff
ie

ld
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
le

v
e
l 
fo

u
r,

 u
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 I
D

&
A

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 w

it
h
in

 e
a
c
h
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

, 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
, 

A
rm

s
 L

e
n
g
th

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
ly

 s
in

c
e
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
6
.

B
V

2
b
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 t
h
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

u
s
 t
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
o
u
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 R

a
c
e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 D

u
ty

. 
T

h
e
 1

9
 p

o
in

ts
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t
h
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

e
v
id

e
n
c
in

g
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 c

le
a
r 

ra
c
e
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

. 
W

e
 c

a
n
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 a

n
 a

c
tu

a
l 
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
e
d
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

B
M

E
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ff
. 
 W

e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

b
le

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

1
5
 o

u
t 
o
f 
th

e
 1

9
 a

re
a
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

B
V

2
b
, 
w

h
ic

h
 m

e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
7
9
%

 s
e
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
la

n
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
.

A
ll 

th
e
 'U

n
m

e
t 
R

e
q
u
e
s
ts

' a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
re

s
u
lt
, 
th

e
re

 a
re

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
'S

e
s
s
io

n
s
 U

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
' y

e
t 
to

 b
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
. 
T

h
e
 'P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
R

e
q
u
e
s
ts

 M
e
t' 

w
ill

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 w

h
e
n
 a

ll 
th

e
s
e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t.
 I
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 
a
 r

e
c
e
n
t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 r

e
q
u
e
s
ts

 f
o
r 

tr
a
n
s
la

ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 i
n
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 l
it
tl
e
 r

e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
s
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

u
e
 t
o
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
lim

it
e
d
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
s
u
it
a
b
ly

 q
u
a
lif

ie
d
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

. 
S

ta
ff
 s

h
o
rt

a
g
e
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

h
a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 u

n
it
s
 a

b
ili

ty
 t
o
 f
u
lf
il 

in
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o
n
 r

e
q
u
e
s
ts

. 
A

 S
e
n
io

r 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 O
ff
ic

e
r 

h
a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 r

e
c
ru

it
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 v

a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
t 

a
n
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 U

n
it
 i
n
 c

o
m

in
g
 m

o
n
th

s
.

S
ta

ff
 s

h
o
rt

a
g
e
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

h
a
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 u

n
it
s
 a

b
ili

ty
 t
o
 f
u
lf
il 

tr
a
n
s
la

ti
o
n
 r

e
q
u
e
s
ts

. 
A

 S
e
n
io

r 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 O
ff
ic

e
r 

h
a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 r

e
c
ru

it
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 v

a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
t 
a
n
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 U

n
it
 i
n
 c

o
m

in
g
 m

o
n
th

s
. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 
a
 r

e
c
e
n
t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 r

e
q
u
e
s
ts

 f
o
r 

tr
a
n
s
la

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

in
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 l
it
tl
e
 r

e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
s
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

u
e
 t
o
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
lim

it
e
d
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
s
u
it
a
b
ly

 q
u
a
lif

ie
d
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

.

8

Page 72



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 -
 C
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
0
7
/0
8

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y

&
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

G
o
o
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 

T
a
rg

e
t

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

P
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 

a
t 
3
1
s
t 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

0
7

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

O
n
 t
a
rg

e
t

Y
e
a
r 

o
n
 Y

e
a
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

T
re

n
d
 

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

T
o
p
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 Y

e
a
r-

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

B
o
tt
o
m

 

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 Y

e
a
r-

E
n
d
 d

a
ta

)

A
ll 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 

P
o
s
it
io

n

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d
 

d
a
ta

)

C
o
re

 C
it
y
 

p
o
s
it
io

n

1
 =

 T
o
p

8
 =

 B
o
tt
o
m

(B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

Y
e
a
r-

E
n
d
 

d
a
ta

)

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

Is
s
u
e
s

6
1

B
V

-2
2
6
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
m

o
n
ie

s
 s

p
e
n
t 
o
n
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 g

iv
e
n
 t
o
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 h

o
ld

in
g
 t
h
e
 C

L
S

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 M

a
rk

 a
t 
"G

e
n
e
ra

l 
H

e
lp

" 
le

v
e
l 
a
n
d
 a

b
o
v
e
.

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

9
2
.0

1
9
1
.1

3
S

e
e
 

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

S
e
e
 

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

B
la

n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
o
m

e
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

6
2

B
V

-2
2
6
c

T
o
ta

l 
a
m

o
u
n
t 
s
p
e
n
t 
o
n
 A

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
, 
w

e
lf
a
re

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
m

e
r 

m
a
tt
e
rs

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

.
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

A
n
n
u
a
lly

£
R

is
e

4
8
3
8
5
3
0
.0

0
4
9
6
8
2
0
3
.0

0
S

e
e
 

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

S
e
e
 

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

B
la

n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
o
m

e
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

6
3

C
P

-E
S

5
2

A
c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 C
P

A
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
s
c
o
re

 o
f 
4
 o

u
t 
o
f 
4

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

R
is

e
3

4
3

3
R

e
d

↔
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
o
m

e
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

6
4

C
P

-E
S

5
3

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

7
1
.0

0
N

.A
.

S
e
e
 

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

S
e
e
 

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

B
la

n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
o
m

e
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

6
5

C
P

-E
S

5
4

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
o
 6

0
%

 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 f
e
e
l 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

s
 w

e
ll 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
m

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
R

is
e

4
5

6
0

5
9

5
9

R
e
d

↑
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

6
6

C
P

-E
S

5
5

A
c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 s
c
o
re

 o
f 
3
 o

u
t 
o
f 
4
 o

n
 t
h
e
 C

P
A

 u
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

R
is

e
3

3
3

3
G

re
e
n

↔
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
B

la
n
k

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

S
o
m

e
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

T
h
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
in

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

re
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

n
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
s
c
o
re

 o
f 
3
. 
 A

 s
c
o
re

 o
f 
4
 o

u
t 
o
f 
4
, 
th

e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
s
c
o
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 w

a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 t
h
e
m

e
 o

f 
a
m

b
it
io

n
.

S
c
o
re

s
 o

f 
3
 w

e
re

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 f
o
r 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
, 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
, 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t.
  
O

v
e
ra

ll 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
a
s
 j
u
d
g
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 w

e
ll.

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 u
n
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

th
e
 3

0
th

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
8

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
v
e
ry

 n
a
rr

o
w

ly
 m

is
s
e
d
 i
ts

 t
a
rg

e
t 
th

e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
s
in

c
e
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
s
u
rv

e
y
 (

+
 1

9
%

 p
o
in

ts
).

  
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 g

o
o
d
 b

u
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
.

T
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
re

fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 e

ff
o
rt

s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
d
e
 w

it
h
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 l
ik

e
 T

e
a
m

 T
a
lk

 a
n
d
 T

e
a
m

 T
a
lk

e
r,

 I
n
 B

ri
e
f,
 S

m
a
rt

e
r 

W
o
rk

in
g
 B

e
tt
e
r 

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 u

p
d
a
te

s
 a

n
d
 P

o
d
 C

a
s
ts

 e
tc

¿

In
 t
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T

ra
v
e
l 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
2
0
0
6
, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
a
s
 j
u
d
g
e
d
 3

* 
a
n
d
 "

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 A

d
e
q
u
a
te

ly
".

T
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 u
n
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
p
re

s
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
.

T
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 u
n
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
p
re

s
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
.

9

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



D
ra
ft
 E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 2
0
0
8
/2
0
0
9
 

E
x
tr
a
c
t 
re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
C
e
n
tr
a
l 
&
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 F
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
) 

 S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
ri
s
k
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

M
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
 b
y
 

a
u
d
it
e
d
 b
o
d
y
 

R
e
s
id
u
a
l 

a
u
d
it
 r
is
k
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 

re
s
id
u
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 r
is
k
 

L
in
k
 t
o
 a
u
d
it
o
r’
s
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
: 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
th
ro
u
g
h
 

o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 

s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 i
s
 

in
c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t.
 

S
e
v
e
n
 n
e
w
 

c
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 

s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

Y
e
s
 

W
e
 w
ill
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
, 
fo
c
u
s
s
in
g
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

m
a
d
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

a
re
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 

K
L
O
E
 4
.1
 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
m
a
n
a
g
e
s
 i
ts
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 r
is
k
s
. 

 

 

 

 

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



3
S

C
R

U
T

IN
Y

 B
O

A
R

D
 (

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
) 

W
O

R
K

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
  

(A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0
8

) 
  

  
  

 A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

 
   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 O
U
T
S
T
A
N
D
IN
G
 I
S
S
U
E
S
 

   
  

  
  

  
  

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

1
. 

S
in

g
le

 M
a

n
a

g
e

d
 F

ra
u

d
 T

e
a
m

 -
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 b

y
 B

o
a

rd
 o

n
 2

1
s
t  D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
0
7

 
  

2
. 

H
R

 P
o

lic
ie

s
 -

 P
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 b

y
 B

o
a

rd
 o

n
 2

1
s
t  D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
0
7

 
   

  
  3

. 
D

e
ta

ile
d

 A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c
e
 A

n
a

ly
s
is

 –
- 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 r
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 b

y
 B

o
a

rd
 o

n
 2

n
d
 A

p
ri
l 
 

  
  

  
2

0
0
8

 

 
4

. 
T

h
a

t 
th

e
 B

o
a

rd
’s

 s
u

c
c
e
s
s
o

r 
in

 t
h
e

 n
e

w
 m

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
y
e

a
r 

b
e

 a
s
k
e
d

 t
o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n

 i
ts

 w
o

rk
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o

r 
2
0

0
8

/0
9

 a
  

  
  

  
re

p
o

rt
 o

n
 a

 r
e

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
a

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 s

y
s
te

m
 t
o

 b
e

 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
e

d
 w

h
e

re
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

 f
o

r 
b

lu
e

 c
o

lla
r 

a
n
d

 p
a

rt
 t
im

e
 s

ta
ff

 w
e

re
  

  
  

  
n

o
t 
d

e
e

m
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 –

 R
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 b

y
 B

o
a

rd
 o

n
 2

5
th

 A
p
ri
l 
2

0
0

8
 

5
. 

T
h
a

t 
th

is
 B

o
a

rd
 n

o
te

s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 B

V
 P

I 
1

1
a

 ‘
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

to
p

 5
%

 o
f 

e
a

rn
e

rs
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 w

o
m

e
n

’ 
a

n
d

 
th

a
t 
fu

rt
h
e

r 
w

o
rk

 b
e

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 -
 R

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 b

y
 B

o
a

rd
 o

n
 2

5
th

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0
8

 
 

6
. 

T
h
a

t 
a
n

 i
n

te
ri
m

 r
e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 N
a

rr
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 G
a
p

 -
 A

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

s
 t

o
 L

a
n

d
lin

e
s
 I
n

te
rn

e
t 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 i
n

 s
ix

 m
o
n

th
s
 t

im
e

 t
o

  
 

  
  

  
th

e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
o

r 
B

o
a

rd
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
a

 s
e
m

in
a

r 
b
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

is
 f
o

r 
a

ll 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

- 
R

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 b

y
 B

o
a

rd
 o

n
 2

5
th
 A

p
ri
l 
 

  
  

 2
0

0
8

 

 

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



L
E

E
D

S
 C

IT
Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

 
F
O

R
W

A
R

D
 P

L
A

N
 O

F
 K

E
Y
 D

E
C

IS
IO

N
S

 
F
o
r 
th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 1
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
8
 t
o
 3
0
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

 

K
e
y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

D
a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 D

e
c
is

io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(T
o
 w
h
o
m
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e
) 

W
a
rd
 B
a
s
e
d
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 

2
0
0
8
 &
 2
0
0
9
- 
C
a
p
it
a
l 

S
c
h
e
m
e
 N

o
: 

1
4
2
3
6
/0
0
0
/0
0
0
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 t
o
 g
iv
e
 

a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 s
p
e
n
d
 /
 

a
p
p
ro
v
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 G

u
id
a
n
c
e
 

P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 –
 C

it
y
 W

id
e
 

in
it
ia
ti
v
e
- 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 t
o
 b
e
 

a
llo
c
a
te
d
 £
1
0
,0
0
0
 e
a
c
h
 

o
v
e
r 
2
 y
e
a
rs
 t
o
 a
llo
c
a
te
 a
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 a
 s
tr
ic
t 

G
u
id
a
n
c
e
 P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
. 
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

(P
o
rt
fo
lio
: 
C
e
n
tr
a
l 

a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
) 

 

1
1
/6
/0
8
 

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 M

e
m
b
e
r 

  

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

a
k
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 
th
e
 R
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

o
f 
th
e
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 w
id
e
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
. 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

  

1
/8
/0
8
 

E
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 U
n
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

s
ta
ff
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 f
ro
m
 l
a
te
 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
8
. 

  

C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
D
e
le
g
a
te
d
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

 

 

Page 79



  N
O

T
E

S
 

 K
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
  
a
re
 t
h
o
s
e
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
: 

•
 

w
h
ic
h
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 i
n
c
u
rr
in
g
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 o
r 
m
a
k
in
g
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 o
v
e
r 
£
5
0
0
,0
0
0
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
, 
o
r 

•
 

a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 l
iv
in
g
 o
r 
w
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 a
n
 a
re
a
 c
o
m
p
ri
s
in
g
 t
w
o
 o
r 
m
o
re
 w
a
rd
s
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 P
o
rt

fo
li
o
s
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

 

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
n
d
 C

o
rp
o
ra
te
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
R
ic
h
a
rd
 B
re
tt
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
A
n
d
re
w
 C
a
rt
e
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
S
te
v
e
 S
m
it
h
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
J
o
h
n
 L
e
s
lie
 C
a
rt
e
r 

L
e
is
u
re
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
J
o
h
n
 P
ro
c
te
r 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
S
te
w
a
rt
 G

o
lt
o
n
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
R
ic
h
a
rd
 H
a
rk
e
r 

A
d
u
lt
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
P
e
te
r 
H
a
rr
a
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 L
a
b
o
u
r 
G
ro
u
p
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
K
e
it
h
 W

a
k
e
fi
e
ld
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 M

o
rl
e
y
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
G
ro
u
p
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
R
o
b
e
rt
 F
in
n
ig
a
n
 

A
d
v
is
o
ry
 M

e
m
b
e
r 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
J
u
d
it
h
 B
la
k
e
 

 In
 c
a
s
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 t
o
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 a
re
 n
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
, 
5
 d
a
y
s
 n
o
ti
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 s
u
c
h
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 b
y
 w

a
y
 o
f 
th
e
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
. 
 

Page 80



   
L
E

E
D

S
 C

IT
Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

 
B

U
D

G
E

T
 A

N
D

 P
O

L
IC

Y
 F

R
A

M
E

W
O

R
K

 D
E

C
IS

IO
N

S
 

 D
e
c
is

io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te

d
 D

a
te

 o
f 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 M

a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 N
O

T
E

S
: 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 C

o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
, 
in
 A
rt
ic
le
 4
, 
d
e
fi
n
e
s
 t
h
o
s
e
 p
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 w
h
ic
h
 m

a
k
e
 u
p
 t
h
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 P
o
lic
y
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
. 
D
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
re
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 F
o
rw

a
rd
 P
la
n
 a
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 P
o
lic
y
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
. 
 

 F
u
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
( 
a
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o
f 
a
ll 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
C
o
u
n
c
il)
 a
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 P
o
lic
y
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
. 

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 11th June, 2008 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY, 14TH MAY, 2008 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor A Carter in the Chair 

 Councillors R Brett, J L Carter, R Finnigan, 
S Golton, R Harker, P Harrand, J Procter, 
S Smith and K Wakefield 

 
 
 

222 Occupation of the Chair  
In the absence of Councillor Andrew Carter, Councillor Brett assumed the 
Chair. 
 

223 Substitute Member  
Under the terms of Executive Procedure Rule 2.3 Councillor R Lewis was 
invited to attend the meeting on behalf of Councillor Blake. 
 

224 Exclusion of the Public  
RESOLVED – That the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated exempt on the 
ground that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or 
the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public were present 
there would be disclosure to them of exempt information so designated as 
follows: 
 
(a) Appendices A and B to the report referred to in minute 234 under the 

terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the 
grounds that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing the information by reason of the fact 
that disclosure could prejudice the interests of all parties concerned 
and therefore be prejudicial to the public interest. 

 
(b) The appendix to the report referred to in minute 235 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that 
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information by reason of the fact it contains 
commercially sensitive information which, if disclosed, could be 
prejudicial to contract confidentiality. 

 
(c) Appendices 1 and 2 and plans 1 and 2 to the report referred to in 

minute 236 under the terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 
10.4(3) and on the grounds that the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information as 
disclosure may prejudice the outcome of the procurement process and 
the financial offer made by the proposed preferred operator to manage 
the arena. 

 

Page 83



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 11th June, 2008 

 

225 Declaration of Interests  
Councillor Wakefield declared a personal and prejudicial interest in the item 
relating to ‘Raising Expectations – White Paper Consultation Response’ 
(minute 227) due to being a member of the Learning and Skills Council. 
 
Councillor Finnigan declared a personal interest in the item relating to ‘Raising 
Expectations – White Paper Consultation Response’ (minute 227) due to 
being a governor at Joseph Priestley College. 
 

226 Minutes  
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 16th April 2008 be 
approved. 
 
 
CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 

227 Raising Expectations - White Paper Consultation Response  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report briefing the Board 
on the Government’s White Paper ‘Raising Expectations: Enabling the 
System to Deliver’ and suggesting how the authority might respond to the 
consultation. An updated version of the consultation response form was 
circulated at the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED – 

(a) That the draft consultation response be noted and the relevant 
Executive Member and Chief Executive of Education Leeds be 
authorised to finalise the document and forward it to the DCSF by the 
deadline of 9th June 2008. 

(b) That the early work on sub-regional co-ordination be noted and that an 
update be provided in October 2008 

 
(Having declared a personal and prejudicial interest Councillor Wakefield left 
the meeting during consideration of this matter) 
 

228 Vacation and Occupation of the Chair  
Councillor Andrew Carter entered the meeting and assumed the Chair. 
 

229 Temple Newsam Halton Primary School  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on a proposal to 
carry out capital works and to incur expenditure in respect of a scheme to 
construct an extension and carry out alterations at Templenewsam Halton 
Primary School. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the access of 100% of the capital receipt arising from the sale of 

the Templenewsam Halton Primary School Victorian stone annexe 
building be approved. 

(b) That the design proposals in respect of the scheme to extend the main 
school building be approved. 

Page 84



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 11th June, 2008 

 

(c) That expenditure of £850,000 from capital scheme number 
14748/00/000 be authorised. 

 
230 Phase 3 Children's Centre Programme  

The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report updating members on 
the success of phases 1 and 2 of the Children’s Centre Programme, outlining 
the statutory guidance for the planning and delivery of phase 3 of the 
programme, and providing details of the allocation made to Leeds, the 
caveats upon the allocation and the outcomes of the consultation work on the 
location of the final centres.  The report also sought approval for the location 
of the centres, the order in which they will be constructed and the injection of 
£3,610,487 into the capital programme to implement the plan. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That phase 3 of the Children’s Centre Implementation Plan be 

approved. 
(b) That the phasing of the centres as recommended by Education Leeds 

and the Early Years Service be approved. 
(c) That the injection of £3,610,487 into the capital programme to design 

and construct the phase 3 centres be approved. 
 
LEISURE 
 

231 Leeds Public Rights of Way Improvement Plan - Consultation Draft  
The Director of City Development submitted a report proposing the 
commencement of the twelve week public consultation process for the Leeds 
Public Rights of Way Improvement Plan. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the contents of the report and the draft Executive Summary and 

Action Plan appended to the report be noted and the commencement 
of a twelve week public consultation period for the Rights of Way 
Improvement Plan be approved. 

(b) That following the conclusion of the consultation period, officers bring 
back a final version of the Public Rights of Way Improvement Plan for 
approval. 

 
CENTRAL AND CORPORATE 
 

232 Numbering Strategy and Golden Number  
The Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy and Improvement) submitted 
a report seeking approval for the development of a new telephone numbering 
strategy and providing an update on the development of a ‘golden number’ for 
customers accessing principal Council services by means of the Corporate 
Contact Centre. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the 0113 prefix as Leeds City Council’s telephone numbering 

strategy be adopted. 

Page 85



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 11th June, 2008 

 

(b) That the Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy and Improvement) 
be authorised to take steps to implement the telephone numbering 
strategy and introduce a range of ‘silver’ telephone numbers for 
principal Council services, making it possible for customers to get 
through to the right person first time and, a ‘golden’ number to enable 
easier access to Council services. 

 
233 Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 - 2011: Approval of Local Area Agreement 

Responsibilities  
The Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) submitted 
a report presenting the draft indicators and targets selected to support the 
delivery of the strategic outcomes and improvement priorities in the Leeds 
Strategic Plan, which also represent the draft Local Area Agreement for 
Leeds. The report also sought approval of the draft indicators and targets prior 
to their submission to the Secretary of State and Full Council as part of the 
Leeds Strategic Plan.  An updated version of the proposed indicators and 
targets for Leeds’ local area agreement was circulated at the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That Appendix 1 be approved as Leeds’ local area agreement prior to 

its submission to the Secretary of State for formal sign off. 
(b) That the Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) 

be authorised to make minor amendments, if required, to Leeds’ local 
area agreement prior to its submission to the Secretary of State on 30th 
May 2008. If any revisions are required then the Assistant Chief 
Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) should inform members 
of the Executive prior to submission. 

(c) That the full and final version of the Leeds Strategic Plan incorporating 
the agreed indicators and targets, be submitted to the July meeting of 
full Council for final approval as required by the Council’s budget and 
policy framework. 

 
234 Yorkshire County Cricket Club  

The Director of Resources submitted a report on consents and variations 
requested by Yorkshire County Cricket Club in relation to their loan 
agreement with the Council. 
 
Following consideration of the appendices designated as exempt under 
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) which were considered in 
private at the conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the necessary consents and agreements to vary the Council’s 

loan agreement to facilitate Yorkshire County Cricket Club entering into 
the transactions referred to in this report be granted. 

(b) That the proposals in respect of dealing with future requests for 
consents or variations under the loan agreement with Yorkshire County 
Cricket Club as detailed at paragraph 5.1 of the report be agreed. 

 
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 

Page 86



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 11th June, 2008 

 

 
235 Advertising on Lamp Posts - Proposals for Distribution of Income  

The Director of City Development submitted a report proposing a scheme 
relating to the distribution of income received from lamp post advertising as 
described in the report. 
 
Following consideration of the appendix designated as exempt under Access 
to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) which was considered in private at the 
conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED – That the arrangements for distribution of income from lamp 
post advertising as described in the report be approved. 
 

236 Proposed Leeds Arena Development - Selection of Preferred Operator  
The Director of City Development submitted a report on the selection of the 
preferred and reserve operators for the proposed Leeds Arena, and seeking 
authority for the Director of City Development to enter into a legal agreement 
with the preferred operator (or reserve operator, should the need arise) of the 
Leeds Arena on the terms contained within the report. 
 
Following consideration of appendices 1 and 2 and associated plans to this 
report designated as exempt under Access to Information Procedure Rule 
10.4(3) which were considered at the conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That  Bidder B be approved as the preferred operator for the proposed 

Leeds arena as detailed in Appendix 1 of the report. 
 (b) That the Director of City Development be authorised to enter into a 

legal agreement with the preferred arena operator on the terms 
outlined in Appendix 2 of the report.  

(c) That Bidder A be approved as the reserve operator for the proposed 
Leeds arena as detailed in Appendix 1 of the report 

(d) That the Director of City Development be authorised to enter into a 
conditional legal agreement with bidder A on the terms outlined in 
Appendix 2 of the report. 

 (e) That in the event that the preferred operator for the arena as detailed in 
Appendix 1 of the report withdraws from the project or varies their 
submission in a manner which results in the reserve bidder’s 
submission being more advantageous to the Council, the Director of 
City Development be authorised, with the concurrence of the Executive 
Member for Development and Regeneration, to take appropriate action 
to secure the reserve bidder pursuant to the conditional agreement 
previously entered into with bidder A as the preferred operator for the 
arena. 

 
237 Main Street, Thorner - Over 55s Association  

The Director of City Development submitted a report on discussions which 
have taken place with the Thorner Over-55’s Association and seeking support 
for a transfer of a ‘Community Asset’ as a less than best consideration 
disposal on the terms recommended within the report. 

Page 87



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 11th June, 2008 

 

 
RESOLVED – That a 50 year lease at nil rent be granted to the Thorner Over-
55’s Association and for the Council to continue the rental subsidy, in line with 
the basis upon which funds were granted by the Council and other bodies. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
 

238 Graffiti Strategy  
The Chief Environmental Services Officer submitted a report seeking approval 
of a graffiti strategy for Leeds. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Graffiti Strategy be approved. 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE OF PUBLICATION:   16TH MAY 2008 
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN (5.00 PM ) 23RD MAY 2008 
 
 
(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items Called In by 12 noon on 
Wednesday 28th May 2008) 
 
 
 
 

Page 88



 
 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board:  Central and Corporate Functions 
 

Date:    9th June 2008 
 
Subject:  Determine Work Programme 2008/09  
 

        
 
 
1.0      Purpose of Report  

 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to determine the Board’s work programme for 2008/09.  
 
2.0      Introduction 
 
2.1     The previous Agenda item provided inputs to the development of the Board’s work 

programme.  Having considered the written information and having discussed 
relevant issues with officers, the Board is now asked to consider formulating a draft 
work programme.  

 
2.2 Members are reminded that if additional information is required in order to determine 

the programme this can be obtained via the use of informal meetings of the Scrutiny 
Board. 

 
2.3 In formulating work programme the Scrutiny Board shall determine; 
 

• how the proposed inquiry meets criteria approved from time to time by the 
Scrutiny Advisor Group (Attached as Appendix 1) 

• whether the programme can be adequately resourced and 
timetabled.(Appendix 2) 

 

3.0   Recommendations 
 
3.1     Members are requested to consider the Board’s work programme. 
 
 
 
 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Peter Marrington 
 
Tel: 39 51151 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 89



 
Appendix 1 

 
 

SCRUTINY BOARD PROCEDURE RULES GUIDANCE NOTE 7 
 

INQUIRY SELECTION CRITERIA 
 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules require Scrutiny Boards, before deciding to undertake 

an Inquiry, to: 
 

Consider how a proposed Inquiry meets criteria approved from time to time; and 
 
Consult with any relevant Director and Executive Member 

 
1.2 This is to ensure that Scrutiny Boards, when agreeing to undertake an Inquiry, have 

considered carefully the reasons for that Inquiry, its objectives, whether it can be 
adequately resourced  in terms of Member and Officer time and have sought the views of 
the relevant Director and  Executive Member. 

 
1.3 The decision whether to undertake an Inquiry or not rests with the Scrutiny Board. 
 
2.0 INQUIRY SELECTION CRITERIA  
 
2.1 At the time of deciding to undertake an Inquiry, the Scrutiny Board will refer to the Inquiry 

Selection Criteria within this Guidance Note and formally identify which of the agreed 
criteria the proposed Inquiry meets.  The Board will also record the comments of the 
relevant Director and Executive Member.   This process will be recorded in the Scrutiny 
Board minutes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 90



 
 
 

INQUIRY SELECTION CRITERIA 

Scrutiny Board   ______________________________ 

 
Inquiry Title    ______________________________ 
 
Anticipated Start Date ______________________________ 
 
Anticipated Finish Date ______________________________ 
 

 The Inquiry meets the following criteria 
 

● It addresses the Council’s agreed Strategic outcomes by   
reviewing the effectiveness of policy to achieve strategic outcomes  
as defined by the Leeds Strategic Plan 

● Shaping and developing policy through influencing pre-policy 
      discussion  
 
It fulfils a performance management function by 
 

● Reviewing  performance of significant parts of service    
 
● Addressing a poor performing service                                                   
 
● Addressing a high level of user dissatisfaction  with the service 
 
● Addressing a pattern of budgetary overspends 
 
● Addressing matters raised by external auditors and inspectors 

 
 
 
 

● Addresses an issue of high public interest           
 
● Reviews a Major or Key Officer decision 
 
● Reviews an Executive Board decision 
 
● Reviews a series of decisions which have a significant impact  

 
● Has been requested by the Executive Board/Full Council/Scrutiny 

 Advisory Group  
 

● looks at innovative change 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments of relevant Director and Executive Member (Attach additional sheet if necessary)  
 
 
 
Date  
 

Page 91



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 B

O
A

R
D

 (
C

E
N

T
R

A
L
 &

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T
E

 F
U

N
C

T
IO

N
S

) 
- 
L
A

S
T
 R

E
V

IS
E

D
  
 

 IT
E

M
 

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
 

N
O

T
E

S
 

T
Y
P

E
 O

F
 I
T
E

M
 

S
u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 A

re
a
s
 f
o
r 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 U

n
s
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

IT
E

M
 

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
 

N
O

T
E

S
 

T
Y
P

E
 O

F
 I
T
E

M
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d

a
te

: 
7

th
  
 J

u
ly

 2
0
0
8
  
- 
T
h
e
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
 f
o
r 

re
p
o
rt

s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
s
 1

2
 N

o
o
n
 2

3
rd

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
8
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d

a
te

: 
1

s
t  
S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 -
 T

h
e
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
 f
o
r 

re
p
o
rt

s
 f
o
r 
th

is
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
s
 1

2
 N

o
o
n
 1

4
th

 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
8
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
    

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d

a
te

: 
6

th
  
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 -
 T

h
e
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
 f
o
r 

re
p
o
rt

s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
s
 1

2
 N

o
o
n
 2

2
n
d
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

re
p
o
rt
. 
 

 
R
P
 

 
 

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d

a
te

: 
3

rd
  
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 -
T
h
e
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
 f
o
r 

re
p
o
rt

s
 f
o
r 
th

is
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
s
 1

2
 N

o
o
n
 2

0
th
  
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d

a
te

: 
1

s
t  
  
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 -
T
h
e
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
 f
o
r 

re
p
o
rt

s
 f
o
r 
th

is
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
s
 1

2
 N

o
o
n
 1

7
th
  
 N

o
v
 2

0
0
8
 

 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

re
p
o
rt
. 
 

 
R
P
 

Page 93



S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 B

O
A

R
D

 (
C

E
N

T
R

A
L
 &

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T
E

 F
U

N
C

T
IO

N
S

) 
- 
L
A

S
T
 R

E
V

IS
E

D
  
 

IT
E

M
 

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
 

N
O

T
E

S
 

T
Y
P

E
 O

F
 I
T
E

M
 

  
 

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d

a
te

: 
5
th

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
0
9
 -
 T

h
e
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
 f
o
r 

re
p
o
rt

s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
s
 1

2
 N

o
o
n
 1

5
th
 D

e
c
 2

0
0
8
 

 

 
 

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d

a
te

: 
5

th
  
F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
0
9
 -
 T

h
e
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
 f
o
r 

re
p
o
rt

s
 f
o
r 
th

is
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
s
 1

2
 N

o
o
n
 1

9
th
  
J
a
n
 2

0
0
9
 

 

 
 

 
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

re
p
o
rt
. 
 

 
R
P
 

 
 

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d

a
te

: 
2

n
d
  
  
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
 -
 T

h
e
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
 f
o
r 

re
p
o
rt

s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
s
 1

2
 N

o
o
n
 1

6
th
  
F
e
b
 2

0
0
9
 

 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

 

 
 

R
P
 

 
 

 
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d

a
te

: 
  
6

th
  
  
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
0
9
 -
 T

h
e
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
 f
o
r 

re
p
o
rt

s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
s
 1

2
 N

o
o
n
 2

3
rd
  
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
 

 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 K
e
y
: 
 

C
C
F
A
 /
 R
F
S
 –
 
C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
c
a
ll 
fo
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 /
 r
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
P
 –
  
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

D
P
 –
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

M
S
R
 –
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
M
 –
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
 –
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

S
C
 –
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
I 
–
 C
a
ll 
in
 

 

Page 94


	Agenda
	6 Input into Work Programme 2008/09 - Sources of Work and Establishing the Board's Priorities
	Scrutiny Board (Corporate Functions)
	Corporate Assessment report May 2008
	Corporate Assessment Actions - Appendix 2 To Exec Board Report
	Appendix 1_Scrutiny 020408
	Q4 Central
	Corporate & Central Functions Qtr4
	External audit plan 2008 ccf
	Outstanding Issues Resources version 2
	Forward Plan - Central & Corporate Functions
	Exec Board Minutes 140508

	7 Determine Work Programme 2008/09
	work programme June 08


